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Abcam at a glance

A global leader in the

supply of life science
research tools

Global loccations

tugene Cambridge
Oragon Massachusetts
L
\ o

Buringarme Pteasanton Branford
California California Connecticut

Research and development

Dlstrbution

Customer Services (Cx)

Custom Solutions

Cambridge
United Kingdom

Amsterdam

Shanghal
Netherlands

China

Hong Kong

Hangzhou
Ching

Tokye
Japan

Primary antibodies
Sacondary antibodies
ELISAS and kits

Proteins. peptides, lysates
AAA|

Catalogue products by type, 000s

Group revenues, £m

2018719
2017118
206/77

Recombinart antibodles
Ofther ontibodies
Immunoassays

Other catalogue products
Custom Products & Licensing

0%} 20%) o)



Share of global primary
cntibody resecrch
citations (2018)!

21%

Employees
1,155

PhDs
212 -

1 Source: CitaAb.

Related Invaster presantations
Abcom ple regulany updates

its stakeholders thiough
the webslte.

Plaase visit abcample.com

for furthes Information.

Coverimage

Visualising PD-L1 In cells:

PD-L1 Is Invalved In suppressing
ceartain lmmune responses

and i a key target for cancer
therapies. These therapies alm
1o tecduce PD-L1 levels In cancer
cells, preventing them from
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Abcam

Precision delivery of high-quality
protein research tools for the life

sciences industry

Operationdl and strategic highlights

Financial highlights

All product categories growing above underlying market
rates ond oil sirategic performance targets achieved

Continued in-house Innovation, with in-house product
revenue growth of 13.6% (CER) and the introduction of the
Group's 18.000th recombinant antibody

Further @nhancements to product quality through knockout
recombinant antibodias, and othar quakity initiatives

Ongoing development of our addressabie market in custorn
products and licensing. with $7 new agreements enterad
into with blopharmaceutical and diagnostic partners and
over 160 custom projects completed dunng the year

Implementad the financicl and non-stock procurement
modules of the Oracle Cloud ERP IT system

Successfully relocaoted to our new giobol headquarters

Acquisition of Calico Bickibs, expanding expertise in
recombinant rabbit monocional antibody development
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Total revenue

£2599m +11.4%

2018/19
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Gross margin

70.5% +0.6%pts

2018/19
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Adjusted ERITDA margin

35.6% -2.3%pts

Adjusted profit before tax

£839m +2.8%

Reporied profit before tax

£56.4m -18.4%

2018719

Adjusted dituted samings per share

32.6p +0.6%

2018/19
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Reported diluted earnings par share

21.8p -27.8%
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Total dividends

12.13p +1.1%

2018719

a1

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

Natg:

Certaln financlal measures in tnls Annudl Report and Accounts. Including
adjusted results above. are not definad unaer IFRS and are giternative
performonce measures as described onpage 141. All adjusted measures are
reconciled 1o ihe most directly compareble measure prepared In occordence
with IFRS In note T 10 the comsolidoted financial stotements.



Our purpose

Empowering scientists to
their next breakthrough

Our purpose — to serve life scientists to help them achieve
their mission, faster — drives everything we do.

By providing life scientists with critical biological tools
and reagents needed for research, drug discovery and
diagnostics, we are helping advance scientific discovery,
resulting in better health outcomes and improving lives.

We recognise that we succeed only because we help our
customers achieve their goals, faster. We are committed to
increasing and improving the ways in which we are able
to support life scientists and achieving this in a way that
benefits our shareholders and our other stakeholders.

As we continue to execute our strategy to deliver sustainable |

performance and growth, our culture will help drive success.

We will - continue 1o dedicate ourselves 1o our customers,
anticipating and responding to their needs in order to
deliver an exceptional experience; be audacious in our
approach to innovation and in finding solutions to existing
and new biological questions; and earn trust by delivering
quality products and services with agility and speed,
executing on our plans and, at all times, acting responsibly
and with integrity.

Alan Hirzel
Chief Executive Officer
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Purpose in action

Dedicated
to excellence

How Abcam’s scientists
care helping the
research community
move closer to a cure
for Parkinson's disease.

Today, there are over six million people around the world
fiving with Parkinson's disease.

Through true partnership, Abcam and the Michael J Fox
Foundation have shown unwavering commitment and
dedication to co-cregting innovative tools that are
helping to accelerate Parkinson's research across

the global community,

To date, the partnership has put over 50 new antibodies Into
the hands of the globat research community, which have
been cited In over 150 peer-reviewed research papers,

This research ls generating Insights that witi one day support
finding a cure for this condition. . :

Visit glzcam.com/neuroscience/parkinsons-disease
to find out more

Abcam pic Annugl Report and Accounts 2019
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Audacious
innovation

How an audacious
approach to innovation is
helping advance research
in rare disease areas with
high unmet medical need.

Around the world. researchers and organisations are
wortking hard to better understand the estimated 7,000 rare
diseases that impact human health, defined as thase that
impact tewer than 1 1n 2,000 people.

This boid. ploneering work Is shedding new light on these
disorders. informing and supporting the development of
new theraples and treatment - aithough ready access to
effoctiva resaarch tools is often achallenge, holding back
faster prograss.

One such organisation is the Loulou Foundation, which is
focused onfinding a cure for CDKLS Deficiency Disorder (CDD),
Involving the mutation of a gene essential for normal brain
development and function. The lack of quality rasearch
reagents for COKLS has been a significant hurdie to the
understanding of the biology of this devastating disorder,
and to the development of effactive therapies.

By combining the technical expertise of our teams with
the disecse-specific expertise of groups, like the Loulou
Foundation, we are healping to support eftective rare
disease research through the Innovation of precision
research tools.

Visit abcam.com/Loulou Yo find out more about Abcam's
partnarship with The Louiou Foundation

Abcam plc Annuzl Report and Accounts 2019
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Purpose in action

Embracing
agility

How an agile approach to
new product development
is helping increcse our

knowledge of epigenetics.

Epigenetics Is defined as the study of heritable changes

of DNA, notinvoiving changas In a DNA sequeance, that
regulate gane exprassion, Whiist the study of eplgenstics
has been around for many years, Itsimpact on blology and
humon disease Is still largely unknown. What is known is that
epigenetics is disease agnostic, with new and varied
biomarkers being identified on a daily basis that are common
to diseqses as diverse as cancer and neurodegeneration.

Abcam was proud to be one of the first reagent suppliers
to bring antibodies to the market to assist the study of
aplgenetic modifications to RNA. Thase tools are enabling
the global research community to uncover insights and
unlock this cormplex area of biology.

During the year we lounched 25 antibodies to medified
RNA. These products Join over 3,000 others across Our varlous
rangaes that are helping to support the study of epigentics,
Interactive partnerships with leading academic experts
have allowed us to respond at pace o meet this

expanding demand.

Visit abcam.com/fapigenetics to find out more about Abcam’s
range of antibodies supporting epigeneticsresearch

Abkcam ple Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Chairman's statement

Decar Shareholder,

It is my pleasure to
introduce Abcam’s 2019
Annual Report, which sets
out the continued financial
and strategic progress
made by the Company
over the past 12 months,
as well as our plans and
priocrities for the future.

Abcam has made good progress, both financially and
strategically, over the past 12 months. We have continued
to successfully implement our growth strategy whilst
strengthening the organisation’s undetlying capabilities
to deliver further growth in the future.

Petar Allen
Chairman

Abeam pie Anral Report and Accounts 2019
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1 am pleqsad to report that Abcam has mode good progress,
both finonclally and sirategically. over the past 12 moniths.
Wae have continuad to successfully implement our growth
strategy whils! strengthening the crgonisation’sunderlying
capabilifies to dellver further growth in the future.

Financial performancs

We are pleased to report an 11.4% increase inrevenue to
£259.9m (2017/18: £233.2m), representing growthof9.2% ona
constant currency {CER) basis and an Increoase in odjusted?
profit before tax of 2.8% o £83.9m (2017/18: £81.6m).

©On areported basis, profit before tax declined by 18.4% to
£56.4m (2017/18: £69.1m), predominantly due to anon-cash
impolment charge of £12.8m relating to historical costs
associated with the ERP system, Free Cash Flow' increased to
£34.3m (2017/18: £26.8m) and we ended the year with nef cash
of £87.1m (2017/18: £90.2m) after invesiing ¢lose o $50m on
acquisitions, R&D and major capital projects.

Implementing our strategy to sustain growth: Five-year plan
102023724

Investment in the business over the last five years. which has
smen us daliver on our strategy and generate significant value
to our shareholders, has laid the foundation for growth in
2019/20 and peyond, as well as hightighting numerous new
opportunities.

To ensure we can take full advantage of thése opportunities
and remove constraints 1o growth, the Board conducted on
In-depth raview of our strategy and investment plans during
the year, This resulted in a new five-year plan being developed,
which providas for anincreqse in the pace of investment over
the medium term.

The investment will see usincreose our capacity for innovation
and new product development. improve our [T infrastructure
and globaol supply ¢hain to meet the dermands of a global
business and enhance our digital platfarm and capabilities,
improving our custorners’ experience.

Thoughitul partnerships ond acquisitions can accelerate his
trend and we are confident that these organic and Inorganic
investreants will drive further growth and value for shareholders
over the coming years.

Dividend

The Group's strong balance sheet and cash generation
capablitty has aliowed the Directors to propose an increqse

in the dividend for the year. Subject to opprovol ot the AGM on
13 November 2019. the Board proposes to pay a finol dividend
of 8.38 pence (2017/18: 8.58 pence) per share.

1 CERis caiculated by opplying the prior year's actual exchange rates 1o the
current yaar's resulls.

2 Adjusted measures are reconciiad fo the most directly comparable measure
praparedin accordance with IFRS in note 7 to the consolldatad financial
statements.

3 Free Cash Flow comprises net cash ger
capitol mpenditure and transteraf cashinte

hom ap Wy octivities less net
for fute pital witture.

Together with the Interirn dividend of 3.55 pence per share
paid on 12 April. this makes a total dividend for the year of

12.13 pence (2017/18: 12.00 pence) per share, reprasenting an
Increase of 1.1% compared te last year. if opproved, the final
dividend will be payable on 29 Novernber 2019 to shoreholders
of record At the close of business on 8 November 2019. The
ex-dividend date is 7 Novermnber 2019,

Board changes and governance

Following arigorous recrultment process for a Non-Executive
Director, Glies Kerr was appointed to the Board In December
2018. Glles brings extensive experience as both an Executive
and Non-Executive Director. His appointment strengthens
the Abcam Board ashe brings experience of life sclences,
finance and first-hand undaerstanding of our academic
resacrch customers.

On 19 July 2019 Gavin Wood notified the Boord of hsintention
1o stap down at the end of his notice pericd. or when we
appoint a successor. The Boafd appreciates the work Gavin
has achieved in the pravious threea years but recognisas his
desire 1o be closer to his farmnity s Oxtord.

On 6 September 2019 Sue Hars notifled the Boord that she
would not be seeking re-elaction at the 2019 AGM. Sue has
played an importont rote in chaling the Audit and Risk
Cormmittes to high standords over the last flve years, The Board
thanks her for support in performing this critical leadership role,

Abcarm rernoing commitied to high standords of govemance
and continuas o comply with almast every principle and
provision of the UK Corporete Governonce Code, inaddifion,
we malntaln a robust romework of systems and controls to
maintain high stondards throughout the Company. mote
detalls of which can be found in the Directors” Report,

The Baard strongly belleves that effective corporate
governance assists us in 1he delivery of our corpoiate strategy.
the sustainable generation of sharsholder value and the
safeguarding of our stakeholders’ long-errn interests.

Recognition and thonks

Finaily. | would to pay tribuie to our colleagues around the
world for thelr continued dedication and hard work, as well as
our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders
for thelr continued support over the last year.

Sincarely,

Peter Alten
Chairman
&3epternber 2009

Abcamn pke Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Chietf Executive Officer's review
and operational report

Dear Shareholder,

The life science industry

is vibrant, with increcased
resecerch funding and capital
investment supporting
collaborative and global
discovery networks.

Those research discovery networks - spanning genomics.
epigenstics, proteomics and metabolomics - are converting
physical biology inte data at anunprecedented raote ata
time when we are approaching unconstrained computing
powaer, The Insights from this data are not fully realised.

and yet this progress Is already producing rapid advances

in scientific discovery and Improving patient lives, Indeed,
we expect the Impact of the endeavours of researchers
today to redefine how we will be traated in tha future.

lam proud of what we have accomplished in 2019.
Together, we successtully implementsd cur growth
strategy to become a stronger partner for cur customers.
For our team, we continued tc enhance our culture to
bean even better place to work, For our shareholders,
we delivered a solid financial performance, positioning
our Company for an exciting future.

Alan Hirzel
Chief Exacutive Officer

Abcam plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
0



in this context we are proud of the rola Abcam playsin

serving sclentists and the success for our Company. We have
achleved a great dealin the five years since the launch of our
Invest-to-grow strategy in 2014, Cur commitment to product
innovalion, Quality ond our custorners has seen us strengthen
our position in our core markets and provide greater choice to
reseqrchers through the addition of new product lines. iIn doing
50, we have doubled our revenue and delivered strong returns
1o our sharehclders,

Driven by our purpose and with the confidence in our abllity

to sustain success. we have taken the opportunity to review our
plans for the next phase of Abcam’s development and growth.
It is an exclting time for our industry, and we belleve we are
Ideclly positioned to Increase our influence and impact whilst
creating further value for cur stakeholdars.

Sarving science; sustalning growth

Abcam exists 10 pursue two alms. The first Is to realise our
purpose: to serve life sclentists to achieve theirmission. faster.
The sacond I3 to build a sustalnable enterprise that creates
value for all stakeholders and rmakes it possible for usto do
more at a greater scale and wider impact,

As we seok to reglise these Qimns, we take a multi-decade

viaw of our strategy and objectives, Abcany's work to support
customaers on the cutting edge of discovery foday Is the
seedbad forimprovements to human health and lifestyles 10 to
20 years from now. With two decades behind us. we are now ot
a point where ressarchers know they con trust Gur copabilities
and quality to accelerate the impact they will have on
patients’ ives, -

A dedicated feam delivering tor customaers

Our more than 1,150 colleggues around the world are vita! to
the delivery of our purpose and the continued success ot our
business. | am proud of what they have accomplished in 2019.
Together. wa successfully implementead our growth strategy
to bacorme a stronger partner for our customers, For our team,
we continued to enhance cur cutture to be an even better
place 10 work. And for our sharahcolders, we have delivered
asolid financial performance, positioning our Company

for an exclting future.

As our global impact andinfluence continues to grow,

It encourages each of us to keep improving what we do for
sclence and how we build our business. Everything we dols
anchored In the bellef that customers provide the urgency and
direction for our business. it is this beliaf that drives us farward

In our efforts to build a culture and Implernent a strategQy that
ensures we continue to delight our customers, develop our
team and execute against our pians, at all imes acting with
responsibility and integrity.

Qur performance in 2019

We delivered another solld financici perforrmance in 2018/19,
with total revenue growth of 11,4% on araported basls ond 9.2%
on a constant currency basls. On a reported bosis, Catalogue
revenues 1058 12.0% to $242.8m whilst Custom Products &
Licensing revenue rose 4.3% to £17.1m.

Adjusted profit before tax rose 2.8% to £83.9m, whiist reported
profit betore rax decreased 10 £56.4m {2017/18: £69.1m) due
mainly to the non-cash impairment charge of £12.8m relating
0 historical costs associated with the ERP systern. We continue
1o be highly cosh generative, with net cash Inflow from
operating octhvities of £70.2m (2017/18: £43.3m). Return on
capital employed rernained above 20%.

Sustained positive catalogue revenue growth came from
continuing to gain share in each of our global markets. This part
of our business is maintaining growth at approximately twice
maorket rates. The ditvers of this growth arose from our success In
axpanding our quality product range in recombinant ontibodles
and continuing to bulld out Immunoassays as a new business ine.

Whilst our overail revenue growth was impaocted by Custom
Products and Licensing (CP&L). two abiservations give us
confidence we are on thea right track for this part of our business:

1. The "Abcam Inside’ strategy is working - that Is, allowing
our progucts 1o be used by partners beyond research in
the development of clinical products that will help patients
ocross the globe. In 2018/19 we executed 57 agreerments
with diagnostic and biopharmaceutical organisations that
nave the potential 1o lead 10 new diagnostic 1ools ond
completed over 160 projects; and

2. Kisstill eary in the developrment of the economic model, For
the full year the increase in revenue from licences, royalties
and supply agreements (contributing approximately 70% of
CP&L revenue) was offset by a decline In revenue generatad
from custom projects,

Qur successes, as well as our strength in customer engagement,
arae seen Maost clearly in our strategic performance indicators
where the business achieved each of the targets it set out ot
1he start of the year:

Strotegic Performance indicajors

201419 taigat Agtual
Recombinant revenue growth' >20% 22%
Immunoassay revenue growth! >20% 22%
Customer engagemaent: tNPS§? 57-67% 59%

1 Constont exchange rate (CER).

2 N ber 2013, the C y appointed @ new INPS survey partner. Asa
consequence of this. the mechanism by which customer feedback is obinined
changed and msulied in & INPS culcome that s cppraximotiely 10% lowsr than
undar the previdus mechanism.

Abcam ple Annuail Report and Accounts 2019
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Chief Executive Officer's review
and operational report continued

Ropoﬂoé ravenue

2019 208 CER
tm f&m increase growth rote

Catalogue revenue by product:
Primary and secondary antibodles 193.2 1745 10.7% 8.7%
of which recombinant antibodies 59.1 48.0 23.1% 22.4%
Other products! 49.6 42.3 17.3% 14.7%
of which immuncassay products 18.5 15.0 23.3% 21.9%
Catalogue sub-total 242.8 2148 12.0% 9.8%
Custom Products & Licensing (CP&L)? 171 16.4 4.3% 0.4%
Total reported revenue 259.9 233.2 11.4% 9.2%

1 Inchudes kits and assays. proteins. peptides. lysates and AAAI products sold for research use.

2 Inchudesroyalty income. custom products. HC/IVD ond licensing revenue.

Alongside delivery of our strategic goals, | am pleased with
tha successtul accomplishment of many business bullding
objectives for the year, including the following select highlights:

= Introduction of cur 18,000th recombinant antibody
to the market

- Successfully launched several projects and partnerships
with biopharma and dlagnostic customers that have
the potentlal to take discoveries beyond research and
Into products that will help patients across the globe
{'Abcam Inside’), including:

- Licensed our Pan-TRK antibody (clone EPR1734) for
use In Roche Diagnostics’ IHC kit for N-TRK gene fusion
pasitive cancers:

= licensed asacond PD-L] antibody (clone 73-10)in Leica’s
BOND plattorm:; ’ '

= Entered into a partnership with NanoString Technologies
to supply Abcam’s recombinant monoclonal antibodies
for tha GeoMx Digital Spatial Profiler platform; and

= Entered astrategic agreement with Qlagen (Suzhou)
to co-davelop companion diagnostic and in-vitro
dlagnostic reagents and kits for the Chinese market:

- Expanded and enhonced our executive ieadership teom
with the addition of Dr Cherl Walker as SVP of Corporate
Development and Jac Price as SVP of Supply Chain
and Manufacturing;

= Acquired and integroted Calico Biclabs, enhancing our
antibody capabiliities and exponding ous recombinant
antibody porttolio:

= Implemented an award-winning all-employee share
ownership scheme;

= Successfully moved into our new global headquartears
inCambridge, UK, on budget and without disruption
to custormers; and

- Completed the transltion of our tinanclal and non-stock
procurement opetrcations to our cloud-basad ERP platform.

Abcarn plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Upgrading our IT systems

With the Insiallation of the Iatest modules of our global ERP
system. we have concluded the programme that initlated

in 2015/16 to provide more scalable back-offlice systams at
Abcarm. Many global functional areas have been improved
by the programme Including process and data management
In Human Rasources, Customer Experlence, Flnance and
non-stock Procurernent. We are already seeing benefits to
scale, better data and better controls from these changes.

Manufacturing and Warghouse Management remain
functonal areas not yet addressed by this ITupgrade
prograrnme. Followlng an extensive review of business
requirements oand the current state of Oracle Cloud software
os well as other best in closs software providers, we have
declided to make some changes to the approach and
software used inthese areas. !

As we also look to improve our customers’ end-to-end
experience, including our website. it would be a missed
opportunity to oddress these areqs discretely, Accordingly,
we intend o integrate improvements in the remaining
functional areas with enhancements to our front-end system
to further improve our customers’ overall experience.

Remaving constraints and increasing the potential

of our business

We are now five years Into the strategy set outin 2014, which
Included the following flve strategic objectives to guide our
business activities and deliver efficlent growth:

= Sustaln antibody and digital marketing leadership;
= Expandinrelated growth markets;

= |nvestin operating capabilities o double our scale;
- Sustain attractive economics; and

- Supplement organic growth through acquisitions
and partnerships.



In the five years since, we have achigved much In the pursuit
of those godals. Today, Abcamis the fop clited company for
approximataly 40% of the 2,000 protein targets most studled
In global academic rasearch, up from 22% 1n 2013 (source
CitaARD). Wa have doubled the revenue of the business,
successfully lounched adjocent product lines that our
customers need, invested in cur people, procasses and
operations and delivered heaithy returns to our shareholdars.

Whilst it is ternpting to pause and celebrate our past, and lom
certainly proud of what the team has accomplished, | prefer to
took at the Company as if we were just getting startead. We have
a backlog of attractive Ideas to grow our sales and global
influence whilst creating value for shareholders, customers
and other stakeholders.

When we talk about our business strategy and what it wilt toke
to reamove constraints and do more. we focus on two main
slemants: converting ideas to innovation and sealing up
afficlently to sustaln growth.

Converting ideas toinnovation: Asthe percentage of Abcam's
total revenue from products developed intemally (including
CP&L) has grown from approximately 12% at the time of the
Company’s IPO in 2005 1o almost 50% today. the nature of how
wa Innovate has changed considerably. Abcam's sclentific
skills have grown exponantially in that period. Today, our maln
constraint tends to be putting the right sclentific and commercial
teams in plkace 1o bring new ideas successfully to market.

Scoaling up fo sustain growth: Thisis Abcam'’s capacity os

an arganisation ta scale efficiently, grow and lead successful
change: both In bringing innovation to market and in business
building. As a high growth business this capacity Is always
constralned, with solutions that may have worked in the past
requiring rapid Improvement or replacement.

Investing in our future: new five-year plan to 2024

The fundamentals of our business are strong, and the
mediurm-and long-ferm prospects of our markets are agtractive,
As artesult, wa ore challenging curselves 1o increase our rate of
Invastment to accalerate the Implementation of Initiatives that
will allow us t0 selze more of the market apportunities for growth,
These Inltlatives and our investrnent priorities are focusad on
the following long-term goals. represanting our three-pillar
strategy for sustainable growth:

1. Sustain and exfend antibody and digital lsadership

- Antibody innovation and validation: supporting the
creation of best in closs binders to high value targets,
pathways and research areas; and

« E-commerce and digital: Our website, search engine
optimisation and data have been a magjor strategic
advantage. We now see opportunities to make step changes
te Improve the customer experience and enhance our
competitive position over the next five years,

Group revenue

£2599m

£259 9m

Revenus from in-house products (catalogus)

£106.4m

Abcam ple Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Chief Executive Officer's review
and operational report continued

2. Drive continued expansion into complementary
market adjacencies

- Immunoassays: further davelopment of our proprietary
portfollo of high-performance products;

= Proteomic reagent Innovation: extending our proprietary
offering in adjacent life science reagents where doing so
will also strengthen our antibody developmeant capabliities.
for exarmple in recomblinant protelins, cell lines and lysates.
and [maging and muitiplexing consumabies. ond

- ‘Abecam inside’: bullding our reputation and leveraging
our unique capabilities as an antibody discovary partner
for blopharmaceutical and diognostic organisations.

w

Build erganisational scalability and sustain value ereation
- Removing operational constraints to growth: including
replacing the final areas of legacy 1T systems, automation

at process bottienecks, simplification of our global facilities
footprint and enhancement of cur talent; and

- Realising operational improvements and efficiencias.

At the same time, we will continue to focus on the salective
pursult of acquisitiohs to supplement our organic growth and
flll capability gaps. We are excited by the potential impact on
blomedical research, human health and the financial returns
thesse invastments will have over theiong term.

Looking forward

The dynamics of the markets we serve remain positive.

The investments we have made and will continue to make

are anabling Abcam to sustaln profitable growth and achleve
the strategic and financlal targets we have set for ourselves.

| am confidant that the investrents we are making will generate
long-term value for our shareholders whilst helping us serve life
sclentists around the world to achieve their mission, faster.

Sincerely.

Alon Hirzel
Chiel Executive Officer
éSeptember 2019
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Updoted Strategic Performance Indicators, new long-tarm
and 2019/20 outiook

Updated Strategic Pertarmance Indicators:

Aligned to these plans. we have revised our strategic
performance Indicators moving Into 2019/20 to reflect the
strategic direction of the business and cur updated goals:

Updated Strategic KPis 2019720 target
Catalogue revenue growth from In-house

products! 12-15%
Customer engagement: transactional NPS 54-60%

1 At constant exchange rates.

Long-term outiook 10 2023/24:

We are also providing the following long-term cutlook which
demonstrates our focus on growing our businesseas while
continuing to aim for attractive margins and returns:

Financial Msetrie 20231/24 outicok
Revenue'? "£450m~£500m
Adjusted operating profit margin® 4 Low 30s%
Pre-tax Adjusted ROCE? Above 18%
Total 2020-24 Capex* £175m-£225m
1 Aiconstant exchange rales.

2 Wwith an occelerating level of growth through the perod.

3 Profarma forimpact forIFRS 14.

4 Contingsnt upon the phasing of existing plans and future projects.

2019720 outlook:

The new financial year has started Inline with our
expectations and for the full year we currently expect
revenues to be between £288-294m. equivalentto a
constant currency growth rate of approximatety 9-11%.
whilst profit margins over the next few years will be partially
dependent on the phasing of investment bahind our plans.
we anticlpate our adjusted cperating profit margin in
2019/20 to be 25-28% as a result of planned scaling and
growth investments, whilst caplital expenditure is expected
to be £30-50m.

1 Atthe following budgetad foreign exchonge rates to Pound Sterding:
USD: 1.27: BUR' 1,12, RMB: 8.72: JPY. 134,

Related material
Our strataglc priotities - pages 28 to 31

Related content
Key performance indicators - pages 32 to 35



Our markets

Market overview

We live in a period of rapid
expansion of biological
knowledge. Daily
breakthroughs are being
made in mankind'’s
understanding of how cells
opercte in health cnd disease.

These advances are possible bacause of rapid growth

in understanding of the rola of proteins expressed by genes.
This understanding is In turn powered by the provision of
high-quality research tools and reagents In support of
hundreds of thousands of sclentists around the globe.

Today. the global market far research antibodies and reagents
that Abcam serves is worth approximately S3bn' and growing
at around 4% per annum'. Within this figure primary antibodies
contribute approximately $1bn', with related research reagents
Including secondary antibodies, kits, assays, proteins, lysates
and celi lines comprising the balancs.

In recent years. In partnership with biopharmaceutical

and diagnastic companies. Abcam has begun to extendthe
comrmerciol application of its antibodies info diagnostic ond
therapeutic markets. According to market research, the global
monocional antibody-based therapeutics market is expected
to double In size from 2017-23 anc reach over $200bn. Similarly.
the companion diagnostics market is forecast 1o expand
rapidly, reaching some 525bn by 2022.

Abcam serves this market through the development

of high-performance antibodles for diagnostic ond
blopharmaceutical organisations that have the potential
to be usedin clinlcal products, Including In-vitro diagnostics
(IVD}. companion dlagnostics, immunoassays and
blologlcal tharapeutics.

1 Source: Plvotal Sclentifie (2018),
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Market overview

Antlbodies and assoclated life sclence resecrch reagents hove a
broad range of commerclkal applications that exploit their abiiity to
racognise ond bind to specific targets, with three broad creas of use.
as outlined in the table 10 the right.,

Estimated global antlbody markets (2018)

1 Diagnostics $22bn
2 Theragpeutics $100bn
3 Research reogents $3bn

3q Primary research antibodies ~51bn
3b Other research reagents ~5$2bn



Proteomic ressarch reagents

Diognostics

Therapeutics

Products

Research reagentsinciuding
primary and secondary
antibodies, kits and assays,
proteln, peptides, tysates,
ceallines and biochemicats,

Monoclonal anfibodias
and iImrmunocIsoy s

Monocional antibodias

Descripfion

Antibodles and assoclated
recagents ore usect to detect,
quanhfy and modify proteinsin
sclentific reseaich experiments
ond hus encble conciusions
to be drawn about the target
malacule and pathvway of
Interast. They are fundamental,
Irreplaceable tools for the work
ot fife sclentists.

Regulatory approval of
resaarch-grade antipodies
13 not requited.

Antibodies hove became

a criticalcomponent of many

In vitro diagnostc {IVD) assays,
Including componlon
diognosiics. Uses inciude, but
are notlimited to, the detection
aof Infactions. recognitian of
allergies and the meosurement
of hormanes, profeins and other
rmarkers in blologicol samples.

Antibody diognostics generally
requirs reguiatory approvat,

Anlibodles canbe used as
therapeutic agents for the
traatment of diseases including
cerlain cancears and Immune-
lotedc Is03es.

Thetapeutic antibodiel require
high levels of eguiatory approvaol.

. |

Eati tad add: Il

market size

~$3bn'?

~$5pn?

Long-term estimated
markei growth trend

—~ 4%2

"“5—80/02

knd markets

- Academic labsiocatedin
univarsities, higher education
and gavermmaent research
Institutas.

- Clinical labd in pharmma and
bictech companias working
Inthe drug discovery and
diognostic markets.

-~ Core faciitiet logatedin

haspitals. research Institutes.
and other large organisations.

Cinlcallobs in phairma and biotech companies woiking Inthe drug

discovery and dlagnostic markets.

Abcam sales

Catalogus sales (RUC)

Custom Prodtucts and Licensing

Compstition

1 Source: Pivotal Scientific. Intemal
company estimatas.

2  Source: Markst ressarch. Intemnalt
company estimates.

Although only a few players have
significant globaiscale and
iiquidiity, the marketplace for
RUC antibody suppliersls
fragmanted and compaetitive,
reflacting the wide range of
technologies and applications
that use these products and the
unreguiated status of the market.

Companies In diagnostic and therapeutic-use markets include
speciatist dlagnoesiic businesses, Contrgct Research Orgoniations

(CROS} and in-house teams at blotachnology and blopharmaceutical

firms, wha may outsourcs antibady design and discovary when
raaching capachy or when they encounter a problem that requires

outside expertisa.

Wa have bullt a significant nerwork of collaborations across this
fandscape and are working on many bespoke projacts in partnership
with large biopharma and diagnastic companies lo develop

antbodies for these rnarkans.
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Our markets continued

Mgajor trends

in our markets
Major drivers of growth ond change
In our markets include:

Abcam pic Annucl Report and Accounts 2019
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Increased funding for
bicmedical resecoch

Life sclance research funding continues

10 grow In many countries around the wearld,
driven by Increased investment Into
biomedicalresearch froma comiingtion
of govarnmeany, industry and private
copital. Increqsed investiment Is funding
translational research programmes
assoeciated with the development of
next-generation therapies including
Immuno-oncology and Immuno-tharapy,
traotments for chronie diseases assoclatad
with agelng populations, as wellasrare
and genetic diseases and the ongoing
threat from intectious diseases such

as HIV/AIDS. malarla and Ebola virus.

The Increase In funding for Industry-
academia collaborations seen Inrecent
vaars s expected to continue. Examples
Include the NIH's BRAIN Initictive. Cancer
Moonshot and the Prackion Medicine
Initigtives In the US and China.

Growing significcmce of
genomic and proteomic
resecach

As technologlcalinnovation has driven
adramatic redguction Inthe costofgene
sequencinginrecent years. Its use has
rapldly expanded, resulting ina
commensurate Incregse in the identification
of possible genetic targets and blomarkers
for disease diagnosis. This has led o a
proliferation in proteomic research in areas
spanning stern cell research. gene editing.
eplgenslics, neuroscience and cancer,

All types of proteomics research are
benefiting from this phenomeanaon,
Including protein separation, proteln
Identlfication, proteln quantification,
protaein sequence anclysis. structural
proteomics, interaction proteomics. proteln
rmodification and cellukar proteomics.

At the same time, the market Is also
beneftiting fromIncreasing penetration

of technologies enabling comprehensive
and faster anaolysls of protelns, such as
high-throughput immuncassay Instruments,
Thete developments are enabling sclontists
1o Increase productivity and achiove rosults
faster. by processing hundreds of biclogical
samples simuttanecusly.

Implications for Abcam

Increased funding for Iife sclence research
serves to expand the number of projects
undertaken. researchers employed and
experments conducted, Increasing the
requiremeant for Abcam’s preducts. In particular,
alarge percentage of Abcam’s revenuss are
derived from consumers who are publicly
funded through research grants. The nature
of the markat means that it ls difficutt to
give a precise measura, but itis thought to
be somewhere arcund 70% of our revenue.
Qurramaining consumars are spread
acress the pharmaceutical, biotechnaology
and In-vitro dlagnostic markets.

Abcam’s approach Is to seek to understand
and anticipate the evolving resaarch and
development (R&D) funding landscape
across different regions and research areas In
orcer that wa can provige the most effective
solutions and best ssrve consumer needs.

Implications for Abcam

Abcam provides tools that are fundamental
for proteomic research. A graater focus on
rasearch inte proteln functlon. together
with an Increased use of high sthroughput
platforms which require farge volumes of
gagents, Is theretore linked to Increqsing
demand for these products.

As our markets continue to innovate and
change we constantly review opportunities
to augment our existing products and
sarvicas that will support the neads

of our customers.

Related maoterial
Quir stiateglc priorities - poges 28 to 31

Related material
Our strategic pilodties - pages 28to 3



Structural growth in R&D
investment in China

The Chinese government hos placed
sclentific anct tachnological Innovation gt
the cernifre afthe long-term soclo-aconomic
devealopment of the country and s
supporting this major Iniiative through
funding. raform and societal status.

China now ranks sscond In the worldIn
numbarof sclantitic papers produced and
Is the world's second-most-clled source,
behind the US. In 2019. the Chiness
government sald It has begun formuloting
Hts science plans for 2021 10 2035 and
Intends to step up ts basic rasearch efforts,
enhance Innovative capablilties, increase
internationol cooperation and improve i
suparvision and regulation.

China Increased spending on R&D by 11.6%
In 20180 $291bn or 2.18% of GOP. up from
1.14% In 2005 and Is on track to reach its
2020 target of 2.5% a year early (Source.
National Bureau of S1atistics).

Focus on resecarch
reproducibility cnd
reagent quctlity

Antlbodies have a vital role In blomedical
res@Aarch and across the Industry there gre
calls for greater reproducibllity of datain
primary publications. Unrellable research
reagentslead 1o wasted time and money,
with one survey from Nature reporting that
more thon 70% of resaarchas have tred
and faited to reprociuce anotharscientist’s
exparirnants, ¢na rara than halt have
falled to reproduce thair own experiments.

High-qugility resecrch antibodies, providing
high specificity, sensitivity and consistency.
orenasdad to make critical progress on this
i$sue - helping 1o increase confidance In
resaaIch oUTCOMNSS ond reduce waste
across the Industry.

Precision medicine and
protein therapeutics

High unimet neads in the effective dicgnosis
ond trectment of cancer gna other
diseases Is driving demand for protein
therapeutics and personalisad madicines
across e medical community,

By talioning theraples 1o patients based
ona particutar genetic condition orthe
mutation profile of thalr cancer, patients
ars abie to benefit from better outcomes
whilst heailthcare costs ars reduced by
preventing the prescrption of costly, yet
unnacessary, treatments. Antibogy-based
companion dlagnostic tests are one way
of identifying patients rmost suited to
atregimant.

Simiiary. the use of targeted monocikonal
antibody treatments has bésn shown to
have greater sfficacy ond precision thon
traditional chemo- and radlo-theraples.
reducing patient side #ffects. To date, Just
over 100 MAbs have bean approved for
therapeutic use by the US FDA, with many
rnore In clinical trials.

t, ' 5,

Imp s for Ab

The Chiness market contributed over 16%
of Abcam’s catalogue sates In 2018/19,

up from ¢.5% n 2013 and represants o
significant long-term growth opportunity.
Our expectation Is that the Chlnese market
has the potential ta be s large os the US for
our businass in the next 15 yaars and we are
bullding up cur capabllities in the country
torefect this.

Implications for Abcam

As alseding provider of antibodies and
research raagents, Abcam’s ability to
provide scientists around the globe with
products they can trust, that are ot the
highest Integrity, along with the data
needed to support and validate their
resaarch s vital 10 our continuead success.

Qurinvestment In Innovative antibody
manufactunng fechnigques, such as
recombinant-bosed snginearing, and
powerful call aditing tools, such as CRISPR.
are helping us to ploneear antibody quality
ang valigation techniques and spesdup
theé accuradcy and paca of resaarch,

Implications for Abcam

Abcam's shieng capabllities In the design
and manufaciure of the highest quality
recombinant monoclonal antibocties

Is heiping us bulld a reputation asan
etfective partnerfor blopharmaceutical.
diagnostic and instfrument companies.

‘We are working with many companies
acrass the industry to develap antibodies
andimmunoqssays that they will jake fo
market for diagnostic and therapeutic
applications.

Related material
Qur strategic priorities - pages 28 to 3]

Related moterial
Qur strategic priodties - poges 28 10 31

Related material
Our sticategic pricrities - pages 28 to 31
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Our business model

How we crecate sustainable
vcalue for stakeholders over
the long term

Inputs
The resources and relationships we need to run our business
and create long-tarm value:

Our people

Qur people are fundamantat to our continued success.
Thelr skill and dedication enable us to fulfil our purpose.
Wa aim fo create a safe, fair and high-quality working
environment. We invest In the developrnent of our
amployaes and encourage the sharing of feedback and
ideas. We actively promote our culture, which focuses on
sarning the trust of all our stakeholders.

Related content
Corporate responsibility - pages 2210 27

Qur data and data analylics

Wae analyse and Interpret significant amounts of datain
ordes to better understand what customers need. We use
the Insights gained to inform our product deveiopment
pipaline in support of their research goals.

Research and development

We have leading antibody discovery, innovation and
manufacturing capoblilties that allow us to develop unique.
rellable products and technclogies which meet customer
naeds. We are Investing in cur R&D capatllities in adjacent
life sclence reagents where doing 50 will cliso strengthen

our antibody development capabliities. for example in
recombinant proteins, celllines and lysates, and Imaging
and multiplexing consurnables.

Our global footprint

We sell our products in over 140 countrles through a variety
of channels. Qur global distribution network means that

in most cases customers can have the product they need
working in their lak within 48 hours of ordering. Our
multilingual scientific support teams are on hand to help
customers around the world with technical queries.

Our partners

We work with partners, including third-party suppliers who
provide us with products, as wel as distributors and industry
partners who support the sale of our product portfolio. We
are transparent about how we work in tarms of ethics, quality,
the environment and general business principles, and aim
to bulld long-term collaborative relaticnships based on frust.

Our financlal resources

We have an attractive financlal profile and generate
significant free cash flow. As a pubilic listed company.

we have access 1o capltal through our sharsholder base.
We alse have access to sourges of third-party funding and
capital through our relationships with banks and other
financial institutions, Including our £200m RCF facllity.

Abcam plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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How we create and capture value
From Abcam’s inception, we hove Increased the value of
our products by adding performonce data that is readily

accessible 1o our consumers,

1. Gain insights into how our
customers wark and what

they need

Wa maintain regular diglogue
with key opinion lzaders at
Industry events, conduct
consumer surveys and focus
groups and are continuously
interacting with consumers
through our sclentific support
teams and other customers touch
points. This allows us to kasp up
with market and research tronds
and gain insights into our
customers In both academia and
Industry. In addition to these
opporfunities to listan, we make
extansive use of the data onatytics
frorn our wabsite and other data
sources to uncoverunmeat needs,
and then apply these laarnings,
Qs appropriate, 1o our product
developmaent pipeline.

Gaining

Offering

Learning

2. Prigritise high-value pathways
and targets, tailor and extend
product porttolia

We focus on the areas of greatest
technical and commercial need
andthen Inngvate, This starts

with anunderstanding of which
blological pathways and research
targets are mest important to
researchers. Once ws have
Identlfled a consumer need,

we use our portfolio of leading
antlbody and Immunoassay
technologlas to create unique.
effective salutions. We also cffer
arange of complementary
products that are related 10 these
pathways and targets. As we add
more data, we add more value to
the products and give reseorchers
confidence that the products wlll
work first tirme and avery time,



We are now expanding how we add value by increasing the

teedback mechanisrns for consumaers, acting on these insights

and providing products for difficult targets.

Prioritising

3. Quickly offer what consumers
need through digitol and offtine
channaels

Qur digital plarform plus

our affline channals provide
customaers with what they wanit
faster, wharavar thay ara.

and in the format thay prafer.

We continue 10 focus on ways 10
Improve the @ase and efficiancy
with which consumers are able
1o find and access tha products
anci services they nead. In
addition 1o our digital channels,
wg have an extansive range of
offine channals: Abcam-hosted
conferances. athar conferences
wa attend, our field soles learms.
and ouwr global customer andg
technical supportteams.

4. lsarning

We constantly lsam from our
consumer interactions and
Irnprove our offering as a result.

Broadening our oifering

We continuously review
opportunities to expand our
offering to consumers by
broadening our product range.
improving spsed to market and
accessing underpenatroted
consumaer groups In the markets
we serve,

Outputs
Geanarating long-term value for our stakeholdears:

QOur customers

Our perifolio of leading-edge antibody technologles.
comprehansive consumer insights, personalised support.
data. and continually growing range of high-quallty
research reagents help resaarchers around the world
accelerate sclentific discovery in the laboratory and apply
those discoveries In the clinic.

Our psople

Essential to our successis listening to our employees and
recognising their achlevements. Our people remain highly
motivated by the opportunities we provide to gain additionat
tkilis and experlence and to help advance thelr caraers

at Abcam.

Our sharsholders

Opaerating transparently and responsibly, we regularly
engage with our investors. We manage our business
to generate gHractive and sustoinable long-term
economic returns.

Our partners

Our product suppliers benefit from our giobol distriibution
network, digital platferm and recognised brand to support
the sales of thelr products. Qurindustry partners recelive
access 1o our products and technotogies. supporting the
development of antibodies and immunoossays that they are
cble to take to market for diagnostic and therapeutic use.

Our communities

We support arange of local inltiatives and work with
organisations 1o share best practice and knowledge In

out sector. We support young people with employment
opportunities, Intermships and work expearience where possible.

Qur sociaty

Through the provision of high-quallty research reagents we
are supparting progress of the Identlfication of blomarkers
for disease diagnosis. dissase-causing genes and drug
Interaction pathways, alding the developrment and
accurate prascripton of the effective treatments for diseass
as well as reducing waste In ressarch.

in addition. we create socio-etonomic bensfits for arange of
stakeholders Including generating income for governments
through our tax payments and providing employment across
our supply chaln and in the communities where we operate.
In 2018/19 we pold Income taxes of £13.5m.

Related content
Corporate rasponsibility - pages 22 to 27
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Corporate Responsibility (CR)

Behaving in a responsible
and ethical way is central
1o the sustainable success of
Abcam. We aspire to carry
out our business activities

to the highest ethical
stomdcards, act responsibly
and make a positive impact
in our interactions with all
our stakeholders.
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The Board takes ulimate responsibility for Corporate
Reasponsibility and is cermnmitted to developing and
Implementing appropriate policles that create and maintain
long term value. Sound business ethics help to minimise risk.
ensure legal compliance and enhance the Group’s efficiency.

Corporate Responsibility at Abcam
is focused on the following pricrities:

1. Delivering for our customers

2. Empowering our people

3. Working responsibly with our partners
4. Behaving ethically across our business
5. Supporting our communities




1. Delivering for our customers

Our primary purpose is to provide life scientists with the tools
and reagents thay nead to support thelr goals. 1o ensure that
weé address their needs, itis critical that we listen to them ond
offer praducts and services that are of the highest quality,
are effactive and are convenient o acceess,

Our products Qre used around the world to advance the global
understanding of blology and causes of disease which, In turn,
|13 driving new treatments and improvad health supporting

the UN’s Sustainable Development Goal 3 (Good Health

and weli-Being).

Whillst it is hard to quantitatively measure tha socletal benaetits
that flow from the use of our products, in 2018, Abcam’s
antibodies were cited in ovar 45,000 research papers globally
(source: CiteAD) and Abcom antibodies are now usedinseven
FDA approved companlon diagnostic assays.

Major Corporate Rasponsibility priorities relating to our customers
are based around ensuring:

- ourproducts are effective and ethically produced;

= we undarstand the naeds of our customers and provide
support so tha! they get the most out of our products: and

= wea safeguord user personal data that we monage as part
of our activities.

Effective products

Antibodies have a vital tole in blomedical research and
sclentific Journals are calling for greater reproducibility of data
In primary publications. Providing the highest quaility products
interms of specificity. sensitivity and consistency. fogether with
extensive product validation data is therefore o fundomental
driver of improved customer loyaity and our reputation with

tife science researchars.

We strive to provide scientists with products they can rely on,
which work as expected, avoiding wasted time and funding.
To this end, we continue 10 Invast In a varlety of inlfiotives across
the business to keep rQising quality standards. including our
*Knockout validation” programmae. As aresult of this ongeing
work, the level of product complaints fell again in 2018/19.

fo lts lowest everlevel.

Understanding needs and providing support

Wa continuously interact with consumers through our sclentific
support teams and other customer touch points Including
trade shows, surveys. focus groups and key opinion leaders,
The feedback trom these interactions s used to inform our
Innovation process and product development pipgline,

as well as improve our service offering.

Providing pre- and post-sales support to customers to ensure
they have what they need to carry out thair research Is
fundamentai to our proposition, We have continued to Invest
In our customer ond sclentific support teams during the year.
answring thaey are able to provide 24/7 technical support to
our customers.

Together, our support teams have dealt with 450,000 enquiries
last year. responding to the vast majority within 24 hours. Inthe
last 12 months we have aiso leunchad an online "Live Chat’
service avallable through our website to make It easier for
customers to resolve issues.

We are abie to measure real-time satistaction levels through
our transactional Net Promotor Score (tNPS), whichisa
stratagic KPiof the business. Customars are encouraged

to provide feedback after every interaction with us, with over
5.000 tNPS surveys completed last year, As valuable as the
sceres are the verbatim comments received, which give our
teams actionabie insights on what we can do to Improve

our products and service,

Overthe yeor we achleved a tNPS score of 5% In 2018719
(2017/18: 64%). The scora refiacts the iImpact of changing our
survey provider in November 2018 to a more customer frlendly
format, The mechanism by which customer feedback is
obtained changed and resulted in a tNPS outcome that Is
approximatsly 10% lower than under the previous mechanism,

Maintaining dota privacy and security

We have defined and implemented relevant policies and
procedures to ensure compliance with all applicable data
protectionlegisiation. including the EU General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR) which comae into force in May
2018. Qur data privacy policy Is avoilable on our website at
www.abcam.com/content/privacy-policy.

A simple ordering process, gredt customes service and
delivery the next day, what more could I ask for? Oh, and
the antibodies [ ordered also worked perfectiyl

Customer feadbock, tNPS survey
July 2019
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Corporate responsibility continued

2. Empowering our people

Attracting ond retaining the best talent is crucial to the delivery
of our strategy and sustainability s an orgonlsation, Across our
global locations we employ over 1,150 people. including over
300 who ara focused on research and development.

OCur people priorities are focused on creoting g positive,
healthy and dynamic work environment where people feel
valued, respected and treated tairly. Wa measura employee
angagement annually andin the latest annual global
employee survey. conductedin July 2019, we were delighted
fo see engagement levels rise for their fifth year In a row,

to aracord level.

During the yea:, we have continued to enhance our culture
and make improvements to our performance. engagement
and training and development activitias in order to deliver
against our goal of making Abcam an exceptional place

to work,

Inspiring and rewarding our people

We alm to create a positive. collaborative culture and

ensure everyone Is aware of the contribution they can make.
We want employees Yo be engoaged and motivatad and hove
opportunities to develop and progress. In 2017 we launched
our global behaviours across the organisation - being
Dedicated. Aglle and Audacious - and have continued a
programme of initiatives to champlon these behavlours across
our organisation over the last 12 months.

We recognise that rewarding employaes fairly, equitabiy

and competitively is crucial te attracting and maintaining
amotivated workforce. In support of this, we undertake regular
reviaws of our reward data to ensure that any potential )
remuneration Issues can be quickly detected and resolved.

In September 2018, we launched ‘AbShare’, an innovative
share pian availgble to all permanent employees, globally.

The plan, which won “Most innovative & Creative Plan Design’
at the GEC 2019 awards. was deasigned to encourage broad-
based share ownersh|p across the word, creating alignmernt
around the organisation and helping Abcarmn to attract and
retain the highest calibre people. Take-up of the plan at launch
was 88% across our global employee base,

Finally, we offer a range of incentives and management
bBonusas tied to Group and individual performance with
afignment between an individual’s contribution and the
delivery of our strategic goals.

500+

Pecple atteanding jeadearship and
management training
programme
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Global people priorities

Our
global

people
strategy

Training and career development

The continuous development of our people remains a core
pillar of our peopie strategy. Highlights of our fraining and
development activities over the last 12 months include:

= Record onling and otfline training undertaken
by global colleagues;

= Roll-out of new performance management approcach
‘Parformance with Purpose’, following a successful
pliot in 2018;

= Leadership and management training programmes
extended to over 500 employees;

= Continued expansion of ourleading UK apprentice schema.
with 34 active apprenticaships across all levels, including
seven Senior Leaders Masterships (MBA). making Abcam
one of the top 3% of companies in the UK offering higher
level gpprenticeships.

In the latast employee survey, 9% of employees rated they
felt ‘positive” or ‘very positive’ about having their learning
and development needs met.



Diversity and inclusion

Itisimportant that our business includes people from different
backgrounds and cultures who have diverse skills and
exparence, We ore committed to providing equal opportunities
for ali potentiol and existing employeesIn @ working
environment which is tree from discrimination.

Since reporting our first gender pay gap resultsin April 2018,
we have continued to focus on achieving graater gender
balance at all lavels of out organisation through the action plan
wa shared ot that time, We have set in motion a comprehensive
review of our policles and practices for parental lgave and
flexible working based on employee feedback. We have
implemented a recruitment target of at least one worman on
every shortlist for senior leadership vocancles. Our Women In
Leadsarship group continues to galn momentum and we have
also established internal networks and mentorship programmaes,
We have aiso introduced o scientific approach o measuring
potential with the aim of reducing unconsclous and subjecﬂve
blas In the developmaeant of our people.

Whilst our mean gender pay gap rose for the period to April
2019, the figures in the teport ware basad on pay Information
from Apxll 2018, meaning the action plaon we committed to
iast yaar wilt not have had on impact on therm, We have seen
Indications that these actions are starting to bear frult,
Including In the last yeor:

- 67% of promotions to senior lecdership positions wera
1Or wormen;

~ 62% of external hires into our most senior job levels
were women; ond

= 87% ot senior leadership vacancles had atigast one temale
caondidate on the shortlist during the recrultment process.

This year we also launched our global Diversity and Inclusion
Intranet site, providing a home for our Women in Leadership
initiative, LGBIQ, family networks and ofher groups.

o)
67%
of promotions to seniorisadership
positions were for women

87%
of genlor leadership vacancies

had ot least one fernale
candidote on the shortlist

Employee well-being. health and safety

We provide a sate work environment tor amployees and ansure
we follow legal requirements and best practice standards.
Employee participation in the delivery of our heatth and safety
strategy Is cruclal ond reprasentativas from all offices are
invoived In championing healthy and safe working practices
and supporting the aonnual sofety audlt. Last year we recorded
five days of lost ime due to accidents orinjuries in the year.
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Corporate responsibility continued

3. Working responsibly with cur partners

We aim to build long-term, mutually benaficiol relationships
with the partners, suppliers and distributors we rely on to meet
the needs of our customers.

Behaving ethically and responsibly extends to those partners,
and we therefore expect our suppliers and distributors to
demonstrate a culture thot reinforces ethical and lawful
behaviours and ensure all aspects of thelr business complies
with applicable laws and regulations, both in the country In
which they operate, and in the country to which the services
or products are supplied.

We select suppliers that adhere to high-quallty and ethical
standards, and monitor their performance through audits,
raviewing the progress of any corrective action plans and
measuring of key performance Indicators.

All new suppliers and distributors are required
to sign up to and abide by our Supplier and
Distributor Codes of Conduct. Since launching
new Codes in 2017/18 a programme has also
been In place to transition gl existing suppliers
and distributors to these new Codes, which are
available on our website and dedicated
supplier wab portal,

Supplier Code of Conduct

Anti-bribery and
corruption

Employment
practices

Animal
welfare

Health and
safety
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4. Behaving ethically across our business

8ehaving In a socially responsible way and reducing our
impact on the environment helps protect our reputation and
underpins our long-term future.

Allemployees are required to undertake regular training
across key toplcs such as Anti-bribery and Corruption and
GDPR legistation, and our whistleblowing hotfine and portal,
‘Speak-Up’, enables employaes to provide feadback or raise
CONCErns anenymaously.

Our legal and complionce function works with the Audit
and Risk Committee and the Boord to provide visibility to
our leadership of complianca inftiatives and ensure Board
oversight of adherence to Abcam’s ethical principles.

Reducing our impact on the environment

Wae recognise that, as a resuit of our business activities, we
create negative impacts on the environment and understand
that a domaged environment has broader consequences for
the health and well-being of society. Operating sustainable
practices s therefora Important to Abcam’s long-term success
and we continue o 100k at ways to reduce our environmental
Impact and improve rasource efficlency.

As an online business, the biggest environmentat impacts from
our business are carbon emissions from customer deliveries,
the running of our buildings. employee travel and waste from
our packaging. We are focusing on these areas to improve
operational and resource efficlency,

Initigtives to reduce our environment impact over the last
12 monthsinclude:

- Exploring alternative sustainable packaging options for our
most commeon box size which accounts for 75% of our global
customer shipments;

- Looking at ways to significantly reduce the amount of
plastic in our shipments: ond

= Trialling cligital-only datasheets, with the potenticl of saving
one milllon sheets of paper per year.

Ethical conduct from each of us is essential and nen-negotiable
at Abcam. Doing so is the only path to being the trustworthy
partner to help life scientists discover more, faster.

Alan Hirzel
Chlef Executive Officer



5. Supporting our communities

Abecam has along history of involvement with local communities
by supporting and partnerng with organisations that help
advaonce life science research. We aim to help communities
through programmes that inspire the next generation of
scientists, and support life science research through corporate
giving and fundralsing activities. Last year we established a
global Charity and Cemmunities Policy. and a UK committee
to maximise the impact of our support. This will be rolled out
globally next yeor.

Charitable causes and jocal projects

Giobally. we support and runmany locat charity and community
projects which are decided upon by local employee teams.
From charity events to extreme sports activities to ralse money
for our local communities around the world and are an
important way of enabling our employees to feel engaged and
connecied with those communities. Locol stories are shared
and celebrated regionally and across our organisation through
avarlety of employee communlcation channels. We also make
donations to local, national and intermational charities,

Partnering with In2Science to encouroge the next gensration
of sclentists

In25clence is an award-winning charity founded by research
sclantists with the mission to help young people from under-
represented backgrounds prograss to science degrees andinto
professions while promoting diversity and equal opportunities.

Abcarn’'s involvernent with In2sclence tbegan in 2016 and
continued throughout this year, with the launch of the Abcam
In2Science Scholars progromme. where five secondary schook
students joined a year-long educational programmae based

In Cambridge, UK.
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Our strategic priorities

Our strategic priorities

Our strategy is designed
to increase growth and
improve our long-term
financial performoance.

An overview of the strategic
cand operctional milestones
reached in 2018/19 and our
tuture priorities are provided
in the following tables: |

Abcam pie Annual Report and Accounts 2019
28



Sustain antibody @ Expandinrelated @ [nvestin operating
and digital magketing growth markets capabilities for 2x 2016
leadership scale by 2023

Long-tatm objeclive Long-term objective Long-lerm objactive

Genarcote above market revenue growth
in our core rasaqreh antibody markat

Generate valua through the addition of
new product ranges and services ond by
axtending qur geographic penetration

Invest in our peopie, systems and
nfrastructure 1o ansure we have the
appopriate capabliities to support
our business os It grows

Priorities for 2018/19

= Davelop new products focused on
high-vaiue areas, based on customaers’
research nedds

- Enhance our product validation ond
ralse product Quallty stondards across
the cotglogue

« Implement the next phase of gur China
growth strategy

Priorities for 2018/19

= Grow our IMmmMunoossay business Inline
with multi-year oapliation

- Expand the numbaer ot CP&L Abcam
Inside” projects and framework
agresments

= Launch teams to deveiop ona 10 two naw
capability areas

Priorities tor 2018/19

- Successfully deploy néxt phases

of Oracie Cloud ERP

Roll-out equity particlizotion scheme

to global amployess

= Successfully move UK feam to the
new headquarters on the Cambridge
Blomedical Campus

= Cormtinue to fill orenhance ous capabiitties
across supply chain and monufachering,
17 and new growth projects

What we achieved

= Delivered primary antibady revenue
growth ahead of thae global market
growth rate

- Puplishad over 2.000high-performance
recombinant antibodies. Inctuding new
farmulatians, Increasing our range to
over 18,000

=~ Further enhonced our torget selection
process to Incraase the success of
new products

- Continued to work with suppliars 1o add
validation data os well as delivering
Improvements in our own range througn
snhanced antibody validation and
production techniques

= Continued tc grow and enhance
our digital foofprint. driving better
sngagemaent and canvarsion

= Further expanded electronic catalogue
caonnections to large-volume customers

What we achieved

= Published Svet 250 new SimpleStep
ELISA® immunoassay praducts on
the cotalogue

=~ Further developed FiraPlex® multiplex
plattorn, validating over 170 palis
of anttbodies and launching a high
throughput preduct (Firaplex®-HT)
to simplify and speed up warkflows

= Continued to expand addressable
marketin custom products & licensing,
Incuding completing oves 160 projects
ond executing over S0 agreements
with pharmaceutical and diagnostic
developmaent partners

= Launched proteéinsclience teom
to expand our reacomblnant protein
progducion copabilty

What we achleved

= Successtully transitionsd the financial
and non-stock procurement modules
of the Group's Oracle ERP system

Successfully launched aglobol
amployee shace ownership tchems,
with strong employee take up of 88%

Completed the construction of our
giobotheadguarten on the Comprdge
Biomedical Carmpus on budget

~ Further investment In our globol teams,
including corporate deveiopment,
product development. digital marketing
and global supply chaln and
manutacturing tunctions - Including new
5VPs of Corporate Development and
Supply Chain ond Manutfacturing

Link o KPls
= Total revenue growth (CER)

= Recombinant revenue growth (CER)
- tNPS

Link to XPla
- Total revenue growth (CER)

= Immunoassay revenue growth (CER)

Unk to KPls
= Adlustad Profit Befors Tax

Link ta Principal Risks

1, Increasad competition

3. Avallapiiity of research tunding

4. ERP project/IT Infrastructure

§. Cybarsecurity

&. Loss of output

7. Inadaquate resdurcus

9. Reputational risk

1. Non-compiancs with igws ond reguiations

Link to Principal Risks

1. Increased competition

2. Exacution ot acquisitions

3. Avallablitty of rassarch funding

4. ERP project/IT Infrastiucture

5, Cybersecurity

6. Loss of output

7. Inagequate resources

9. Reputationol sk

1, Non-compliance with laws and reguiations

Link to Principal Rlsks

3. Avallability of research funding
4, ERP projeciiT Intrastruchure

5. Cybarsecurity

6. Loss ofoutpuyt

7. Inodequate rescurces

9. Reputotional risk
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Our strategic priorities continued

Sustain attractive © Supplement organic s ]
economics growth - acquisitions

cnd partnerships
Long-term objective Long-term objective

Maintain operational stciency and
cost effectiveness 1o support sustainable,
profitoble growth

Make seiacted partnerships ond
acquisttions that add 1o our competitive
odvantage and suppleameant our arganic
ravanua growth

Priarities for 2018719
= Continue to reciise productivity gains

= Move to dimect distribution In at least one
more market

Priorities for 2018/19
~ Cantinue 1o strangthen relationships
for future deals

What we achieved
- dentified and delivered operating
efficlencles and produchvity gainsg

- Continued to Increase sales of higher
margin products, supporting an
Incraass in gross product margin of 6.6%,
10 70.5%

- Delivered our new global headqguarters
Inthe UK on budget

~ Executed contingency plans to ensure
customaer disruption Is minimised in the
eventthe UKleavesthe EU withouta
withdrawal agreement ’

What we achieved

= Appolnted new 5VP Corporate
Deavelopment to lecd dellvery
of acquisition strategy

- Completed the tuck-In acquisition
of Calico Blolabs

« Entered £200m RCF, providing additlonal
financlal flexibility for tuture corporate
transactions

-~ Continued to strangthen relationships
and expand the opportunity set across
the Industry

Link to KPis
= Adjusted Profit Before Tax

= Retumn on Caphtal Employed

Link to KPis
= Total revenue growth (CER)

= Adjusted Profit Before Tax

Link to Principal Risks

1. increased competition

4, ERP projact/ITinfrastructure

§. Cybersecurity

&. Loss of putpu?

7. iInadequate resources

8. Inadequate acqulisitionintegration

9. Reputationairisk

10.Forelgn exchange movements

1. Non-compllance with laws and reguiations
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tink to Principal Risks

1. Increased competition

2. Exscution of acquisitions

4. ERP project/Ninfrastructure

7. Inadeguats resourcas

8. lnadequate acquisition integration
9. Reputational sk



Future
strategic
priorities

Sustain and extend Drive continued expamsion  Build organisational
cntibody and digital into complementary scalability and sustain
marketing leadership maaket adjacencies value crection

Long-tarm objactive Long-term objective Lang-term objective

Ganergte above morket revenue giowth
In our core rasearch ontibody markest

Generate value through the addition
of new product ranges and services
for our custamers

invest In our people, systems and
infrastructyre 10 ensure wa have the
appropfiate copablfities to support
owurbusiness as it Qrows whilst driving
operational afficiency

Priorities

~ Davelop best Inclass binders 1o high vaiue
targets, pathways ond research areds

-« Expand industry lsading quality and
validotioninitiatives

- Execute our China growth strategy
to malntain regional l@adgrshiy

- Relnvent our digital channel to aad

Priorities

- Bacome olaader inlmmunoqssays
through continued innovation and
daveloprment of our proprietary portialio

= Bulld on our position as g leading

antibody discovery pariner tor

blopharma

Invest in intemal innovation copabliities

1o support further portiolio developrment

Priorities

= Drive productivity improvemants ocross
our opearations to enhance margins ond
cash flow

- Bulld tolent dapth and investin the
potenticlof our feams

- Complete IT transformation

- Optimise facilities footprint ana

volue fos customers automote manufochu: rOCesses
ocross proteomic research tools ond ke
reagents
Link o KPis Link o KPis link 1o KPls

= Totalrevenue growth (CER)

~ Revenue growth (CER) fromin-house
products (Catalogue)

- MNPS

- Total ravenue growth (CER)

= Revenue growth (CER) from in-house
products (Catalogue)

- INPS

- Torqlrevenue growth (CER)
= Adjusted Profit Before Tax
= Return on Capital Employed

Link to Principal Risks

1. Incréqsad compatition

3. Avallabiiity of research funding

4, ERP project/IT Infrastructure

S. Cybersscurity

4. Loss of output

7. Inadequate resources

9. Reputaticnal risk

1. Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Link te Principal Risks

1. Increased competition

2. Execution of acquisitions

3. Avallqblitty of research funding

4. ERP project/IT Infrastructure

$§. Cybersecurity )

6. Loss of output

7. iInadequate resources

2. Repuiational risk

1. Non-compilance with laws and regulations

Link te Principal Risks

3. Availabiiity of résearch funding
4. ERP projact/IT infrastructure

5. Cybarsacurlty

4. Loss of output

7. Inadequate resaurces

9. Reputational risk
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Our KPIs

How we measure success

We measure our performance
against a numlber of strategic
cnd financial KPIs. Success
against our strategic KPIs
forms a component of the
Executive Directors’ and senior
management’s remunercrtion.

Parformance of our KPis in tha last 12 months are as follows:

Abcarn plc Annual Repart and Accounts 2019
n

Strategic KPIs

Recombinant amtibody CER
revenus growth

22%

2018/19 target: 20%+

Description
Constant currency revenue growth of allrecombinant
antibodies published In our catalegue.

Recombinant antibodies are synthesised from modified
DNA In an artificial system that permits rapid production.
There are over 18,000 recombinant antibodles published
onour catalogue.

Why this metric is important:

Recombinant antibodles. which can offer several benefits
to our custormars, including improved consistancy,
sensitivity and specificity. are afundamental contributor
to our growth strategy.

How we performed:
Recombinant revenues grew 22.4% in the year. ochleving
the target set at the start of the year of over 20%.

Alignment to 2018/19 strategy

L JOlO0/0[0

Linked to Executive Management remuneration?
Yes. Performance against the Group's strategic KPI's
determines part of managemaeant’s Annual Bonus Plan
(ABP) payout.

Related material

Principalrisks and uncertainties - pages 39 to 44

Chlef Executive Officer’s review and operational report
-pages 10to 14

Remunearation Report - pages 7510 86



Qur five strategic priorities

Sustain antibody and digital
markating leadership

Expand in refated

growth markets

Invest in opergiing copoliities
for2x 2016 scale by 2023

Sustain attraciive
aconomics
Supplament arganic growth - g' !
acquisitions ond parinarnhips
I
Immunoassay CER A1 Transactional Net Promoter Score e
revenue growth ANPS)

22%

2018/19 target: 20%+

59%

2018719 target: 57-67%

|

Description
Constant curreancy revenue growth of oll innmuncassay
products published on our catalogue.

IMMuNoassays are muiti-cormnpaonant products compnsing
ontibodies and other raagents that are used to detect and
quantify a wide range of blological molecules.

Description

Transactonal (often referred to as *touchpoint’) Net
Promoter Score (tNPS) is an industry standard benchmark
used to gauge the loyalty of our customer relationships
basad on their Interactions with us,

Why this metric Is important:

Irnmunoassqys remalin a strategicolly important growth
opportunity for Abcom andt we continue te Invest and
Innovate to increase the use of our market-leading
ontibodiasin these products as rapidly as possible,

Why this metric is important:
Allows us to monltor customer satistaction on a timely | |
basis. halping to determine the likekhood of consumers
recommending Abcam to a colleague.

Financial siatements

How we performed:
Immunoassay CER revenue growth was 21.9%, achieving
the 1arget set at the start of the year of over 20%.

How we performed:
Wae achleved a 12-month tNPS score of 59% in the year.

In November 2018, the Company appointed ¢ new tNPS

survay partnar. As g consaquenca. tha mechanism by which

customer feedbackis obtained changed and resulted in a }
tNPS outcome that Is approximately 10% lower than under

the pravious mechonism.

Allgnment to 201819 strategy

0] : 10]0[O]

Alignment to 2018/19 strategy

L [8l000]

Linked to Executive Managemaent remuneration?
Yes. Performance against the Group's strateglc KPI's
determines part of management’s ABP payout.

Linked to Executive Management remuneration?
Yes. Perforrmnance against the Group's strategic KPI's
determines part of manogemant’s ASBP payout.

Relatad material

Principalrrigks and uncertainties - pages 39 to 44

Chiof Executive Officer's review and operational report
~-pages 10to 14

Remuneration Report - pages 75 to 84

Related material

Princlpal risks and uncertainties - pages 39 to 44

Chief Executive Officers review and operational report
-pages 1610 14

Remuneration Report - pages 75 to 86
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Our KPIs continued

Financiat KPIs

Total CER revenue growth A

Adjusted Profit Before Tax

9.2%

2017/18: 10.7%
2016/17.9.9%

£839m

2017/18: £81.6m
2016/17: £64.6m

Description

Total revenue growth of the business on o constont
exchange rate basls (CER). CER Is ochiaved by applying
the pricr year's aoctual exchange rates to the current
year'sresults

Description

Profit Before Tax based on the related IFRS measure but
excluding adjusting items (see note 7 of the consolidated
financial statements for more Information).

Why this metric is Important:
Total revenue growth is a key metric for monitoring the
Group's parformance and abllity to drive growth.

Calculating growth on g CER basis allows management to
identify the relative year-on-year performance by removing
the Impact of currency movements which are cutside of
management’s control.

Why this metric is important:

The Board considers this medasurement of profitability o
viable alternative to underlying profit. it represents a key
metric of overall business profitability.

How we periormed:

Growih of 9.2% was below [ast year's rate of 10.7%, reflecting
{ower growthin EMEA and Japan. CP&L perfarmance also
Impacted the overall growth rate.

How we performed:
Adjusted Profit Before Tax grew by 2.8% In the year.

Alignment o 2018/19 strategy

00000

Alignment to 2018/19 strataegy

Olol- 11

Linked to Executive Management remuneration?
Yes. Performance against the Group's strategic KPI's
determines part of management's LTIP payout.

Linked to Executive Management remuneration?
Yas. Parformance against the Group's strategic KPI's
detarrmines part of management s LTIP payout.

Related material

Principalirisks and uncertainties - pages 39 to 44

Chlef Executive Cffilcer’s review and cperational report
-pages 1010 14

Remuneration Report - pages 7510 86

Abeam ple Annual Repert and Accounts 2019
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Related material

Princlpal risks and uncertainties - pages 3¢ to 44

Chief Executive Officer’s review and operational report
-pages 10to 14 :

Remuneration Report - pages 75 to 86



Return on Capital Employed

20.8%

2017/18: 22.2%
2016/17: 19.6%

Description

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) is calculated by
dividing adjusted operating profit by total.capital employed
af the and of the period.

Capital employed s calculated by subtracting the Group’s
current iabilitles from its total assets.

Why this metric is important:

The Board belleves that ROCE Is o key tool In measuring

the Group’s financial efficiancy and ability to create future
growth in value.

The Group attempts to maintain ROCE at g level well above
the Group’s estimated cost of caplicl.

How we performed:

The Group’s ROCE was 20.8% for the year, amodest decline
onlast year but significantly above the Group’s estimated
Welghted Average Cost of Caphtal (WACC).

Alignment to 2018719 strategy

00O O]

Linked to Exacutive Management remuneration?
No :

Related material

Principal risks and uncertainties - pages 39 to 44

Chief Executive Officer's review and operational report
-pages 10to 14

Remuneration Report - pages 75 to 86

Our five strategic priorities

Sustain ontibody and gigitol
marketing leadership

Expandin related
growth markets

Invest In apenating capabillties
for 2x 2014 scole by 2023

Susiain attraclive
aconomics

Supplemant organic growth -
acquisitions and parinerthips

Qur new Strategic KPis
We have revised our KPls moving Into 2019/20 to ratlect the
directicn of the business and strategy for sustainable growth:

. 2019720
Revised KPis for 2019/20: target
Revenue growth from In-house products-? 12%-15%
Custemer engagermaent: transactional NPS (1NPS) 54%-650%

1 Afconsiontexchaonge rates.
2 Catalogueonty.
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Risk overview

Managing risk to ensure
we sustain our growth

! 1 Risk management at Abcam
Abcam S I]'Sk mmagement Effective risk management is essentiol to safeguarding

framework, policies and s s Ao
procedures dre deS]_g’ned The diagram illustrates the structure of the fremewaori,

to identify, prevent and The key slements of Abcam'srisk management framework ore:
mltngte risks in the Risk governance and culture

execution of the Group’s fo nskmanagement. Tis IEudes emoedaing on apmropriats
strategy and day-to-day Govemance and cveright over Abcam's sk management
2_11?;;0‘1;‘11%??3 ; Silggggh ;}?}ent anogamant octivities 1 the AU anG sk CommItie (ARC).
can completely elin?inate mranagemens (aling win e polkiss repondoifios and
uncertainty, Abcam aims e et e srems eccne

toensure it is only eXposed o monioing srssrassonsan.
to approp Ilate I]'Sks Whlc:h,' The Board girms to embed an appropriate risk culture through
care mmlaged effectlvely 1n Implementing policies andrisk oppetites which limit situations

that could be detrimental to the organisction. The risk culture

) ')
CtCCOIdCII‘lce Wlth the GIOLlp S encourages all levels of the organisation to take responsibility
: : for risk management. This message Is underpinned by Abcam's
I].Sk Gppetlte . Code of Conduct, *How we do things ot Abcam’, which seeks
1o foster an environment in which a high level of Integrity and
ethical behaviour is expected and requiredin all aspects of
Abcom’s operations.

Risk appetite .

Risk appetite describes the types and amount of risks that the
Board is willing to take in the achlevement of Abcarm’s strategic
and operational objectives, serving os a boundary to strategy.
In setting risk appetite, the Board has consldered the
entrepreneurial and collaborative spirit that has supported

the rapld growth of the business to date.

Risk management at Abcam

Scatabillity of the business is supported by setting appropriate
risk appetite and reinforcing policies and controls which ensure
growth, Abcam Is committed to mdintalning high ethical
standards and complying with the applicable laws and
regulations of the countrles in which we operate. Furtharmore,
the Group has no appetite for significant reputational risk or

for not providing appropricte facilities ond tools for its staff

to operate effectively.

LY
Ld

During the year, the Board has considered and approved
risk appetite In relation to each principal risk. together with
mitigoting actions, Risk appetite statements are embedded
In the nsk register, risk policy and everyday risk management.

bsiean/esuouieacSfeinynd

Kentitcation/Evaluation/imitigation 4)’

S04 U0 ANOIS)

oYy joulBu|
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Ienlification and evoluation of sk Having ol the fisk monagement 1

The Boond hos identified the pancipol ske which could offect above. ihe that

the ochievement of s s and blecth # has aken ol recsonable steps to sotisly el that the sisk

ncluding risks that would ADCOn el m 0 fromework and has ol

JOIeNCY Of Iuicty. A formol process has b risia up 10 the dote of approval of the Annual Report

for Ihe ELY 1o itentify and sk QoIng bass. and Accounts 201

supported by Group Anonce fhyough reguial sk inferviews W

and queshonnares, Principol vis
v-t.. i has in the

Usinga rigk reQisher, fisks ara ostassed ond t—ngi.%ggin ﬂ..:..:!.!svﬂ.

uao.scoag;g apre-defined scoring marx of R g:.xz peitive odvontage canbe
gow i five gligﬁni m
maieial dsia, s determined by the Board, ore designated o3

Responding fo risk prinCipal isks,

Risk response strolegies ore selecied by management o

ansurs i are appropriately mitigoted ond their sevedty i During the yecr. the omied out

reducad ¥ onaccepiable level. The Boord reviewa ond agreess  of the principal risia tocing the Compony. Whilst the Group Is

he riak L'} reQuicny for axpased to many risis, the Booed hos determined ihat oft the

offectiveness ONG 8NIUNNG OCHON faken remain suffick - aly rporied in the 2008 Avnual Report

Where appropririe, cerfoln arectt Of riek ore furiher mitigated and AcCounts remain i most significant, In reoching this

by extemal insuronce. conciusion 1he Boord has considensd the UK Corporate
Govemonce Code 2015 (The 2014 Code) requiremants fo

K ol control ond give dus fegond 10 rsks 1o Ihe Group’s thalegy. The new UK

Abcam hos sslablished a fromework of conirols which Corporate Govemance Code 2018 (the 2018 Code)is

gggﬂﬁio.gﬂﬁegoa %.ﬂaﬁgﬁﬁﬁgssgg

Q. Thase d help gi!&aaogﬂzisiou% 22222

10 enwme ihe Monog t oo Jing of ossedt. i amonner ihat s at lsatt equivaient to Abcom's oo.ignn §

The ol for th hos bex fwough  with the 2006 Code. Detalls of compliance with ihe 2016 Code

The implermeniation of the lol reporting and complionce  ore tet ot inthe o page 3.

madiuie within the recently implemented Oracle Qo...n_ ERP.

in addition, ol business areas review controls reguiany and Asncied in ihe prios yoor, Brexh and the Amencan politicol

dwing the yaarir Deen made londscape confinue 1o couse uncertainty in the business

inihe area of cyber secunty, vand, h these wr [: iderad
10 bat covarad within the breadih of the exieing prncipol risky,

The risk manop: by In order o Oddress the business sisic onocioted with Brext,

ADCOm's intemnal oudit function which s oulrourced IO XPWG  1he Group hon 38t up on addifional distroution Two in the

LLP. The intemal cudit the Nethark that deliveries fo Eurcpeon custornan

ond supports the idendification. monttoning ond reporing on inthe sventota ...Qnuaa.. ansl.aa..tn The Group

key orocs of risk. ortinues fo t of Brexit ond
3(5203623.23&?&!0#

sk monitoring and reporiing
giggbgg-gﬂoitﬂi Further adcttional information on the Group's financial riak

uses dashboards ond haat maps which Rusirate the relaiive finonciol statements.

severity of exsting tisia (ncluding ony Changes) and smenging .

rsks. AQreed sk response stiategies om olso reportad which There may be olher which ona
enable chollenge of the odequacy of ony miigating condrols 1o the Group or which could Hbecome maternial in the future.

and actons, These risks may cause the Sroup’s results 1o vary materially from
fad revalts. The Group A
of Abcam'’s rigk any SMeIging risks.
:ﬁ.ﬁoiﬁﬁ!!:ﬂo%; scdoing it
L: heFRC’s Q.!l 0 The principal dsks. their inkoge o Abcom'isirategy ond an
Contol and Reloted Fi R Q. faking of how the Group mitigaes each risk is set out
Into account fhe ncrune, uﬂﬂﬁio__.:on.ﬂﬂ o..vaoo.uc.at.
Further Information on the process appiled by the Boord
T reviewing e sHactiveness of Abcom's syshem of ek
t and rtvol s 3t outin the Audit
ﬂﬁxﬁno.!l:oou-ugo:uoo! 33333




Risk overview continued

Summary of risk management in pursuit of our strategic objectives

Risk categories

Strategic priorities

|marketing leadership

Inves! in opauating capabliities

fof 2x 2014 scole by 2023

actuisttions and partneeships

Strategic risks

Increased competiion: specifically pinpointed
to disruptive developments

& Susiain antibody and digiol a

& Sustalnathsactive
aconomics

identification, valuation and pursuit of acquisitions
and Irvastments

Q4 [puppiament osganic growtn- 0o

Avallability of research funding

Operational risks

ERP project/If Infrastructure

<

Cyber securlty risks Including loss of data and
wabsita Inaccessibliity

Loss of output ot any Group manufacturing
or legistics facility

Business growth Is constralined by not having appropriate
people, resources and Infrastructure in place

NESRR AN

NNANENRAN
NANANAYAN

Inadequata Integration or leverage df acquired
businesses

Reputationol risks

Ol 0] N O ] b W | =~

Reputational risk

<

ST S K] [pomaeidoon @)

<

NANAN

Financial risks

10 Significant exchange rate movermnents

Compliance risks

11 Non-compliance with laws ond regulations

<

NEVSEN
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Table of principal risks

ne of change during the year it llustzoted
by the amow In the "Changse’ column, Pleose note that
this refers to the overoll change in the rsk to the Group
following mitigating octions.

Our five stratagic priorities

Sustain onfibody ond digital
markeling leadarship

Expond in ialaled
growth markets

e invastin oparating capablities
for 2x 2014 scale by 2020

7' Increcsad dsk Sustain attractive
SCONOMICS
--) No change to risk Supplamaent orgonic growth -
N Decreased risk acquistions ond parinerships
Strategic risks
Increased competition: specitically pinpointed Identification, valuation and pursuit of acquisitions 2

to disruptive developments

and investments

Change in year

Change Inyear

Principal risk and relevance

The risk of cornpetitors infroducing new technologies,
channels and workarounds to better respond to rapldly
evolving sclentific and technclogical developments,
consumaer neads, strangthening product offerings and
routes to market.

Abcam operates in a fragmented and competitive market.
To maintaln Abcamn's position as the market leader in primary
antibodies and to gain share In the other markets in which
Abcam operates. it is essential to stay at the forefront of
industry developments.

Potentialimpacts
= Demand for Abcam products adversely offected

= Inability to achleve long-term growth
- Inabliity o expand into adjacent markets

Key mitigating activities
- Malntain market knowledge and monitor competitor
developments and technolagles

- Maintain large network of product suppliers
and collaborators

« Waell-established and progressive product content.
datasheets, supply channels and logistic network

= Maintaininvestment in R&D and consumer insight
programmes

= Appropiiate intellectual property registrations
and enforcement

= Continuousimprovement in product quality to better
meet customer nesds

= Hiring ond developing the right and talented pecple
= Continued measurerment of Abcam brand strength

= Continuous commitment to product differentiation
through innovation

~ Predictive analytics used to Identify high-value targets

Principal risk and relevance
Abcom fallsto acquire businesses which coulkd bring
added value.

Risks within acquisition targets are not fully Identified which
affacts the valuation or acquisition rationale.

The valuation of acquired businasses is not justified as a result
of fallure to hit technical or commercial targets.

Potantial impacts
= Dilution of the Abcam brand and/or cistraction
of management from more valuable initiatives

- Commerclal underperforrmancea and/or the absorption
of resource which affects existing operations

= Investment returns not achieved and shareholder
value eroded

Key mitigating activities

- External communications maintained with advisers and
owners/management of businessas 1o ensure Abcam
achieves sufficient visibility of businesses/potential
transactons across the market

= Investment ininternal M&A capabliifies including hiring

new SVP Corporate Development*

= Potentlal targets priortisad to ensure sufficient time and
care spent on diligence

- Rigorous due diligence process conducted using internal
and external experts to ensure Abcam fully evaluates
the costs and benefits expacted to accrue before any
business purchase

- Business case for acquisition articulated clearly ond
key assumptions (financlal. technlcal and operatonal)
identified and stress-tested to ensure sutficlent contingency
in the acquisition process

= Specialist reviews of technology and business
developments in the market continue

=~ Devealopment of financing strategQy. Including £200m
Revolving Credlt Facllity (RCF) entered into to provide
additional flexibility for corporate transactions™

“New or sxpanded mitigotion,

Alignment to strategy

00500

Alignment to strategy
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Table of principal risks

The direction of change during the yearis iftustrated
by the arrow in the *Change’ column. Please note thot
this refers 1o the overali change In the risk 1o the Group
following mitigating actions.

z Increased risk

-9 Nochange torisk
N Decreassd risk

Strategic risks

Operational risks

Avallabllity of research funding

ERP projact/IT infrastructure

Change In year

-

Change in year

-

Principal risk and relevance

The risk of a substantial reduction in funding for life sclences
rasaarch as aresponse to g fiscal contractionin one of
Abcam's significant territories, Brexit continues to cause some
uncertalnty in European markets and the US future research
funding position also remains less predictable than historcally.

Potentiol impacts
- Demand for Abcam products adversely affected

Key mitigating activities
- Mitigated to an extent given that Abcam trades globaily
and suchissues are likely o be country Of region specific

Our products are used as research consumables. which
are more resilient to budget cuts than lorge capltal
Investment projects

Further expansion into high-growth markets and/or
high-margin products

Continued geographic penetration to diversify revenues
from any single govemnment funding source

Proactive menitorng of government spending plans
and consideration of the impact on strategy

Abcam inside expanding reach cutside of acadernic markets

European distrioution hub set up in the Netherlands to
ensure that deliveries to our European customersinthe
event ofa ‘hard Brexit” aore maintained*®

Ongoing evaluation and monitoring of geographical trends
Including Brexit and US political conditions

‘New of expanded mitigation.

Principal risk ond relevance
The risk that Abcam does not continue 10 develop its external
facing and intemal IT infrastructure.

Potentialimpacts
= Failure of legacy systerns which ara not replaced

= Resourcing eisewhare In the business affected

Decline in customer service levels resulting In a loss
ofrevenue

Suboptimal operational efficiency
Additionol cost and extra time required to maintain systems

Disruption to business of lack of expected beneflts during
transition to new systems

Kay mitigating activities
Multi-year investment programme in place to upgrade
the Group's enterprise IT systerns and retire legacy systems

Finance andindiract {non-stock) procurement moduies of
Oracle Cloud Fusion went live In Aprili 2019°, Next phase will
focus on external Digital Experence together with supply
chain and manufacturing

Effective governance structure and senlor leadership
In place to oversee delivery of IT programme

Detalled designs and planning undertaken to assess "best
in class’ solutions for external and IT infrastructure supported
by industry experts*

Key personnel hired with extensiva relevant experience
to support programumes*

Use of experenced third party systems integrator and
other third party providers to support the design phase
of the programme

Regional roll out adopted, reducing the risks assoclated
with a single global deployment and enabling a more
focused and manageable process

Planned delivery approach for each stage of the

programme to ensure quality and emphasis on businass
readiness, change management and training*

The Board is kept appraised of progress ond key issues
at each Board mesting with additional detail provided
as reguired

“New or sxpandsd mitigation

Alignment to strategy
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Qur five strategic priorities

Sustain antibady ond digital
markefing leadership

Expandin related
growth markets

Investin eperating copabilities
for 2x 2014 scale by 2023
Sustain attractive

sconomics

Supplament orponic growth =
acquisitions and partnerships

Cybaer security risks including 1oss of data and 5
website Inaccessibility

Loss of coutput at any Group manufacturing &
orlogistics facility

Change in year

-

Change inyear

-

Principal risk and relevance
The risk that Abcam’s eritical ITinfrastructure is compromised
of subject to cyber attack.

" Patentialimpacts
- Disruption to operations and/cr lost sqles

- Leak of commercially sensitive information
= Reputgtionat damage
- Fines or penatlties

Key mitigating aclivities

= Physical and software safeguards in place including
maintaining latest patch levels, software varsions and
firmware updates, external firewall and advanced
anti-virus protection®

- Dedicatedinternal cyber security resource with detalled
long-term plon to combat growling global cyber security risk

= Appolntment of cutsourced security service during
the yaar”

= Improved protection around access to key internal
company data”

- Continuad extensive Investrment In (T systarns

= Business-wide security awareness and training campaign
with continued Investment in training

= Monitoring of evolving threats and anticipation of risks.
Ragular security reviews Including penetration testing
by external experts

= Cyber securlty maturity assessment carrled out by external
experts and action plan implemented

- [Tdisaster recovery processas
= Cyber security insurance policy
= Regular public website failure testing

“‘New &7 expanded mitigation.

Principal risk and relevance
The risk that o disruptive event or disaster occurs at a key facility.

Disruption to operations could arise from many different sources
Including snvironmental. health and safety or contamination
Issues, orinterruption in service from key suppliers.

Potential impacts
= Disruption to manufacturing operations

= Disruption to saies operations and abllity to serve customers

Key mitigating activities
= Manufacturing facilities across the word are spread across
six facilities

= Business continuity planning and disaster recovery plans

- Saleabls stocks of finished products held In logistics
hubs globally

= Production stocks are stored in more than one location
and related sequencing ls backed up regularly

- Diversification of suppilliers for key manufacturing inputs

= Stict quarantine procedures for ceall lines with tested
procedures for responding to mycoplasma Infection

- Cryogenic storage and fridges are covered by glarms

= Significant proportion of catalogue revenues come from
QEM suppliers

= Inbound quality control procedures
= Health and safety policles and procedures
Business interruption Insurance

Alignment to strategy
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Alignment to strategy
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Table ot principal risks

The direction of change during the yeor is Hiustratad
by the amow in the "Chonge’ column. Please note that
this refers to the overail change in the risk to the Group
following mitigoting ociens.

z Increased risk

—3 No change fo risk
N Decreased sk

Operational risks

Business growth is constrained by not having 7

appropriate psople, resources and infrastructure
In place

Inadequate integration or leverage 8
of acquired businesses

Change in year N

change in yeor N

Principal risk and relevance

Abcam has enjoyed rapid growth, increasing the size of
operations and the number of people employed. Abcam’s
operational and IT Infrastructure needs to be robust. efficlent
and scalable for the Group to continue to manage its growth;
the contribution made by Abcam’s highty skilled and
dedicated staff has been, and will continue to be, essential
to Abcam's future success.

Potential impacts
= Advarse effect on gbllity to grow and scale the business

Key mitigating activities
- Extensive Investment In IT to maximise scalability. security
and usability®

- Global content delivery partner used to Increase reliabiltity
and access speed for static website content

= Dynamic website content served from an external.
fully supported datacentre

- Investment In global premises to ensure they are fit to
support current operations and medium-term growth plans,
including anew state-of-the-art global headquartersin the
UK which was achleved on budget and on time*

- Increasad financing capacity following. £200m Revolving
Credit Facllity (RCF) entered into to provide additional
flexibility for corporate transactions®

= In-housa development of smployees to continually up-skill.
supplemented with key external hires

- Significant opportunities for learning and development.,
and leadership training

- Openemployee communication including employee NPS
monitoring and improvement

= New globai share ownership plan rolled out during the year
with nearty 20% of employees being members”

- Detaiied resource planning and successlon planning
for key roles

- Focuson developing a strong and consistent culture across
tha organisation

“*New or expandad mitigation.

Princlpal risk and relevance
The risk of milsjudgling key elements of an acquisition or failing
to integrate In an efficient and timely manner.

Potential impacts
- Disruption of existing operations

- Reducedreturn oninvestment

Key mitigating activities
- Detalled integration plan and dedicated integration teams
In place prior to acquisltion

- Regular communication on progress highlighting variations
and remedial action taken

= [Tinvestments expected to enhance abllity to Integrate
acguisitions

- Senior management with significant previous experience
lead the assessment, plonning and Integration process

= Acquisittons in 2017/18 and 2018/19 have been less complex
and do not prasent a significant integration risk*

. "Neworexpanded mitigation.

Alignment to strategy
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Our five strateglc pricrities

Sustain antibody and digital
marketing leadership

Expond inreloted
growth markets

invest in opeiating copobilites
for 2x 2016 3cate by 2023

Sustaln ottractive
sconomics

Supplement arganic growih =

ocqulsitions and partnerships
Reputational risk Financial risk
Reputational risk Q | Significant exchange rote movements 10
Change inyear % Change in year ._9

Principal risk and relevance
The risk of not meeting internal high standards of quality
and ethical businass practice.

Potential impacts
- Adverse effect on consumar trust and demand
for Abcam products

= Increased cost of finance
- Statfhiring/retention impacted
= Difficultiesin dealing with new and existing suppliers

Koy mitigoting activities
- Continued drive for improved product Quality, Including
product testing using knockout validation

- Transactional Net Promoter Score (INPS) measured regularty

= Life Sclences Survey and consumer intaractions monltored
and addressed

- Consumer compiaints and Abcam’s responses are
monitored at a seniorlevel

- Codes of Conductin place for employees, suppliers
and distributors

~ Robust health and safety policies and procedures
= Product quality In the catalogue used as a differentiator

= Formal quality management system covering process
documentation, compeatency and training

- Rigorous ongolng due diligence process for key suppliers
Including supplier visits

= Mandatory online tralning for att staff on anti-bribery and
cormuption and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
with additional In-person briefings in Asia operations

Principal risk and relevance
The risk of significant unfavourable foreign exchange movements,

The Group reports its results and pays dividends In Stering.
Operating and manufacturing companies trade Inlocal
currency. Main exposures are against the US Dollar, Euro,
Japanese Yen and Chinese Renminbi.

Potential impacts
= Adverse effect on profitabllity and abllity to meet
financial targets

= Currency volatility has continued as a result of globat
macra-aconomic and political foctors including Brexit
and inthe US

Key mitigating activities
- Clearcommunications stratagy for results to enswe Group's
currency exposures and hedging policles are understood

= Forward cover where approprliate and In lIine with the Group
hedging policy

- Continued use of US Dollar, Euro, Japanese Yen and Chinese
Renminbl forward contracts

= Where possible, natural hedges created to match sales ahd
costs In the same currency

Alignment to strategy

00000

Alignment to strategy
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Table of principal risks

The direction of change during the year ks ifustrated
by the amow in the "*Change’ column, Flease note that
thisrefers to the overall change in the risk to the Group
foliowing mitigating actions.

z Increqsed risic

— Nochangs tarsk
\J Cecreased sk

Compliance risk
Non-complionce with laws and regulations 11
Change in ysar _)

Principal risk and relevance

Tha risk of insufficlent evaluation and non-compliance with
lagisiation and regulation in the markets and countres in which
Abcam operates.

Potential impacts
= Inability to manufacture or ship products

= Closure of alocotion
Reputational damage
Fines orlate filing penailties
Inqbillity to report externally

Key mitigating activities
= Complionce withjegislation and codes of best practice

- Regular external health and safety audits, checks
and reporting

- External qudits of quality management systems (ISO2001)

- Subscription to available databases and use of health
and sofety and import/export experts to ensure Abcam
Isup to date

= Ongoing training on key regulation such as anti-bribery
ond corruption and GOPR

- Leqdl department monltors chahges tolaws and regulorioné
oand oversees actions to ensure compliance

= Targetedinternal qudit reviews to ensure policies and
tralning are embedded

= Focus onlow risk Yax strategy

- Code of Conduct, anti-bribery and associated training
for all staff

Alignment to sirategy
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Longer-term viability statement

The UK Corporate Governance Code requires the Board to
assess the prospeacts of the Group over a period longer than
the 12 months required by going concern provislonsond to
Issue Q "viability statement”. The Board has selectedq
five-year assessment period for the viability statement as this
aligns with our innovation pipeline and strategic planning
window, and aiso covers the perlod of large cash outfiows
on majer capital projects.

The process adoptad to assess viability Invotved
collaborgtive input from a range of businass functions

to model a saries of theoretical “stress test’ scenarios

linked to the Group’s principal risks. Particular focus was
given to business growth belng constralned by not having
appropriate people. resources and Infrastructure,
significant exchange rata movements and the avallability of
research funding. These scenarics included both significant
adverse financial outcomes and opearational failures.
Consideration was given to the Impact of mitigations as well
as theirinter-dependencies. The Audit and Risk Committee
reviewead the process before the viability evaluation was
provided to the Board to assist in Its assessment.

The Directors have assessed the Group’s prospects ond
resilisnce with reference to ita current financiol position,

its recent and historcal financial performance and torecasts,
the Board'srisk appetite. and the principal risks and
mitigating factors. The Group is opsrationally and financiolly
strong and has o track record of consistently genarating
profits and cash. and this is expected to continue.

Based on this assessment. the Directors confirm that théy
have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be
able to continue In operation and meet Its liabiities as they
fall due over the next five years.
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Chief Financial Officer's Report

Double-digit revenue growth
delivered; continue to prioritise
investment in long-term growth

Financial highlights

= Total ravenue increased by 11.4% on a reported basls
and 9.2% on a constant exchange rate (CER) basls

~ Gross margin improved by 60 basls points to 70.5%

= EBITDA margin of 32.4% (2017/18: 35.0%) and Adjusted
EBITDA margin of 35.6% (2017/18: 37.9%). reflect planned
strategic investments made during the yeor

= Reported operating profit margin of 21.6% (2017/18:
29.5%), after lmpact of £12.8m non-cash impairment
charge, and Adjusted operating margin of 32.2%
(2017/18: 34.9%)

~ Reported diluted EPS decreased by 27.8% fo 21.8pasa
rasult of the non-cash Impalrment charge and adjusted
dituted EPS grew 0.6% 10 32.6p

- Strong cash generation continued, with net cash inflow
from operating activities of £70.2m (2018/19: £63.3m)

- Proposedfingldividend of 8.58 pence (2017/18: 8.58
peance), taking the proposed total annual dividend
to 12.13 pence pershare, an increase of 1.1%

= £200m Revolving Creglit Facillty secured, providing
additional flexibility for future corporate transoctions

The Chiet Financiol Officer’s Report ond Financial Review Includeas discussion
of afternative performance measures which are defined in further detail Inthe
invastorinformation section on page 141 and which are considared by the
Board and management in reporting. planning and decislon making. Thase
measures include ad|usted financial measures. which are explained in note
¥{c) ond reconcilad to the most directly comparable measure prepared in
accardance withIFRS in note 7 to the fingncial statemeants. Constant exchange
rates {CER) growthis calculated by applying the applicable prior period
aveiage exchange rates to the Group’s actual performance in the respective
paried, Further detail onthe Group‘s financial performance isset outin the
financinl statoments and notes theraoto.

The Group delivered another solid financial performance
in 2019, underpinning our continued investmentin
long-term growth.

Gavin Wood
Chief Financial Officer
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Summary of 2018/19 performance

Tha following table summarises the Group’s perforrmnance for each of tha iast two years on a reported and adjusted basls.

]

Reporied reaulls Adjusted results
Year ended 30 June Year anded 30.June
2019 2018 2019 008
£m Sm Growlh £m §m Growth
Revenue 259.9 233.2 11.4% 2599 233.2 11.4%
Gross profit 183.2 © 1630 12.4% 183.2 163.0 12.4%
Gross profit margin (%) 70.5% 69.9% 70.5% 69.9%
EBITDA 84.3 al.7 3.2% 92.4 88.3 4.6%
EBITDA margin (%) I24% 35.0% 356% 37.9%
Depreciation and amortisation (15.4) (12.9} 19.4% (8.8) ¢7.0) 257%
Impairment (12.8) - — —_—
Operating profit 861 68.8 (18.5%) 83.6 81.3 2.8%
Operafing profit margin (%) 271.6% 2.5% 32.2% 34.9%
Net finGnce Income 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3
Profit before tax 56.4 69.1 (18.4%) 839 81.6 2.8%
Taxation (11.4) 6.9) 65.2% (16.5) (14.9) 10.7%
Profit after tax 45.0 62.2 (27.7%) 67.4 66.7 1.0%
€arnings per share
Basic 22.0p 30.5p (27.9%) 32.9p 32.7p 0.6%
Diluted 21.8p 30.2p (27.8%) 32.6p 32.4p 0.6%
Annudl Dividend par share 12.13p 12.0Cp 1% 12.13p 12000 L1%
Net cash at end of period aza 0.2 (3.4%) a7 90.2 (3.4%)
Return on capital employed 14.0% 18.8% 20.8% 22.2% .

*  EBITDA = Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and amaortisation.

2018719 performance

| am plecsed to report that Abcam delivered another solid financlal performance in the year and at the same time we have
continued to execute our long-term “invest-to-grow’ strategy. Revenues graw 11.4% o £259.9m (CER 9.2%), and after gross margin
expanded by 60 basis points, benefiting frorm an Increasing mix of in-house products, gross profit grew by £20.2m or 12.4%. to

€183.2m (2017/18: £1863.0m).

After planned stirategic investments made during the year, Adjusted EBITDA rose £4.Jm or 4.6% 10 £92.4m (2017/18: £88.3m).
reprasenting an Adjustad EBITDA margin of 35.6% (2017/18: 37.9%), Adjusted operating profit rose £2.3m to £83.6m, equivalenttoan
Adjustad operating profit morgin of 32,2%, whilst diluted earnings per share (adjusted EPS) grew 0.6% to 32.6p. In 2019/20 the Group’s
Adjustad operating profit margin is expected to be in the mid- 1o high-twenties, dependant on the phasing of our strategic
investment plans, belore returning to the low-thirties range by the end of the next five-yaar period.

On a reported basls EPS declined 27.8% to 21.8p. predominantly reflecting the Impairment charge relating to historical work
on the Group’s Oracle Cloud ERP system, following a detailed review of this progromme undertaken during the year,
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Chiet Financial Officer's Report continued

The Group continueas to be highly cash generative, with net cash generated from operating actlvities of £70.2rn (2017/18: £63.3m)
whilst returns on capital remain heaithy. of over 20% (adjusted-ROCE). The Group ended the year with cash of £87.1m and during
the year entered into a Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) of £200m with a £100m additional Accordion option, providing additional

financial flexiility for future acquisitions. in March 2019, the Board declared an interim dividend of 3.55 pence pershare and

has proposed a final dividend of 8.58 pence per share, equating to total annual dividends of 12.13 pence for the year

(2017/18: 12.00 pence).

Invesiing to increass scalability and sustain our growth

During the yeor we invested further in our Oracle Cloud ERP system and successfully went live with Oracle Fusion Finonce and
non-stock Procurarent modules on time and within the budget set at the start of this financial year. Whilst we are earty in the post
go-live phase of the implameantation of these modules. | am confident they wilt provide us with the abllity to grow and scale more
efficiently In these areasin the future.

We successfully completed another major capital project when we moved into our new global headquarters in Cambridge, UK.
Aguain. | am pleased to report that this multi-year project was completed in Ene with the budget and the move was completed
without any disruption to our customers or operations.

In Autumn 2018, we launched a new global, all employee share scheme ("Abshares’) and this has been well received by our
collaagues around the world. Finally, in March 2019, we opened a new distribution centre In the Netherlands as part of our Brexit
contingency planning that has quickly become an Integral part of our global supply chain.

Accounting standards

During the year, the Group has applied certain changaes in accounting standards, These were (i) IFRS 9. Financial Instruments:
Classification and Maasuramant (i) IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Thelr adoption has not had a financial
Impact on our resulls, .

In addition, the Group hos evaluated the Impact of the changes of IFRS 16, Leases, which is effective from 1 July 2019. The Group
has conducted a review of Its lease contracis and based on the leasesin place at 30 June 2019 expects o decrease In net assets
of £2.1m on transition at 1 July 2019, A right-cf-use asset of £49.9m will be recognised as of 1 July 2019 with a corresponding lease
liability of £75.8m. For the yeaor to 30 June 2020, we expect operating profit to increase by approxirnately £1m offset by an increase
In Interest expense within finance costs of approximately £1m as a resutt of the adoption of IFRS 16.

Locking forward

The fundomentals of the business remaln strong and we remain committed to delivering against our long-term growth strategy. |
The addressable markets we serve are large, at over $8bn, and growing. The returns on our core business are good and we
expec! ta make heaithy returns on the incremental investments we ara making in out long-term future. We therefore balieve that
the best use of our capital Is to redepioy [tin the business to drive Incremental growth as well as In selected acquisitions that
advance our strategy.

This positionis reflected In our five-year plans and financial goals. incerporating a planned expansion of investmeant inthe
implementgtion of Initiatives that will allow us to seize more of the market opportunities for growth we see around us. thereby
sustaining our long-term growth potential. enabling us fulfil our purpose of serving life sclentists to achleve thelr mission, faster.
and generotfing long-term value for all our stakeholders.

Gavin Woad
Chief Financial Otfficer
6 September 2019
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Financidal Review

Revenus

Reported revenue .in CER
2019 2018 raported growth
£m £m revenus rate

Catalogue ragional split
The Americas 101.3 a8.5 14.5% 10.3%
EMEA 66.4 62.6 6.1% 6.0%
China 39.8 33.0 20.6% 20.9%
Japan 16.8 16.2 3.7% 0.0%
Rest of Asia (ROA) 185 16.5 12.1% 10.0%
Catalogue revenus sub-total 242.8 216.8 12.0% 9.8%
Custom Products & Licensing (CP&L)' 171 16.4 4.3% 0.4%
Total reported revenue 259.9 233.2 11.4% 9.2%

Catalogue product split
Primmary and secondary antibodies 193.2 174.5. 10.7% 8.7%
of which Recomblinant antibodies 59.1 43.0 23.1% 22.4%
Other products? 49.86 42.3 17.3% 14.7%
of which Immunoassay products 18.5 15.0 23.3% 21.9%
Catalogue sub-tetal 242.8 216.8 12.0% 9.8%

1 Incluctes custom services, WD/IKC and rovalty andlicence Income.
2 Includes kits. anays. proteina. peptides, ysates and bioch {AAAD products.

Total reported reavenues for the yearincreased by 11.4% to £259.9m. Sterling was weaker against the basket of forelgn currencies
In which the Group trades which positively Impacted our reported revenues, Adjusting for this weakening In Sterling, CER revenue
growth was 9.2%.

Catalogue revenue grew by 12.0% on a reported basis and 9.8% CER. From a product perspective, the key drivers of growth
were Recombinant antibodies, which grew 23.1% to £59.1m (22.4% at CER), and Immunoassays. which grew 23.3% (21.9% at CER)
to £18.5m. Together, these categories contributed 32.0% (2017/18: 29.1%) of Catalogue sales,

Reglonally. China continued to be our fastest growing major market, with revenue up 20.4% (20.9% CER) to £39.8m. contributing
16.4% of Catalogue revenus. Americas and Rest of Asia Pacific performed well, dellvering double-digit growth In the perlod,
whilst EMEA sales grew by 6.1%. Japan rose 3.7% on areported basls but was flat on a CER basls. reflecting market wide
challengesin thatcountry,

Custorn Products & Licensing (CP&L), comprising revenue from custom antibody development services. In vitro-diognostic (vD)/
immunohistochemistry (JHC) sales and royalty and licence income, continues to remain an area of focus and investment for the
Group. but remains relatively early in Its development. Full year revenues increased by 4.3% (0.4% CER) to £17.1m (2017/18: £16.4m).
with an Increase In revenue from royalties, licences and IVD supply agreements (contributing approximately 70% of CP&L revenue)
partiaily offset by a decline in revenue generated from custom services due to the timing and phasing of certaln projects.

Gross margin

Reported gross margin Increased by 60 basis points to 70.5% (2017/18: 69.9%) in the year. predominantly due to the Increasing
contribution of Catalogue sales from higher margin products. We anticipate further gradual iImprovements to Qross margin over
time, driven by contlinued product mix and productivity improvements to cur manufacturng sites as we Introduce more automation,
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Financial Review continued

Operating costs and expenses

Reporied Adjusted’
2019 2013 2019 2018
£m £€m % Chaonge &m &m X Change

Selling. general and administrative
expenses 121 78.2 43.4% 88.9 69.8 27.4%
Research and development expenses 15.0 16,0 (6.3%) 10.7 11.9 (10.0%)
Total operating costs and expenses 127.0 94.2 34.9% 99.6 81.7 21.9%
Oepreciction and amortisation €15.4) (129 19.4% (8.8) 2.0) 25.7%
impaiment (12.9) - -_ -
Total operating costs and expenses
excluding depreciation and amortisation 989 8.3 21.6% 90.8 74.7 21.6%
Shars-based compensation 6.5 3.4 01.2% 45 3.4 91.2%

*  Details of iteamns excluded from reported costs ond sxpenses to armve ot Adjusted costs and expenses ore provided in Adjusting lterns bslow and in natae 7 ta the
consolidated financlol statermnents,

Selling, general and administrative expenses
On areported basis, after the Impact of the year-on-year movemant in exchange rates and Including the Impairment charge
of £12.8m. expenses Increased by £33.9m or 43.4%. On an adjusted basis SG&A expensastose by 27.4%.

Included in the year-on-year movement in reported expenses are the following key itemns:

- £9.2mincrease in costs relating to further investment in teams to support the Group’s growth plans, including a$2.6m
Increase In non-cash share-based compensation to £5.5m:;

- £4.8mincrease in premises-related costs, reflacting the move to the new global headquarters during the year. This figure
Includes £3.7m of dual rent and other moving costs which are axcluded from adjusted profit. {as detailed innote 3 in the
Preliminary Financlal Information):

- Anet8ll.2mincrease in costs associated with the work perforrmed on the Oracle Cloud ERP project. o £17.3m (2017/18: £6.1m)
Including a £12.8m impoirment charge (see Investmant In systems, processes and infrastructure for further detail);

- £29m year-on-year foreign exchange related increase owing to the relative weakness of Sferllng This comprisas £1.0m of costs
denominated in the currency of the Group's overseas entities (which, when transiated into weaker Sterling results in highar
chargesto expenses). £1.3m of year-on-year net costs from forward selling currency contracts and £0.6m of transiational
currancy impacts.

Within reported expenses, depreciation and emortisation expenses increased by £1.9m in the year 1o £8.2m., including £2.2m
related to the amortisation of acquisition intangibles (2017/18; £1.8m), The Group’s amortisation and depreciation expense Is
expected to increase in 2019/20, reflecting the annuaiisation of charges associated with the finance and non-stock procuremant
ERP modulaes and the Group’s UK headquarters. The depreciation charge will also be Impacted in 2019/20 as a result of
accounting changes required by the infroduction of IFRS 16 as described in note 2 to the consolldated financial statements.

Research & davelopment expenditure (R&0)

R&D expenditure relates to the development of new products. as well as costs iIncurred in identitying and impiementing
production process improvements, We continua to 1ocus on developing new products to serve our customers’ needs as well as
Improving the quality of our existing catalogue. Thase costs do not meet the requirements 1o be capitalised as an intangible asset
and are therefore axpensed through the Income statement.

Reported R&D expenses decreased by £1.0m or 6.3%. to £15.0m (2017/18: £16.0m). as a result of the successful completion of key
technology milestones on the AxioMx plattorm which resulted In £2.7m of R&D costs being capltalised this year. Overall. copltalised
R&D costs rose by £3.7m 10 £8.0m (2017/18: £4.3m) and also include £1.0m of non-cash share-based compensation charge.

R&D-related depreciation and omortisation charges were £0.6m higher In the year, at£7.2m, Including £4.3mrelated to the
amortisation of acquisition intangibles (2017/18: £4.1m) which are excluded frorm adjusted costs. The amortisation of acquisition
intangibles predominantly relates to the acquisition of Epitomics in 2012.
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Financicl Review continued

Earnings and tax
Reported eomings before Interast, Taxction, Depraciation ond Amortisation (EBITDA) was £84.3m (2017/18; £81.7m). Adjusted EBITDA
rose 4.6% 10 £92.4m (2017/18: £88.3m). representing an adjusted EBITDA margin of 35.6% (2017/18: 37.9%).

ANer the non-cash impairment charge of £12,.8m and depreciation and amortisation of £15.4m (2017/18: £12.9m), reported operating
profit was £56.1m (2017/18: £68.8m).

Profit Before Tax (PBT) on a reported basis was £56.4m {2017/18; £69.1m). This was after net finance income of £0.3m (2017/18: £0.3m).
Adjusted PBT was £83.9m (2017/18: £81.4m).

The Group's reported effective tax rate was 20.2% (2017/18: 10.0%) and has Increased due to the non-reoccurrence of one-off
Impacts of US tax reforms in the prior yaar. The effective rate on adjusted profits was 19.7% (2017/18: 18.3%) with tha increase malnily
due to adjustments related to the disposal of assets from the Group’s former UK headquarters. Notwithstanding further tax
changes In the jurisdictions in which we operate, the effective rate Is expected to be around 17% to 18% In the medium term,
predominantty rasutting frorn the anticlpated reduction in the UK comorate tax rate to 17% from Aprll 2020,

Basic earnings per share (EPS) was 22.0p (2017/18: 30.5p). with adjusted basic EPS of 32.9p (2017/18: 32.7p). Diluted Earnings Per
Share (EPS) wos 21.8p (2017/18: 30,2p). Adjusted diluted EPS Increased by 0.6% to 32.6p (2017/18: 32.4p).

Forelgn exchange

The results of the Group are impacted by movements in foreign exchange rates. particulary movernentsin Steding against the
US Dollar, Eure and Chinese Renminbi. In 2019, the impact of forelgn exchange movementsin the year was £5.2r favourable
in revanue and £2.4m in adjusted EBITDA, after the Impact of hedging.

Cosh flow and net cash

2019 2018
£m $m
Operating cash flows before working capital 88.2 81.0
Change In working capltal (4.5) 8.1
Cash generated from cperations 83.7 729
Income taxes paid (13.5) {2.6)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 70.2 63.3
Cash outflow of Invasting activities (49.9) 372,70
Cash outflow from financing activities (24.7) £20.6)
{Decrease)/increase in cash and cash squivalents {4.4) 5.0
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 90.2 84.8
Effect of foraign exchange rates 1.3 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents ot end of the year 87.1 90.2
Free Cash Flow® 343 26.8

*  Fres Cash Flow comprises net cash gendrated from operating activities less net capital expenditure and cash flows relating 1o committed capitol expenditure.

The Group remains strongly cash generative, with cash inflow from operating actlvities of £70.2rm (2017/18: £63.3m) and Free Cash
Flow of £34.3m (2017/18: £26.8m). atter change in working capital of £4.5m.

Cash outflow on investing activities of £49.9m (2017/18: £37.7m) Included £11.8m in relation to the 2018 acquisition of the exclusive
licence agreement from Roche, £2.8m relating to the acquisition of Callco Biolabs and net capltal expenditure of £35.9m.

Maijor capital expenditure items included £13.Jm and £2.6m ¢on the Oracle Cloud ERP and new Group headquarters, respectively,
as well as £6.2m on laboratory equipment ta support future product innovation and £7.8m Internally developed technoicgy.
pradominantly novel recornbinant antibodies.

After nat cash outflows from financing activities of £24.7m, relating to dividend payments, fogether with asmall forelign exchange
impact, the Group ended the yeor with closing cash of £87.1m (2017/18: £90.2m).
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Balance sheet
Goodwilll and Intangibles
Goodwlll was £120.9m (2017/18: £114.2m) with the Increase relating to exchange rate movements and the acquisition of Calico Biolabs.

Intangible assets were £106.7m (2017/18: £106.3m). Spend of £11.6m In respect of investments made In our new ERP systermn and
£8.0m relating fo the additions from intemal development of the Group's product range were offsat by the Impalment charge
against the historical capitalised costs of the ERP systern of £12.8rm. amortisation of £10.6m and exchange rate movemaents,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment additions of £16.8m (2017/18: £18.3m) have been made in the yeor. comprising £8.4m (2017/18:
£13.5m) associated with the construction of our new Group headquarters and £8.4m of other Investments (2017/18; £4.8m). These
otherinvestmentsinclude £4.5m spent on loboratory equipment and testing assets across our sites in the UK, the US and China.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables were £41.8m (2017/18; £45.8m) with the decrease due to the reduction of £11.8m in other payables
arising from setflement of deferred consideration on the Spring Bloscience acquisiion made in 2017/18, offset by an Increase
in accruals and future contract liabilities of £8.3m, Inclusive of rent accrucis on the Group’s new headquarters.

Dividends

The Board declared an Interim dividend of 3.55 pence pershare which was pald to shareholders on 12 April 2019, The Board

has proposed a final dividend of 8.58 pence per share, taking the total dividend for the year to 12.13 pence per share, a 1,1%
Increase on the previous year and equating to approximately £24.9m. The final dividend is subject to shareholder approval at
the forthcoming AGM. If approved. the final dividend will be payable on 22 November 2019 to shareownaers of record at the close
of business on 8 Novermber 2019. The ex-dividend date is 7 Novembaer 2019,

The Group has an established track record of consistantly generating cash which is expected to continve for the foreseeable
tuture. The abillity of the Group to make dividend payments Is determined by the avallabliity of distributable retained eamings
and liquid cash resources as wall as the requirements for these to be held at the Company level. At 30 June 2019, the Company
heid retainad aarnings of £268.6m, the majority of which is distributable. The Group has cash resources of S87.1m at 30 June 2019,
of which £57.9m was held by the Company.

Principal risks which may restrict profitabllity ond cash generation. and therefore fund future dividend growth and payments,
are described in "Risk overview’ and "Principalrisks ond uncertaintles’ on pages 36 to 44. Notwithstanding these risks, the Group
has an established track record of consistently generating cash which Is expected to continue for the foreseeable future,

Gavin Wood
Chief Financial Otficer
6 September 2019
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Corporate governance

Good corporate governance is vital to
maintaining a culture of integrity that
drives our sustainable performance
and growth.

Corporate governance
56 Chairman'sintroduction fo governance
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Chairman'’s intreduction to governance

In this section
- The composition of our Board
and its Committees

- The benefits of good governance
- Pay and periormance
- Qur ambition for governance

in future years

Chiet Financiol Officer s Report ond Anoncial Review -poges 41033 ©
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Next year we will report agalnst the new Corporcte
Governance Code 2018 (2018 Code). As a Board we have
reviewed the requirements of the 2018 Code and plans are

In place to ensure compllance with the 2018 Code for 2019/20.
The matters reserved for the Board and the terms of reference
for each of the Audit and Risk Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committes have been
updated to reflect the requirements of the 2018 Code.

Board sffectiveness

My role is to ensure the Board of Abcam operates effactively in
delivering the long-term sustainable performance ond growth
of the Company. In fulfilling this role. I seek to ensure that Board
proceedings are conducted insuch a way as to allow all
Directors to hove the opportunity to express thelr views openly
and that, In particular. the Non-Executive Diractors are able to
provide constructive support and challenge to the ELT, Qur
Board meetings encourage rigorous debate and constructive
challenge of management’s parformance [n meeting agreed
goals and ocbjectives.

In order for the Board 1o be effoctive it requires diverse and
experlenced Board members many of whom have gained.
and continue to gain, voluable experlence from thelr service
on other boards. The Boord Is mindful of the risk that Non-
Executive Directors may have too many other commitments

to adequataly tulfil their duties to Abcam and s cognisant that
the Issue of potential “over-bearding’ has baen an area of
Increased focus by stakeholders. The Board regutarly reviews
existing Board members” other commitments (whether listed,
private or charitable enterprise). Ahead of any appolntment
to the Board, a detailed assessment is undertaken of any other
commitments that a potential Non-Executive Director may
alreody have, and the impact that these may have on their
abllity to effectively serve on the Board of Abcam, Where
appropriate, a contractual obligation may be made in the
Board member’s service agreement to spend a specified
amount of ime on the duties to Abcam.

The informal Board effectivenass assessment undertaken
during the year highlighted noissues of over-boarding and will
be further reviewed in the forrnal Board evaluation that we will
undertake in the coming year.

As such, whilst rernaining vigilont to the danger of over-boarding.

| balieave that the current Board members are well able to
effectively undertake their dutles to Abcam.

Shareholder engagement

The Board is committed to maintalning an open and
constructive dialogue with shareholders to ensure there
Is @ common understanding of the strategic objectives,
governance and performance of the Company.

Strategic report

Following the announcement of our Interim and Preliminary
results the CEQ and CFO undertook an extensive roadshow in
the UK and US to meet most of our major sharehcolders. Investor
and analyst feadback Is gathered by our corporate brokers
and financial public relations advisors following mesetings and
roadshows. This is relayed to, and discussed by, the Board to
help them understand the views of our major shareholders.

Where appropriate the Company consults with shareholders
on significant Issues, for example when the Board was exploring
making changes to Execufive Remuneration Louise Patten

{510 and Chair of the Remuneration Committee) and t met

with a number of major shareholders. Moreover, during this
yaar major Investors were provided the opportunity to meet —
me to discuss the Company's strategy and performance,
and environmental. social and governance matters. We also
conducted a programmae of visits for shareholders to our new
headqguarters at Discovery Drive.

Corporaie governance

Capital Investment projects

The Board and the Audit and Risk Committee have continued
to monitor prograss of the iImplementation of our new enterprise
resource planning (ERP) system during the year, providing input
and challenge to both the Internal team and the external
providers Involved with the project. Thisis a iarge and complex
projact which will dellver significant operational and strategic
beneflts. Assuch, the Board has raceived regular updotes
focusing on the risks relating to the quality. cost. phasing

and Hming of dellvery of the project. The Board has also been
integral in considering ond developing the future strategy for
the IT upgrade programme,

Financial stalements

The Board also racelved updates on the developrment of our
new haadquartars ot the Cambridge Blomedical Campus to
completion, again with particular focus on the idsntification
and mitigation of risks associoted with the investment. We are
extremaely satisfied that we were able to complete the move
on budget and without disruption o our customers.

The year ahead

Over the coming year. and In addition to our normal dutles,

our focus will be consldering the application of the 2018 Code
which we wiil be reporting on in 2020 and on ensuring we review
the impact of key strategic decisions made by the Board.

Wa continue to bellave that our governance framawork Is
rotust, a point emphasised by the fact that the Board and
Committees have once again operated effectively during
the year.

Peter Allen
Chairman
&6 September 2019
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Board of Directors

The Board is focused on delivering
against our five strategic goals

Peter Allen, BA ACA

Jonathan Miiner, PhD

Louise Patten, MA

Mara Aspinall, MBA

Chalrman Deputy Chairman Non-Executive and Senier Non-Executive Dirsctor
Independent Director

Appointed Appointed Appointed Appointed

June 2018 April 1998 March 2014 Saptember 2015

Background Background Background Background

Peter has over 20 years’ Having worked in the Iife sclences  Having started her career Mara Is Monaging Director of

expanance as an sxacutive
director. non-exacutive director
and chalfman jn a wide range

of life science companies playing
a significant role in thelr growth.
He spent three years as Chaiman
of Proximagen Neurcsciences pic
{2009-2012). six years af ProStaken
Group plc as Chalrman (2007~
2013) and interim CEO (2010-2011T).
and 12 years ot Celitech Group
pic {1992-2004) as CFO

and Deputy CEQ,

Current external appointments
Patearis currentiy Non-Executive
Chairman of AlM-listed Advanced
Maeadical Solutlons plc, Clinigen pic
and Diumnal ple and privately-
awned Oxford Nanopore
Technologles Ltd, He Is @ Non-
Exacutive Director of Istesso Ltd.

Skills,experienceandcontribution
A charterad accountant by
background, Petar brings to
Abcamhis experience Qs a
ehairman and board member
and has substantial experlence

In M&A, International growth,
fundralsing and investor relations.
as well as the commaerciatisation
ofintallectual property.

Inciustry forover 10 years as an
academic researcher, Jonathan
Igentified the market opportunity
for supplying high-qualtty antibodies
10 support proteln Interaction
studies and in 1998 founded
Abcamwith D¢ David Cleavely
and Protassar Tony Kouzarkdes.

Current sxternal appointments
Jonathan is a Non-Executive
Girector of The Evolution
Education Trust, HealX, Syndicate
Room Group Lid and Start Codon,
He Is also Chairman of Axol
Biosciences Lid, PhoreMost Lid and
CamaAliergy Lid, Jonathanhoids
an Executive Director position

ot Meitwind Limited., beinga
casignated mermbaer of Maltwind
Acivisory LLP, and is a member of
the advisory panel of Cambridge
Innavation Caphal pic.

Skills,experienceandcontribution
Jonathan Is an experenced
antr@preneur and investor and
Is possionate about supporting
UK iifa sclence and high-tech
start-ups. He has provided
considarable investiment and
support to over 40 companies
ond has assisted thiee AM IPOs
and contributes thisknowledge
to Abcam.

Abcarm pic Annus! Repott and Accounts 2019

In corporate and Investment
banking. Loulse maved into
managermant consultancy ana
became a Board Director of the
Hilton Group, Since thenshe
has served ¢n a succession of
multi-nationalisted company
boards for mora than 20 years
as anon-axecutive director,
asenlor incdependent director,
aemunearation committee
chatrman and a company
chalrman at organisations
including the retallers Marks

& Spencer plc. GUS pik¢ and
Somerfleld plc.

Current external appointmaents
Loulse Is currently @ Senlor Advisor
toBain & Companyanda
Non-Exacutive Director of Arthur J.
Gallagher (UK) Umited, Arthur J,
Gallagher Holdings (UX) Limited
ond ArthurJ Gallagher Insurance
Brokers Limited.

Sklits, sxperianceandeontribution
Loulse’s highty recognised coreer
in business, with her extensive
board ond corporate Qovernance
sxpariance. brings Abcamthe
knowledge and proficlency
requirad to support its strategic
growth plans and, whilst doing
this, snsures that the Abcom
Boardisled Dy arobust
governance framework,

8lue§tone Venture Partners and
CEO of Health Catalysts Group.
Previcusly, Mara was Presicient
and CEO of Ventana Medical
Systems/Roche Tissue Diagnostics,
laading the company to
incraased market leadership
worldwide and primacy In
companion diagnostics.

Mara spent 12 years ot Genzyme
Corporation {now part of Sanofi)
ag Prosident of Genzyme Genetics
ond Ge@nzyme Pharmaceuticals.
Sha s co-founder ofthe
international School of
Blomedical Diognostics at Arzona
State Univarsity, ne only Institution
dedicated to the study of
diagnostics as an Independent
discipline. She is g Fellow of the
Amaericon [nstitute for Madical
and Biolegical Enginaering.

Current external appeintiments
Mara Is a Director ¢f Aliscripts
Healthcare Solutions inc, Costle
Blosclences, Blue Cross Blyeg Shield
Arizena, OC1aSure Technologles.
Stratecs {was 35caninc), RainBird
and Paradigm Diagnostics,

Skills, experienceandcontribution
Muara contributes her
considarabla International
experiance in the blotechnoiogy
and diagnostics iIndustries with
public and private companies.
Mara's specific focus areas are
acquisition integration, global
manufacturing, quality systems
and strataglc marketing.



Sus Harris, 85¢c ACMA
Non-Executive Diractor

Oe®

Glles Kerr, BSc FCA
Nen-Executive Diractor

OQ[0]

Alan Hirzel, MS MBA
Chief Executive Officer

Gavin Wood, BA ACA
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed
Pecember2014

Background

A chemist by tralning. Sue has held
senlor executive positions inretall
and finenclal services. She held
senlor roles at Marks & Spencer plc
across {inance and strategy.
latterly as Head of Corporate
Development and Group
Treasurer. She was Managing
Director Finance at Standard Life.
where she lad the process 1o float
the group. She was Finance
Dhractor of Chaltenham &
Gloucester. Lioyds Banking
Group’s Retaill Bank ang Group
Finance and Group Audit Directar,
Sue has several years’ expedence
as a non-exacutive diractor.
Previously she wasaNon-
Executive Diroctor of 5t. Jomes's
Place and Bank of lreland UK,
Chalr of Trusteas for KCP Youth
and chalred the finance and
audit committeas of Mencap.

Current external appointments
Sue Is a Non-Executive Director

of Schroder & Co Umited, FNZ,
Barclays Penslon Funds Trustees
Limited and Co-operative Bank,
and s Chalr of the Audit and
Assurance Councll ond o member
of the Codes and Standords
Committee of the Financial
Reporting Council.

Skills,experlenceandcontributien
with over 30 years of financisl,
commerclcl and cerporate beard
experence as wellas her sclentific
background, Sue brings a wealth
of skills that strangthen the Abcom
Board in its growth strategy.

Appointed
December 2018

Background

Glles has substantial commercial
and finanglal experience from
service onnumerous public and
private company boards and as an
audit partner. From 1990 hg served
in a variety of Increasingly senlor
dles at Amersham plc. including as
Chlef Financial Officerand a Board
member from 1997 to 2004, when
the company was acquired by

GE Healthcare, Prios to his roles

at Amersham. he was a Natienal
Pariner with Arthur Andarsen.,

He was Director of Finance of the
Univearstty of Oxford frorm 2005 untll
2018 and was praviously a Diractor
of Victrex plc. BTG plc. and Elan
Coporationine.

Current external appointments
Giles is currently a Non-Executive
Dlractor of Arlx Bioscience plc.
Adaptimmune Therapsautics plc.
PayPolnt plc, Senlorplc and
Oxtord Sclenceas Innovation ple.

Skilis,experienceandcontribution
AFsliow of tha Institute of
Chartared Accountants of
England and Wales with over

20 years’ experience In key sanlor
positions In a number of
companles, Glles hasplayed a
plvotal rale In their development
and growth. Glles bring his
tirst-hand understanding of
Abcam’s academic research
customaers from his time at

QOxford Univarsity.

Appointed
Jonuary 2014

Background

Alanjoined the businessin 2013
followling a strategic review which
he led with the Foundaer ana Board
to define along-term growth plan
for Abeam, He has subsequently
ledathe Company 1o achieve over
100% growth. and through
substanticl organisation change,
Pricr to joining Abcam, Alan was g
Partner at Baln & Company where
he advised global executives and
private equity Investors on growth
strategy. parformance
Improvement and acquisitions,
Early In his career he worked In
avarlety ofroles from life sclence
researcher at ComalUnivearsity

to new product development
rasearch at Kraft Foods. He holds
BS. M5 and MBA dagroes from
CornellUniversity. He also has a
passion for soclal enterprise ond
was Involved In establishing two
soclol venture philanthropy
Qrgonisations Inthe UK and Igter
acted as aTrustes for the Natlonat
Cltizen’s Service Trust.

Current external appointments
Alan has no extamal appointmeants,

Skills,experienceandcontribution
Alan brings to the Abcarm Board
arare combinatlon of a strong
sclentific background. and global
business and leadsarship
experlence. He has a keen focus
to ensure Abcam engages with
the neads ond mission of its
consumers in lhe lab.

Appolinted
Sepltember 2016

Background
Gavinisachartered accountant
who started his career in practice
belore joining the Unipar Group.
where he had a number of roles
of Incregsing responsillity,

Ha2 movad into the life sclenceos
sector when he joined Affymetix
Inc., (Nasdag-gquoted m: AFFX)

In 2006, in a varlety of roles.

He was Exacutive Vice Prasident
and Chief Financial Officer,
leading the global finance and
Information tachnclogy functions
whan Affymetrix was ocquired by
Thermo Fisher Sclentific Inc In 2016,

Current extemal appointments
Gavin has no extarnal
appointments.

Skills, experienceandcontribution
Gavin has over 20 years’
expearience as onaccounting
professional with broad and
International axposura In g
nurnber of sectors and roles
Including corporate. statutory
and aperational accounting.
project management and
Investor relations.

Koy o Committeas
® Nomination

@ Audit and Risk
@ Rermuneration
‘Commiﬂae Chalr
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Leadership

Leadership

Division of responsibilities

The Board has established o corporate governance structure
with cleary defined responsibllities and accountabllities. The
structure Is designed to sofeguord and enhance the long-term
sustalnable success of Abcem, creating value and benefit for
our shareholdars and stakeholders.

The Chairmnan ensures the Board operates effectively in
delivering the long-term sustainoble success of the Company.
The Senlor Independent Director acts as a sounding board for
the Chairman and gs a trusted intermediary for other Directors.

Board and Commities meetings/attendance during the year

Matters reserved for the Board

To retain control of key decisions, the Board has identified
certain resarved matters for its approval. Other mattars,
responsibilities and quthorities are delegoted to Board
Committees. The schedule of matters reserved for the Board
and the terms of reference for each of its Committees con

be found on the Company’s Investor relations website at
www.abcamplc.com. Any matters cutside of these fall within the
CEQ's responsibllity and authority. Accordingly the CEQ reports
on activities of the Executive Leadership Team via bl-monthiy
reports to the Board. The matters reserved tor the Board and
the terms of reference for each of its Committees have been
updated to reflect the requirerments of the 2018 Code.

The Chairman expeacts Non-Executive Directors to provide sufficlent commitment to the Company for advance preparation and
attendance at Board and Committes meetings, together with ad hoc availabillty at other times.

Schaduled Auditand Risk R 1! N Inati

Board meetings Commities Committes Commiltes
Current Directors
Peter Allen 8/8 4/4 4/4 272
Jonathan Milner 7/8 n/a nja n/a
Louise Patten 8/8 4/4 4/4 212
Mara Aspinall 8/8 n/a a/4 2/2
Sue Harris 8/8 44 a/4 212
Giles Xerr 4/4 on n n
Alan Hirzel 8/8 nfa nfa nja
Gavin Wood 8/8 n/a n/a n/a

1 GllesKesr was appointed as o membaee of the Board and of the Audit and Risk Committes cn 12 Decamber 2018. and a3 a member of the Remuneration Commities

and the Nomination Committee on 19 March 2019.
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Leadership structure

To assist In decislon making the Board
draws on experience and insight from

the business and extemailly.

5 58 anel 5.

l

|

L

Nomination Committee
Reviews and recommends
to the Board the structure,
skze and composition of the
Bocrd aond Its Committees.
It also has oversight
responsibility for succession
planning of the Boaid and

Auditand Risk Committee
Revlews and s responsible
for the oversight of the Group's
financlal and reporting
processas, the integrity of
the financial statements,

the external and internal
oudit processes, and the

Remuneration Committes
Reviews and recommends
to the Boord the Executive
Remuneration Pollcy and
determines the remuneration
packages of the Exacutive
Dlrectors and the Company
Chalrman, Has oversight

Diselosure Committes
Oversaes the identlfication
and control ofinsida
information by the Company
to meet its disclosure
obligations under the Market
Abuse Regulation, the AIM
Rules and the Financiol

Stiategic report

Corporate govermnance

Financial siatements

senlor management. systems of Internal control of the remuneration Conduct Authority’s (FCA)
and risk management, packages of the Executive Disclosure Suldance and
Leadarshlp Team. Transparency Rules (TR}, —

More details on pages 68 and 6% More detailsonpages /0to 74 Mora dstailson pages 75 to 84

T T T )

Executive Directors
Responsible for tne irnplemantation of the
Board's siralegy. dov-to-day managemeant

of the business ond all matiers which have
notbeeneserved for the Board

Executive Leadership Team (ELT)

Atgarn that operates under the dirsction and
authority of the CEO and CFO and comprises
the direct reports of the CEQ. H asslsts the
Exacutive Directors Inimplementing strategy
and policles and monaging the operational
and fingnclal performance of the Group,

Global Leadership Team (GLT)

The GLT comprises the ELT and other senior
globalieaders whe meet asrequired in person
and by telephone conferenca to support the
delivery of Abcam’s strotegle activities and
the annual planning process. This enables the
CEQ and the ELT to hear from different areas of
the business whilst providing the opportunity
to communicate with and engoge the GLT
meambaers on globalinitiatives,
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Leadership continued

Boardin action

Gender diversity

The percentage of wornen on the Board
is currently 37.5%, putting us ahead

of recommended targets for FTSE 350
companies. Whilst oyr percentage of
women on the Booard and in senior roles
decreased this year, we continue to seek
to Increase the pipeéline of women Into
both the Board and senior management,
Further detalls of our diversity and
Inclusion initiatives can be found

on page 25,

54%

Women In cur total

37.5%

Women on
our Board

25%

our Exacutive
Leadership Tecm

As at 30 June 2019

The Board actively encourages that
arange of backgrounds, skills and
experiencs are represented throughout
all levels of the business. Diversity helps
crecte a positive and rewarding culturs
throughout Abcarm,

Loulse Patten
Sanlor Independent Dirgctor
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Board composition and roles
The Board comprises the Chairman, two Executive Directors and

five Nor-Executive Direclors, one of whomis the Deputy Chairman,

The Directors are satistied that the current composition of the
Board reflacts an cpproprlate bakance of skllis, knowledge.

L
Strategic repart

Giles Kerr as an addltional Non-Executive Director to bring
addltional finance and life sciences experience to the Board.
Itis the Chairman’s view, and that of the Board as a whole,
that the Board and its Committees continued to operate
effectively during the year.

to the Boara to develop strategy to further exploit opportunities to enable Abcam

experience and diversity. In December 2018, we appointed The key rasponsibilities of the members of the Board are: é
Chairman Pater Allen Responsible for leading and managing the Board as well as for its effectiveness §'
and governance. Ensuras Board members are aware of and undearstand the views
of major shareholders and other key stakehokiers. Helps the CEQ and Executive
Leadership Team sat the ‘tone from the top’ regarding purpoese, goals. vision and
values for the whole crganisation, M
Cg0O Atan Hirzel Responsible for the day-to-day management of the business, developing Abcam’s
strategic direction for consideration und approval by the Board. and implementing
the agreed strategQy. . :
CFO Gavin Wood Supports the CEQ In developing and Implernenting strategy. Responsible for the "
financlal ond operational performance of the Group.
Deputy Jonathan Milner Rasponsible for bringing expert knowledge in the ever-evolving field of protein
Chairman research and its related science and technology. Provides entrepreneurial support g
[

to support sclentists worldwlde to discover more, faster, Provides a technical
scunding board for the Chairman and CEO. Represents Abcam at external events B

and forums worldwlide and is an ambassador for Abcamin the scientiflc community.

Senioy Louise Patten Acts as a sounding board for the Chairman and as a frusted Intermediary for other
Indepandeant Directors. Available to discuss any concerns with shareholders that cannot be
Director (SID) reschved through the normal channels of communication with the Chalrman
or Executive Diractors,
Independent Mara Aspinall Assist in the development of stratagy and monitor its delivery within the Company’s
Directors Sue Harrls astablished risk appetite, Responsible for bringlng sound judgement and objectivity
Giles Kerr to the Board’s deliberations and decislon-making process. Constructively

challenge, support and review the performance of Executlve Directors,

Abcam pic Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Leadership continued

Board in action

Wa want to accelerate our growth
through Increasing our rate of
investment and taking an agile
approach to implementing

our initiatives.

This year the Board has spant fime
with senlor management assessing
opportunities to invest and drive
sustainable growth for the next

five years. The Boord has also stayed
close to the business to assess the
delivery of existing initiatives first hand.

Abcam's ambitions do not stand still.
As a board we want to help the business
drive the next phase of Abcam's
sustainable growth.

Peter Allen
Chgairman
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Board meetings

The Board meets In person six times during the year with two
further scheduled telephone conferences to approve the
annual and interim accounts and dividends. In addition, ad
hoc meetings may be called to discuss urgent mattars arising
during the course of the year. A separate strategy day Is held
once a year with the Executive Leadership Team to discuss
the longer-term asplrotions and objectives of the Company.

The Chairman meets the Non-Executive Directors without the
Executive Directors present, and the Non-Executive Directors.
led by the Senior Independent Diractor, meet without the
Chairman present at least annually to appralse the
Chairman’s performance.

" The Directors have access fo advice from the Compony
Secratary who is @ qualified solicitor and octs as secretary
to the Board and its Committees.

Board activity

Over the last year asignificant amount of the Board’s focus
has been on consldering strategic opportunitias. The Board
has also been consldering and preparing for the Corporate
Governance Code 2018 and the Companies (Miscellaneous
Reporting) Regulations 2018; thisis In addition to the annual
recurriing govemance activity, Including reviewing the
schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board. periodic reviews

of pelicles and procedures, and financial reporting obligations.

What we did this year

Strategy

- Considered and approved strateglc transactions and
opportunities iIncluding the acquisition of Calico Biolabs.

= Reviewed progress of the developmant of the new Abcam
headquarters at the Cambridge Biomedical Campus,
Including holding a Board meeting ot the site before
the business had moved to the bullding.

- Reviewed presentations from members of the Executive
Leadership Team to monitor progress against strategic goals.

- Continued development of strategy Including a joint
strategy day with the Executive Leadership Team.

Financial performance
- Considered the financial performance of the business
and key performance targets.

~ Approved the budget and tive-year plan.

= Monitored parformance against budget through regular
presentations from the CFO.

= Reviewed the half-year and annual results and
presentations to andalysts, and approved the Annual Report,

- Approved the Interim and final dividend recommendations.

Leadership and people
- Discussed the composition of the Board and its Committees.

- Revlewed the success of the Company-wide all employee
share plan.

= Reviewed and approved all of the share scheme grants.

- Approved the gppointment of a new Non-Executive
Director, Giles Kerr.

Internal control and risk monagement
- Reviewed the approach to risk management and carried
out arobust assessrment of the Company’s princlpol risks,

- Approved the Company’s risk appetite, this being the
level of risk that the Company Is willing to take In pursuit
of its objectives.

= Moritored the progress and successful implementation
of the Oracle Cloud ERP system.

Governonce, stakeholders and shareholders

- Recelved key legal and regulatory updates en topics such
as the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), the
Gender Pay Gap Report, the Corporate Governance Code
2018 and the Companies (Miscellanaous Reporting)
Regulations 2018.

- Reviewed feedback from Iinstitutional shareholdars and
analysts following the annual andinterim resulfs,

= Reviewed the Company's policies in line with their schedule
of review,

- Reviewed the schedule of matters reserved for the Board.

Abcam plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Leadership continued

Bodrd in action

It we are achieving our purpose,

it means we are helping sclantists

find solutions and advancing the sum
of human knowledge. To do this wa
need to be audacious in our approach,

Abcam isunwaveringin its
commitmaent to serving life scientists.
The teamny's focus on quality and
innovation are what drives the
success of the business.

Giles Kerr
Indepsndent Non-Executive Director

Abcom pie Anmaql Report and Accounts 2019
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Board effectiveness

Board effectiveness

Information and support

The Chairman, Executive Diractors and Company Secretary
are responsible for ensuwring Board members are provided
with Information concerning the state of the business and

its performance. and withinformation necessary forthem to
effactively discharge their duties and responsibilities in a timely
manner. The agenda for the following meeting Is discussed

at each Board meeting so that Non-Executive Directors have
the opportunity to influsnce the content, ensuring time spent
Is appropriately balonced between reviewing strategic.
operational and financial matters, together with governance.

Board development

Reguiar troining is provided to the Board with particular focus
on explalning the complex and evolving sclence relating to
Abcam’s business, together with updates on corporate
governance Including fraining on the AIM Rules, the General
Data Protection Legisiation, the new UK Corporate Governance
Code 2018, the Companies {(Miscellaneous Reporting)
Regulations 2018 and the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers
(Takeover Code).

On their appointrnent to the Board, new Directors receive

a comprehensive and tallored inducton programme to
snhoncea their knowledge and understonding of the
Company’s business, strategy and govemnance structure,

as well as thelr own duties and responsibilities. They will spend
time with the Executive Directors. Non-Executive Directors,
Executive Leadership Team and Compony Secretary, and
other key personnel across the business.

-Director independence
The Board considers all Non-Executive Directors to be
Independent within the meaning of the UK Corporate
Governance Code Provision 8.1.1, with the exceptionof
Jonathan Milner who was a founder of Abcamand an
Executive Director of the Company until September 2014 and
remains a substantial shareholder, The Boord considers that
the Non-Executive Directors each demonstrate an appropriate
degree of independence in character andjudgement and
are free from any businass or otharrelationship which could
materlally interfare with the exercise of their judgement.
Im determining the independence of the Non-Executive
Diractaors, the Board specifically considers the beneficial
Interests of such Directors in share capltal of the Company.
Those interests are set out on page 83 and do notin the opinton
of the Board detract from theirindependent status.

In accordance with Its procedures, all Directors are required
to notify the Board of any conflicts of interest and a reglster of
such Intarests Is maintained by the Company Secretary and
farmally reviewed ot Board meetings. Any planned changes
to thelrinterests. Including directorships cutside the Group,
crre notifled to the Bocrd.

The Independent Non-Executive Rirectors declared no
rélationships in the year which were considered a conflict
with Abcam’s business and therafore nothing was desrmed
to Impact theirindependence.

Board evaluation

Board and Committee evaluation is a valuable toolin
maintaining and Improving Board effectiveness. Asthis was
the Chalrman’s first full year of appointment, he declded that
we would undertake an Informal review facilitated by the
Senlor Vice President of Human Resources. The Board shared
feadback onits effectiveness as well as detailed teedback
on each individual’s strengths and potential capability gaps.

Although the Chairman was pleased with the effectiveness
of the review. over the next 12 months he will work with the
Board on making some changes to support the Company’s
growth ambitions, before an extemnally facllitated Board
effectiveness review.

Abceam plk Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
The Committee apprecicates
the contributions that Sue
Harris and Gavin Wood
have made to Abcam's
success and has initiated

a search for Gavin's
successor as Chief
Financial Officer. The
Committee was pleased
that the search for an
additional Non-Executive
Director resulted in Giles
Kerr's appointment as he
brings a wealth of life
science industry experience
to the Company. We also
continued to develop

plans for the orderly and
progressive refresh of the

Board over time.

Peter Allen

Nomination Commities Chairman

Committee Committee members

meetings and attendance

Mestings

Peter Allen 2/2
Loulse Patten 2/2
Mara Aspinall 2/2
Sue Harrls 2/2
Glles Kerr 11

{Member from
19March 2019

Abcam pic Annudal Repart and Accounts 2019
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Key responsiblilities of the Committee

The Committee Is responsible for reviewing Board composition
and balance, ceonsidering the skills and capabliities required
for each new Board appointrment, leading the process for

the Board in relation to new appointments and raviewing
succession pionning for the Board and senior leadership.

The Committee continues to perform this with utmost
professionalism and diligence.

Board changass in the year

The Nomination Committee aversaw a rigorous recrutment
process for a Non-Executive Director and | was delighted

to welcome Giles Kerr to the Board In December 2018, His
appolintment tollowed an extensive search which | led with

the leading executive search and board advisory consultancy.
Lygon Group. We developed a shorllist of condidates betore
interviews ware conducted with all members of the Board,
together with meetings with some members of the Executive
Leadership Team.

Boord members were unanimous In appointing him on
12 December 2018.

Glles brings extensive experlence as both an Executive and
Non-Executive Director. His appointment strengthens the Abcam
Board as he brings experience of ife sclences, finance and
first-hand understanding of our academic research customers.

On 19 July 2019 Gavin Wood notified the Board of hisintention to
step down at the end of his notice perod. or when we appoint a
successor, The Board appreciates the work Gavin has achlevedin
the previous three yedars but recognises his desire 10 be closer to
his family In Oxford. The Nomination Committee has approved
the rcle spacification and approved the appceintment of on
Executive Search Firm to lead the search for a successor.

On & September 2019 Sue Harids notified the Board of her intentlon
1o not seek re-electon at this year's AGM. Sue has played an

" Important role in chairing the Audit and Risk Committee to high
standards over the last almost five years. The Board thanks her
tor this critical teadership role.

Board diversity and appointments procedure

Abcam recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintalning o competitive advantage and the
Company’s long-term sustainable success.

Board composition is central to the effective leadership

of the Group and therefore prior to commencing any search
for prospective Board rmembers, the Committee draws up a
spacification, reflacting the Board's current balance of skills
and experience and those that would be conducive to the
delivery of the Company’s strategy. Selection for Board
appeintmeants is made on merit against this specification.

Gender diversity

Following the Board changes in the yaar, female representation
on the Board stands at 37.5%, This puts Abcam ahead of the
recommended targets for FTSE 350 companies In tarms of
fermale board representation. Abcam continues 10 see the
devsalopment of female executive talent as an Important area
and work is underway to improve the representation of women
inleadership positions In the Group. More detalls on gender
diversity in the Company are set out on page 42.

Activity in the year

The Commitee has supported Giles and me with ocurinduction
Into the Company and this has aliowed us to rapldly develop
our understanding of the business and helped us to quickly —
assimilate, | have appreciated spending alot of fime inthe
business to broaden my knowledge. | have also had the
opportunity to get to know many of our investors through
extenslve discussions as we consulted on some of our changes,
and | appreciate the amount of time our investors have made
availabla to me and to Loulse Patten, SID and Chair of the
Remuneration Committee.

Corporate governance

We have undertaken an informal Baard Effectivensess Review
this year tocilitated by the Senlor Vice President of Human
Resources. This allowed me 1o review the effectivenass of the
Board before undertaking @ more formal review in the next 12
months, lwas pleased with the results and each Board Director
has received Individual feedback and has given me insight into
the strengths and potential capability gaps we will need to fill
In the future Os the Company grows.

[
Financial statements

A number of key prority areas were identified and of parficular
importance is succession planning for tha Executive Leadership
Team t¢ ensure a robust plpeline of potential successors, Thisis
key in a fast-growing business like Abcam. | am pleased that
Abcam continues to both attract great people and focus on
the developrnent of key talent for Executive Leadership Team
succession. We also ensured the Executive Leadership Team
continued to benefit from development and mentoring from
the Non-Executive Directors.

Priorities tor 2019720

In addlition to the search for Gavin Wood's successor, the
Committea will continue 1o focus on succeassion planning.
particularly for Executive Leadership Tgam positions, as well as
supporiing the mentoring ©f the senior team. During the course
of 2019/20 we will undertake a formal Board evaluation to build
on the review undertaken this year and o ensure we continue
asa high-performing Board.

Petar Allen
Nomination Committee Chairman
6 September 2019
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Audit and Risk Committee

Audit and Risk Committee
This year the Committee
has focused on further
development of

risk management and
financial reporting.

Sue Harris

Audit and Risk Committes Chairman

Committee
meatings

Committee membaers

and aottendance

Muaetings
Sue Harrls 4/4
(Chalrman)
Pater Allen 4/4
Louise Patten . 4/4
Giles Kerr an

(Mamber from
12Decembaer 2018)
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Chairman’s statement

tam pleased to present the report of the Audit and Risk
Committaee for the year ended 30 June 2019. This report details
the work of the Commitiee over the past year In fulfilling our
rasponsiblitties to provide effactive governance over the
Group's flnancial and risk affairs, to ensure that shareholders’
Interests are properly protected in relation to Internal controls,
financlal reporting and risk management.

In meeting these responsibilities, the Committee continues to
consider the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
and the FRC Guidance on Audit Committees.

lam pleased to report the successful Implementation of the
finance and non-stock procurerment modules of Oracle Cloud
ERP programme which has provided @ full financial accounting
and reporting suite. Implementation wasin Apriland our
accounts for 2018/19 hove been prepared using this new
software. Going forward, we anticipate that It will improve
efficiency of reporting and related financial controls and

allow significantly improved financial and commerclal analysls.
The Committee is gratetul to the finance and {Tteams who
have delivered this programme.

The next phase of our Infrastructure investment is being
planned and assessad to Integrate customer-facing and
supply chain elements. During the course of this assessment,

it has been determined that due to changesin the scope and
nature of this progromme, existing assets of £12.8m have been
Impaired. Further details are set out in matters of significance
and judgement on page 73.

Eftective Committee governance

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code 2016,
the Committee continues to be comprised exclusively of
independent Non-Executive Directors who provide a
combingtion of accounting. financial, risk. commercial and
strategic experience in complexlisted companies. The Board
has determined that both | as well as Peter Allen and Giles Kerr
meet the Code requirements for the Committee toinclude
at least one merber with recent and relevant financial
experience as we are all qualified cccountants with each

of us having over 30 years’ financlal, risk and cormmercial
experlence In listed companles.

The Committee actsindependently of management to
ensurs that the intarests of shareholders are appropriately
protected inrespect of financlal reporting. internal control
and risk management.

Committee meetings are attended, by invitation. by the Chief
Financlal Offlcer, Company Secretary (acting as secretary to
the Comprnitteg), representatives of the Company's external
auditor (PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC)). where rslevant.
certain members of senior management and the head of
Internal audit (function outsourced to KPMG LLP (KPMG)).
Representatives of the Group’s external auditor meet with the
Committee at least twice a year without Executive Directors
or management being present,

Kay responsibllities of the Committee

The Committes assists the Board In fulfilling ts oversight
rasponsibliities by acting Independently of the Executive
Directors. Thera is an annual schedule of topics which are
reviewed to ensure that the Committee covers fully those items
within its Terms of Referance. Thase Items are supplemented
throughout the yaar as key matters arise.

The Committee’s principal duties are as follows:

Accounting and financial reporting matters

Monitor the Integrity of the Group’s Interim Statement and
Annual Report and Accounts and any formal announcements
relating to the Group’s financlal performance;

Decide If the accounting policies are appropriate and review
significant financial reporting judgements and estimates:

Advlse the Board on whether, taken as a whole. the Annuai
Report and Accounts is fair, balanced and understandable;

Consider the Group’s statemaeant on going concern and
recommend to the Board that the Group and the Company
are a golng conceérn; and

Conslder and review the statement of the Group's viabillity
over a specified period in light ot its prin¢ipal risks ond
long-term financiol ptans, and recommend the longer-term
viabllity statement (LTVS) to the Board.

Tax matters

Oversee the Group's tax affairs and adhevence to the Group's
tax strategy.

Risk management, internal control and internal audit

Review the Group’srisk managemeant proceasses and
risk appetite; ,

Monitor the principal risks and thelr mitigation. review the
rabustneass of the risk management system and infernal
controls and advise the Beord accordingly:

Overseea assurance work Including the work of the Group’s
internal auditor; and

Review and monitor the whistleblowing policy and activity.
In accordance with the Corporate Governance Code 2018,
this responsibility has been assumed by the Board for the
coming yeor.

External audit

Oversee the Group's external audit process; and

Monitor the auditer’'s Independence. objectivity, effectiveness
and pedormance, and approve any engagament of the
external auditor outside of the Group's audit.

The Terms of Reference of the Committee are reviewed and
adopted by the Board annually and are available on the
Group’s corporate waebsite www.abcamplc.com

External advice

The Board makes funds avallable to the Committee to enable
it to take Independent legal. accounting or other advice when
the Committee belleves it necessary to do so.
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Audit and Risk Committee continued

Key Committes activities

The key areaqs of work carrled out by the Committee during the year were:

Fingneial reporting

- Considaering significant accounting and reporting judgements
and conciuding if acceunting pelicies and any amendments
tharetc were appropriate;

- Reviewing the acceunting jJudgements and estimates which
undasin tha financial statements as set cut innota 4 to the
financlcl staterments;

= Monitaring the Integrity of the Annual Report and Accounts,
the Interim Statement and any formai announcements reloting
to tinancigl performance, 10 ensure clarity and completeness of
disclosures, including those relating to alternative performance
maasures (Including odjusted performance measures):

Recelving presentations and subsequent updates frorm
management on all financial reporting matters;
= Reviswing the results and conclusions of work perfarmed
by the external auditas
= Reviewing the basls for the golng concern staternant In light
of financial plans and reasonably likely scenarios ana
recommending 1o the Board that the Company and the Group
are a golng concern;
= Reviewing tha kenger-term viabiltty staternent (LTVS), considering
e appropriateness of the flve-year time perdod on which the
LTVS Is basad. linkage 10 strategy. principal risks and the
assumptions underlying siress testing. togesther with relatsd
scenarld analysls;
Considering It the Annual Report and Accounts 2019. when taken
asawhole, Is falr, balonced and understandable; and

Raviewing the praparation for comptiance with Senior
Accounting Officer (3A0) legisiation which applies 10 the
Company for the first fime in respect of this current finaonclal year.

External gudit

The extermol auditor is appolinted by shareholders to provide
anopinion on the Annual Report and Accounts, PwC acled
a3 axternal auditor to the Group throughout the year and the
Committes is responsibia tor oversight. Activities in fulfiiling
this responsibility included:

- Approving the annuak audit plan and risk identification:

= Approving the leve| of 1ees pQid 1o the external auditor
for audit services;

= Reviewing the findings of the externol ouditor ond
managemant ‘s response. ensurng robust choilenge;

= Reviewingthe policy anthe use of the extemal auditor
for non-audit work and gpproving any such work; ang

= Reviewing the independence, objectivity. performance
and effactiveness of the external auditor.

‘Risk management and Internal control

= Reviewing principal risks and risk appetite (set ouf onpages 3710 44
to ensurs effective and cantinual improvernant In risk
management including reviewing and challenging the
assessment of business-wide risks and octlons to mitigate these;
Raviewing the affectivensass and integQrity of the internal financial
contrals tromewark which underpins financlal reparting by
considering reports on Intemal control. No fallures were Identifled,
however sxisting contrels continue to be streangthensa;
Monitoring prograss on the implementation and projact
govarnance of the ERP Implementation;

- Revigwing and approving the Group's treasury poilcy: and

= Monitoring and reviewing the outsourced Internal audit function
provided by KPMG, ensuring alignment with key risks, and
challenging key audit outcomes and recommaeandations.
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Etiectivaness of the external auditor

The Comumnittes undertakes an annuol assessment of the
effecriveness of the external Quaditor. This Gssassment Incorporataes
the views ot manogemaent in addition 1o the Non-Executive Directors
to fackitate continued Improvemaent in the extemal audit process.

The assessment considerad:

- Delivery of a thorough. robust and sfficient global audit,
complying with plan and timescales:

- Provisicn of accurate. robust and perceptive advice on
key accounting and audit judgemaents, fechnical lssues
and best practice;

= The level of professionalism and technical expertise consistently
demonstrated and maintenance of continuity within the core
oudit team: and

- Strict acherence to independence policies and other
ragulatory requitements.

The Committas concluded that ths above factors had baen
met, and that it continued 1o De satisfied with PwC’s performance
and effactivenass,

Compllance

The Committee reviews and considers the operation of the Group's
complicnce inltiatives, including the employee Code of Conduct
‘How wa do things at Abcam’. O globtal whistleblowing hotline and
portal. on anonymous messaging inbox for messaging the CEC and
compulsory online training for anti-bribery and comuption and GDPR.



Review of accounting and financial reporting matters and matters of significance and judgement

The Committes received reports from management and the external auditor setting out the significant accounting and financial

rsparting motters and judgements appiicable to the following key areas. Following dlscussion and challenge., the Commlttee

concluded as set out beiow.

Accounting and financiol
reporting matiers

Caommittee’s review and conglusions

Golng concern and longer-
term viability statement

The Committee reviewed the assumptions undsying both the going concern and longar-term viabliity
statements made on pages 88 and 435, respectively. The assessment was based upon the Group’s budget

and five-yacar financial and operating pians and risk assessment, and included appropriate scenaro analysis.
The Committes continued to be satistied that In respect of the longer-term viability statement, a perod ot five
yaars was sultable and concurred with management’s conclusions that the viability statement is appropriate.

Falr, halanced and
understandable

In ensuring that the Group's repoerting is fair. balanced and understandabte, the Committes reviewed
the classification of items betwaen adjusted and reported performance maasuras and the clarlty and
comprehensiveness of disclosures around adjusting items.

In additton, the Committee gave dua consideration to the Intagrity and sufficlancy of Information disclosed
in the Annual Report and Accounts 1o ensura that thay clearly axplain the Group's financial position,
parformance, business model and strategy. An assessment of the narrative raporting was olso undertakan ta
ansure consistency with the financlat mporting section. Inciuding appropriate disclosure of moterial one-off
ltams and appropriate balance of reported ond adjusted performance measures

Matters of significance
and judgement

Inventory provisioning

The caiculation of the Inventory provision Includes a degree of estimation ond jJudgement of the likelihood
that Individual products will ba sold at soma point Inthe future. at a valus equivalent to or graater than cost,

The Committee’s review included an assessment of the reasonableness of future sales forecasts (which are
based on getudl sales pattarmns in provious years) and the shelf lifg of products.

Costing of Internally
developed tachnology
capitalised within intangible
assets

Internal costs are caplialised as intarnally developed technology within intangible assats which is used

to generate antibodies and kits. The polnt at which such Internal costs are included and capltalised as well as
thelr magnitude (where the amount capltallsed comprises on element of overhead allocation) s akey arec
of judgement.

The Co'mrnlﬂse discussed and chdllenbod managemaent s review ond also considered the report from the
auditor on the results of its testing.

Clgassification of cosls
lated with system
process improvements
together with assessment
of carnrying value and
impalrment charges

The strategic ERP programme Is @ complex, multl-year global business transformation with numerous phases
extending across multiple Group functions. Dellvery of the programme Is necessary to secure the Group's
lenger-term growth ambitions and to move fram end of iife legacy Information technology.

During the latter part of the year the finance and non-stock procurement modulas of the ERP succassfully wanr

live. with HR and Customer Service modules having gone Iive praviously. Aflaer an extensive review of business
requirements and the current functionality of Qracle Cloud ERP software as wall as othar best In ciass software
providers, a decision was taken to make some changes to the approach and software used in thess areqgs.
The opportunity was also taken 1o extend the scope of the programme 12 Integrate improvements In these
functional areas with front-end system enhancements 1o Improve customers’ end-to-end exparience through
logistics and ultimateiy inte manufacturing.

Taking this Into account, a review was undertaken of histarical expanditure Incumed to date and it has been
eoncivded that as @ rasult of changes In the scope and nature of the original programme, and the
cortrasponding usabllity of historical work performed. assets of £12.8m have bean impairad.

The Committee has maintained lts review of the Implementation of financial accounting and contrals
modulas. In ling with st year, the Committee has provided ovarsight of the accounting for both capital and
revenue expeanditura across the programmae. Tha Committes discussed and chollenged the nature of the

costs, the allocation of costs 1o sach module (as described in note 4 to the consolidated financlal statements)

and managemant’s conclusions on the level ofimpalrment charge. Primary oversight of this Important
programme ot Board level has been maintqained.
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Audit and Risk Committee continued

Internal audi -

KPMG was appointed to provide internal oudit services

to the Group in 2016/17. Internal audit activity durlng 2018/19
has focused on:

= Payrollreview in China:

= Sales coatalogue pricing and discounts:

= Order fulfiiment and inventory managemant;
- GDPR and

- Risk management.

KPMG has provided updates on prograss against the internat
audit plan at each Commities meeting. iIncluding progress
agalnst actions arlsing from qudits completed In 2017/18.

The Committee monitors the effectivensess of the Internal cudit
tunction, Including managernent’s response to internal audit
tindings. The Committee is saflisfied that the Internal audit
programme remains risk focused. is functioning satistactorly
across the Group and that management is open to reviews
and take action on recommeandations on atimely basis.

The Committee Is currently ovaersaeing a review ofhow the
internal audtt function will evolve in 2019/20.

independence and objectivity of external auditor

Both the Board and the external auditor (PwC) have safeguards
in place to protect the Independence and objectivity of the
external cuditor, These were raviewad by the Committee
during the year and remain satisfactory. In accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK). PwC formally confirmed
to the Board ifsindependence as auditor of the Company.

Any non-audit sarvices require approval by the Committee
and the amounts are sot outin note 6 to the financial
statements. Non-audit fees comprised mainly fees for audit-
related assurance sarvices for the review of the Company’s
Interirm Statement.

Non-audit fees amounted to £22.000 (2017/18; £25,000)
compared to £186,000 (2017/18: £184.000) of audit fees.
The non-Qudit fees as a percentage of audit fees was 12%
(2017/18: 14%), which reflects the Group’s restrictive policy
govemning the use of PwC for non-audit services.
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Auditor appointment and lendering

PwC has served as Abcam’s external auditor since September
2013, when afull tender process was undertaken. The current
oudit portner, Sam Taylor, has served torone year and replaced
Simon Ormiston who had served for a five-year term and
rotated In accordance with best practice and the FRC's

Ethical Standards.

After considering PwC’s continued objectivity. independence
and performance and with PwC having confirmed Hs willingness
1o continue in office as external auditor. the Committee
recommended to the Board that PwC be re-appointed as
external auditor for the 2019/20 financlal year. subject to
approval at the AGM.

Conclusions

The Committee has had another productive yaar providing
oversight of financial reporting, extemal and internal audit,
ond the further development of the control and risk
environmentsincluding the recentimplementation of the
financial and non-stock procurement Oracie Cloud ERP

‘modules. This will continue as the Group grows and develops

in line with Hs strategy and we will ensure that finance and
risk capability is enhanced appropriately to manage in
an incredasingly compilex business.

Sue Harrls
Audit and Risk Commitiee Chairman
6Septeamber 2019



Remuneration Committee

Remunercation Committee
Our remuneration

structure is aligned to the
Company's culture and
aims to support Abcam’s
long-term sustaincable
growth while fostering

our underlying philosophy
of share ownership.

Louise Patten
Remuneration Committee Chalrman

Committee Committee members
meetings and attendonce
Mestings
Louise Patten 4/4
(Chalrman)
Peter Allen 4/4
Mara Aspinall daf4
Sue Harrls 414
Giles Kerr in
{Member from
19 March 2019
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Remuneration Committee continued

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
Commiftee’s Report for the year ended 30 June 2019,

We delivered another solld financiol performance In 2018/19,
with totat constant exchange rate (CER) revenue growth of
9.2%. Catalogue revanue rose 9.8% to £242.8m whiist Custom
Products & Licensing revenue rose 0.4% 10 £17.1m., bothona
CER basls. Adjusted EBITDA was £92.4m, up 4.6%. We sustained
double-digit catalogue revenue growth by continuing to gain
share In each of our global markets, growing at approximately
twice market rates. The drivers of this growth arose from our
successes in expanding our quality product range In
recombinant antibodies and continuing to bulld out
Immunoassays as a new business lina.

The dynamics of the markets we serve remain positive.

The investments we have made. and will continue 1o make,
are enabling Abcam to sustain strong top line growth and
qachleve the stretching strategic and financial targets we
have set ourselves.

Within this context | would like to provide you with an overview
of the Committea’s major decisions during 2018/19.

Remunseration policy

Inlast year’s Annual Report, we presented o number of
changes to our Directors’ Remuneration Policy following a
strategic review and engagement with our stakeholders over
the course of 2017/18. 87% of shareholders voted In tavour of
the new policy when It was put to an advisory vote at the 2018
AGM. We thank all stakeholders for thelr feedback throughout
the process. We firmly belleve that the changes mads were
appropriate In ight of Abcam's exceptional growth and volue
creation since Alan Hirzel was appointed CEQ, and that the
new policy will continue 1o support Abcam’s future growth
and phllosophy of share ownership,

New globat all empioyees share plan

In auturnn 2018, we Introduced AbShare, our new global
dll employee share plan, with the olm of bringing greater
alignment across the organlisation with the Interests of our
stakeholders while supporting our culfure and underying
philosophy of employee share ownership.

Participants in AbShare contribute 5% of thelr base salary over
three years (1.67% per annum) which Is used to buy shares In the
Company at the end of the savings pericd. Inreturn, the Company
matches thisinvestment by the employee at aratio of 10shares
tor evary one share purchased, subject to financial performance
criteria being satisfled and continuous employment.

} am delighted to say that 88% of colleagues chose tojoin
AbShare and the plan has galned external recognition too,
winning a 2019 Global Equity Qrganisation (GEQ) award for
the "Most Innovative and Creative Plan Design (companies
with <5,000 employees)’.
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AbShare represents a step ¢change In employes share
ownership at Abcorn and will greatly enhance the alignment
of intarasts between colleagues and other stakeholders.

CFO departure

Asannounced on 22 July 2019, Gavin Wood will be stepping
down as Chief Financial Officer over the next year to continue
his career closer to his family home, Over the last three years
Gavin has been steadfastly committed to our mission and he
has significantly enhanced the finance function. | thank him
for his contribution to the Company’s continued development
and growth and wish hirn every success with the next phase
of his career. Detalls of Gavin's leaving arangerments are
onpage 83.

Base salary for Executive Directors

Alan Hirzel and Gavin Wood recelved anincrease In base
salary of 2.5% to €415,000 and £323,060, respectively. effective
1 July 2019, broadly In line with the average Increase for
Abcam’s UK employees of 2.7%.

Details of the faes for membars of the Non-Executive Board cre set
out on page 81. While no members of the Non-Executive Board
arse Involved In determining thelr own tees. they are provided

In this report as part of our reporing on Directors” remuneration,

2018/19 remuneration out-turns for Executive Directors

= Annual Bonus Plan (ABP) - the annual bonus out-turns in
2018/19 were 50.0% and 41.8% of the maximum award for
financlal and strategic measures. respectively. reflecting
our performance against stretching targets during the year.
In combination with strong performance which significantly
exceeded expectations under the personal objectives for
both of our Executive Directors, this mecns our Annual Bonus
Plan will pay 55.8% of the maximum for both the CEQ and
CFQ of which 30% Is deferrad into shares, In line with our
policy. Further detalls regarding achlevement against
each perforrance target are set out on page 80.

- Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) - the awards granted to Alan
Hirzel and Gavin Wood on 4 November 2016 contained
performance conditions related to Earnings Per Share (EPS)
and strateglc KPls measured over the three finoncial years
ended 30 June 2019, Over the performance perlod,
compound EPS grew 11.0% per annum against @ minimum
target of 8% and a maximum target of 12%. The cverall
achlevement of strategic objectives was above threshold
but below maximum, and the award will therefore vest at
76.4% of the maximum award. Further details regarding the
achlievement agalnst the performance targetsis on page 81.



As a Commititee we will continue to ensure our remunaration
structure Is aligned to the Company’s culture that supports
Abcam’s long-term sustainable growth, whilst fostering our
underlying philosophy of share ownership.

Loulise Patten
Remunseration Committes Chairman
6 Septamber 2019

Remunercation at a glance

Strategically aligned

Ourremuneration structure reflects andis aligned with our
business sttategy and cutture. Equity ownership is central to
our approach to remuneration which we belleve can drive the
right long-term behaviour and alignment with stakeholders’
intarest in the Company’s sustainable long-term profitable
growth. To further align the interests of Executive Directors with
those of stakehoiders, they are requirad to bulld and maintain
significant shareholdings in Abcam over time. equal to
two-times thelr base salaries in value.

This year we introduced AbShare, our new global all employee
share purchase plan, wih a significant performance match from
Abcam. AbShare reprasents a step change In employee share -
awnership at Abcam and will greatly enhance the alignment
of interests between colleagues and our shareholders.

Corporate governance

Pay for performance

The remuneration of our leaders is structured to premote
the long-term success of the Company and to reward value
craation for our stakeholders.

Short-term incentives

Assessment of short-term incentives under the Annual Bonus
Plan (ABP) is made against ascorecard of performance
measures buillt around Abcam's key finoncial and other
strateglc priorities for the relevant year. There Is a deferral L&
of shares under the ABP for Exacutiva Directors ond senior
managess for a further two-year period following the initiol

year of performance measurement,

Financial statements

Long-term incentives

Awards are linked to long-ferm financial and strotegic
objectives. To further promote equity ownarship and long-term |
performance, vesting occurs at the end of a three-year period
with holding periods applylng up to a further three years.

Market competitive

Alt elements of cur remuneration are reviewed regularly

to ensura thay remain market competitive in order to attract
and retain talent as well as to aveld excessive overpayment,

Fair pay
We are commiitted to paying our peopte fairly, ensuring that
all our employees are appropriately and fairly rewarded.

Clesar, transparent and simple

A key priority is to ensure that all of our employees understand how
they are rewarded and we betlave our remuneration structures
should be as clear and simple Qs possible, o that everyone
canunderstand how they are remunerated for performance.

Compliance andrisk

The Committee’s role is to ensure ourremuneration structures
are compllant with the laws and corporate governance
requirements that apply and risk ossessment is a key
consideration of all remuneraticn dacislons.
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Remuneication at a glance continued

2018/19 Remuneration at a glance

Components of remuneration

(A1

2018 LTIP out-turn for 2014-32019 000
CEQ -Alan Hirzel 72%
Fixed [salary ] + [Pension and other benems]  CFO - Gavinwood 363
CFO - Gavin Wood (Ona-off new jeiner 440
award)
Variable [Annual bonus ] + [ ] une
vasting
- (%ol
- omar ot
Performance measures ghtling achi t Imum)
EPS giowth
= [Total remuneration | S$tategic RabmAbreveruegowth  7.5%
Non-primaries revenue 7.5%
growth Above 19.9%
Fixed Net proamaoter score 7.5% fthreshoid )
relative 1o market leader
Salary £000
Market position 7.5%
CEQ ~Alan Hirzel &00
Ovaerall 100% 16.4%
CFO - GavinWood as
Pensions and pension-related
CFo Ao rurel 75~ Jotal remuneration
CFO -~ Gavin wWood 42
CEO = Alan Hirzel
Beneiits
CEOQ-AlanHirzel 12
CFO ~Gavin Wood 29
Variable
Annual bonus IFixeg 35.9%
Bonus out-turn for 2018/19 gavg  Varicble s41%
CEO - Alan Hirzet S02 SFO —GovinWooa
CFO-GavinWood 184 ~Ravin Woo
200019
Qut-turn
{%of
Ovarall overall
Pert *3 Waeighting }
FAnancial Adjusted profit before tax 50% Target 235.0%
Strategic Recombinant antibody
ravenua growth : Fixed 28.1%
Variable 71.9%
ImMMmunoQssay revanue Above
growth 3% threshold 13.8%
Customer engogement:
NPS Shareholding requirements
Pearsanal 17% Maximum 17.0%
Ovaerall 100% 85.8% Aclual shareholding
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CEQ - Alan Hirzel 200% of base salary 310.0%

CFO - Gavin Wood 200% of base salary 80.9%




Implementation of Directors’ Remuneration Policy
in 2019/20

Executive Directors’ bose salaries
The base salarles of the CEQ and CFO were increased as follows with effect frarm 1 July 2019.

ry Salary as ot

201819 1 July 2019

$000 Change £000

AlanHirzel CEQ &00 2.5% 615

GovinWood CFO 315 2.5% 323

Annual Bonus Plan

The overall framewoik under the Annual Bonus Plan (ABP) will be as follows:

Maxl % of salary 21019/20 meqsures Walghting

Annual Bonus Flan 150%. of which 30% of any bonus s Financiafl targets 50%

deferred Into shares Strategic targets 33%

Personal objectives 17%

The Committee Introduced a performance cross-underpln to the ABP in 2015. At the Committee’s discretion, vesting may be
rastricted if any of the three performance elements {financial, strategic or personal) shows serious underperformance. orlf the
Committee determines that there has been underperformance on the part of an Executiva Directorin their role.

LFIP awards

In thelr assessment of performancs and the continuation of positive growth, the Committee considered it appropriate for the
2019 LTIP award for Alan Hirzel to be made at the same level asin 2018, as set outin the table below. Following the announcement
of Gavin Wood's depariure. he willnot be eligible for an LTIP award in 2019.

Job title 2019 awarg iavel Proposad maasurss

CEQO 400% 125% of salary medsured agoainst EPS (87.5%) and strotegic targets (37.5%).
275% of solory measured ugainst profitable revenue growth targets,

The EPS and strategic targets are measurable, quantifiable and aligned with the Group’s KPIs and are considered appropriately
stretching in the context of our business strategy.

The EPS award will be 8% growth per annum compound for threshold vesting and 12% per annum cormpound for rmaximum
vesting, Vesting will be gt 25% if compound EPS growth Is 8% per annum compound, increasing on g straight-line basis to
maximum if growth IS 12% per annurn compound or greater. The profitable revenue growth targets will be 6% growth per annum
compound for threshold vesting and 10% per annum compound for maximum vesting. measured over a three-year vesting
period in constant currency. Vesting will be at 40% if profitable revenue growth 1s 6% per annum compound. Increasingon a
straight-line basls to maximum If growth is 10% per annum compound or graater. Revenue will be adjusted for new shares Issued
on q weighted basls. The Remuneration Committee wiil, at its discretion, make an adjustment if it judges that lower quality
revenues have been acquired during the period.

Awards under the LTIP gre subject to post-vesting retention perlods with a restriction on sale for an additional term. as set out
in the table below. .

% sthares with sales restriction litted by anniversary of vesting date

1 year 2ynars Iysats 4 yeors
CEO 40% 20% 20% 20%
CFO 50% 25% 25% e

Pensions and flexible benefits

The Executlve Directors are entitled to contributions from the Company of up 1o 13% of base saiary into a flexible benetits

fund which can be used for defined contribution pension plan contributions. a range of flexible benefits, or an equivalent cash
supplement. They also raceive arange of core benefits such as lite insurance, private medical cover and annual health screens.
In addition, Gavin Woad receives a company car benefit.

Non-Executive Direciors

During 2016 the Company put In place fee arrangements for all NEDs where d portion of their fees would be delivered as a

fixed number of fully paid ordinary shares and this structure was continued in 2018/19 with a re-calibrated notional share price.
Effective ) July 2018, the Company Introduced a supplemental allowance of £12,500 per onnum for Sue Harrls and Lowlse Potten
for their roles as Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, respectively.
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Annual Report on Remuneration

ALUDITED INFORMATION
a) Executive Directors’ single figure for total remuneration in 2018/19
The aggraegate remuneration provided to Directors is set out below.

Fixed Vatl (peri tated)
Penslons
and pension- Annual e Total
Sasesalary Benadrs' tod? b *  pay Ll A
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £°000
Alan Hirzel 2018719 500 12 78 502 725 1.914
201718 492 3 67 461 765 1.788
Gavin Wood 2018/19 315 29 42 184 803 1373
‘ 201718 308 24 41 288 5 656
Total 201819 918 41 nz 686 1,528 3,207
2017/18 800 27 108 749 770 2454

5

-3

The Company operates a tlexible benefits scheme through which the Executive Directors are anlified to paricipatein o range of benefits which inchude lite insurance,
private healthcare ond company car benefits. The 2018719 figures far Alan Hirzel and Gavin Wood also inclyde the cost of US tax compliance suppart.

The Executive Directors are enlitled to contributions trom the Company of up I 13% of base salary into 0 defined contibution penslon pion. Whare the Exocuﬂvo
Directors have slected not 10 receive full contributicns from the Company, they gre entitled fo draw an equh v cash suppl i, odjusted kor employer's N
Insurance (NI contributions. such that the Company is in @ neuiral position.

Bonusis pakd 70% In cash and 30% as deferred shares which vest onthe second anniversory immediately following a perod of ten dealing days ofter the Company
onnounces its preliminary results for the financial year. subject to continuaus smplayment. In 2018/19 the value of the deferred share award wilt e nso 528 for Alan
Hirzel (2017/18: §138.375) and §nil fo1 Gavin Wood ot sxplained further in note (), below (2017/18: $84,484).

2018/4¢ LTIP {Long-TermIncentive Plan) poymaents for Alan Hirzel and Gavin Wood represent the value of the 2014 LTIP. based on the average fuir market value inthe
final quarter, being £13.44. Gavin Waod's figure also Inciudes his new jolner awaerd vesting in November 2019 vaiued on the some Basis.

2017/18 tong-term iIncentives for Aton Hirzel represent the value of the 2015 LTIP which vested ot 90.44% and SIP shares granted in yeor based on ihe averoge 2017/18 Q4
voive. being $)2.48.

2007118 total exciudes £192.000 pald to Jim Warwick, a farmer dir . WO (83ig1 end D Yoer 2016,

Annual Bonus Plan (ABP) - targets and performonce ocutcomaes
The 2018/19 ABP consisted of three elements: Group profit performance. achlgvement of strategic goals andindividual

performance.
201019
aut-fum (% of
Threshold 'I'crgol fxcead Maximum Overall overall
Perlormance measures Welghting (25%) i) {100%) achi \ )
Financial Adjusted PET' 50% - £86-88m £88-20m ‘£90-92rm >£92m Target 25%
strategic Recombinant antibody Recombinant antibody revenue growth wasachleved ot
revenue growth threshold level of performance in the range of 22%-26%.,
Immunoassay 3% Immunoassay revenue growth was below Above 13.8%
revenue growth the threshold range. threshoid '
Customer engagement: Customer engagement tNPS gchievad was gregter
INPS? than the maxmum target of 65%.
Paersonal Personai objectives for The Executive Directors significantly exceeded
the Executive Directors expactations under all of the personal objectives for
comprising a range of the year. The objectivesincluded the successful and
targets. 7% on-time exacution of: () Oracle Claud ERP (i) new Meodmum 17.0%
headquarters, (i) key senlor leadership recruitment
and (iv) corporate development activities.
Overall 100.0% 55.8%

FAnancial performanceisbosed on ih-Group 's adjusted profit bsiore tox (adjusted PBT). amended to reflect bonyses on g budgeted sxchange rate basis and ony other
items the Remur Hon Commit cor it iate o adjust for.

InNovember 2013, the Company appointed anew Truruachonal Net Premoter Score (INPS) survey parinar. Az a consequence of this, the mechanism by which
customaer feedback is obfalined gedand ina NP3 va thot s opproximately 10% lower than under the previous mechanism. As the original forgel
was sst with reference to the previous mechanism. the Committes resclved 1o adjust for this mid-year change on a pro-rata basis from November 2018,
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a) Execulive Directors’ single figure for total remuneration in 2018/19 continued

tong Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) - targets and parformance outcomes

The vesting of the LTIP awards granted In 2016 to Alan Hirzel and Gavin Wood, and the performance-based element of Gavin
Wood's joiner award, were based on the following performance out-turns.

LTIP vesting
Threshaid Maximum Overall (% of overoll
Perlormance measures Walighting performancs petiormance i ment imum)
financial Compound annual 70% 8% 12% 11.0% 56.5%
EPS growth'
Strotegic RabMAb revenue growth 7.5% Exceeded the maxmum target of 20%
growth.
Nen-primaries 7.5%  Below the maximum target of 20%
revenue growth growth.
Net promotor score 7.5%  Threshold performance Above threshold 19.9%
relative to market leader target not met.
Market position 7.5%  Achieved maximum target of 1stIn
primary antibodies category as wallas
2nd In non-prirmaries antibody category.
Overall 100.C% 76.4%

1 Eomings Per Shore (EPS) compaound annual growth rate. amended for events which were unforesaen when the target was setin 2016, Including the incramental cost
ol Changes o our share incentive schemas and ERP programme costsin 2019.

The PBT and £PS targets set under the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP have been disclosed in full. For the strateglc measures, targets
have been disclosed where not considered commerclally sensitive.

b) 2018/19 single figure for total ramuneration for the Chairman and the other Non-Execufive Directors (NEDs)

The Company has a philosophy of share ownership which i3 extended to the Chairman and NEDs by delivering one third of their
faes as Abcam shares. Shares for NEDs are awarded ot the beglnning of the first open period following the announcement of
the annual results. PAYE and Nl are deducted and the net amount is used to purchase the actual shares dellvered to sach NED.
Each NED has committed not to transfer or sell these shares during the term of their non-executive directorship.

Single figure for total remuneration
The aggregate fees paid to Non-Executive Directors who served the Company during the year ended 30June 2019:

Foes
201819 017718
Te be
Deliveared deliverad Delivered Dalivered
Total tas ascash as shares' Total fee ascosh assharest
00 £000 £500 2000 £000

Current Non-Executive Directors
Peter Allen? 225 150 75 Q 9 —_
Jonathaon Miliner 70 47 23 70 47 23
Louise Patten? 83 55 28 129 8é 43
Sue Harris a3 55 28 70 a7 23
Mara Aspinall* n 48 23 70 a7 23
Glles Kerr® 39 27 12 — - -_
Past Non-Executive Directors -
Murray Hennessey?* - — -— &7 67 —
Total remuneration 5N 3082 189 415 303 112

1 Shares wilbe awarded at the beginning of the first open period following the cnnouncemant of tha annual resultsin September 2019

2 PeterAllen wosappointed Chairman on 18 june 2018 and received his fee for June 2018 in cash only. Effective 1 Juty 2018, his fee arrangement ls structured in the same
way a3 the other Non-Executive Directors with two thirds paid Incash and one Ihird in shares.

3 Louisa Pattan's fee for 2017/18 Included a temporary Increase of £100.000 per annum which was tHime apportioned to reflect her Hlrme osinterim Chairmgn from
14 Novermbar 2017 until 10 Juno 2018.

4 Moo Aspinall received tax compliiance support in the preparation of has tox returns relahng 1o hut incoms from Abcam for which £1.200 was pald by Abcamand
isincludied in the total fee for 201819,

5 GilesKerr was appointed Non-Executive Director on 12 December 2018 and recelved his fes for December 2018 In cash only. Eftective 1 January 2019, his fee
arrangement is structurad in the sama way as the other Non-Executive Directors with two thirds paid in cash and one third In sharas.

6 Murray Hennessy stepped down as Chairman on 14 November 2017. The 2017/18 ‘Delivered as cash’ figuee In the table above represents the pro-rated cash element
of his fees 1o his departure date and the cash equivalent of his share entittemant to this date converted ot the closing prics on 14 November 2017, being £9.66,
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Annudal Report on Remuneration continued

AUDITED INFORMATION centinued

¢} Executive Directors’ share scheme interests

Date of
Vested!
award Maximum Awarded releaied Maxlmum
Qronted In Price at receivable of during during recelvable ot
theyeor awarddate Aword bosis 1 July 2018 the yeor the year' Lapsed 30 June 2019
Alan Hirzet
ABP - Deferred shares 26 Oct 18 £13.42 Up to 45% base salary 25,248 10,308 (9. 1690 —_— 26,387
LTiP 7Nov 18 £12.33 400% base salary 197.011 194,647 (59.882) {6.330) 3285.446
SIP Free shares _— _— —_ 1.374 - (601) - 773
SIP Matching shares —_ —_ _ 713 — 3013 -_— 412
SIP Dividend shares J0ONov 18 £11.54 Perscheme rules 173 43 5 -_ 1727
&12 Apr19 £12.20

224.519 205.G18 (70.012) (4.330) 353.195

Gavin Wood
ABP -Deferredsharas 26 0Oct 18 £13.42 Up to 45% base salary 9,554 6,442 - -_— 15,996
TP 7 Nov 18 £12.33 200% base salary 105,192 51,124 _— - 156,318
S1P Fres shares -_ -— Par schemea rules 73 -_— -— -— 773
SIP Matching shares - _— Per scheme rules 412 - _ — M2
SIP Dividend shares J0Nov 18 £11.54 Per schemae rules 19 17 -_ —_ 38

& 12Apri9 £12,20

115.950 57.583 - —_ 173,533

1 Theout-turn for minkmum parfarmance under the LTIP ks 25% with awards vesting on o stroight-ine basl: up to the maximum depending on achievemaent

of perfarmance conditions.,

2 The market price of shares released to Alan Hirzel under the ABP and LTIP during the yeor was 813,51 and §12.32. respectively, resulting In galns of $123.873 and £737.656,

respectively.

Share incentlve Plan (SIP)

In 2017718 and prior to that. the Company maintoined an HM Revenue and Customs approved SIP. No awards will be gronted
underthe SIP while AbShare, the new all smployee share plan, Is In place, except for Dividend reinvestments. Neither Alan Hirzel
orGavin Wood are eligible to participats in AbShare,
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Stratagic report

AUDITED INFORMATION continued

d) Directors’ beneficial shareholdings and share interests

A shareholding guldeline of two times salary for all Executive Directors has beenin effect from the date of the 2015 AGM and was
renewad at last year's meeting. This level is to be built up over a pericd anding on the iater of the fifth anniversary of appolintment
or the fifth anniversary of introduction of the policy and ceases to apply after they cease 1o be an Executive Diractor of Abcam.
Until the shareholding guideline is achieved, an Executive Director is prohibited from selling any shares they have acquired
through a Company scheme. They can, howevaer, sall sufficlent shares to satisty any tax llabllity that may arise on the release

or exercise of an award.

Sharaholdings for all Directors is set out as follows:

Corporala governance

Beneficlally owned 30 Juns 2019 Baneficially owned 30 Juna 2018
Notsubject Subjecito Volusasa Not sublect Sublectio Valueasa
ta retention retention percentage 1o retention ratention porcantage
conditions’ conditions? Total of salary’ conditions' conditions? Tetal ofsclary/fes’ W
Executive Directors
Alon Hirzel 90.075 48,133 138,208 310.0% 68.967 27.445 96,412 248.5%
Gavin Wood 11.912 — 11.912 50.9% 11,912 —_ 11,912 49.1%
Non-Executive
Directors
Jonathan Miiner 19,926,619 6,196 19,932,815 20.886.072 4,106 20.8%0,178 5]
Peter Allen 12,000 -— 12,000 - - —_
Sue Harrls - 5,318 5,318 - 3.240 3.240
Louise Patten 45,299 7,29 52,590 37.261 3,262 40,523 w
Mara Aspinall 5.070 6,114 11,184 5,070 2,832 7.902
Giles Kerr - - - - _ -_
|_bCA

1 Includes$IP shares held In trust which are not sublect to forfelture condiions upon terminafion of smployment ond shares held by connected perons.

2 Sharessubjoct laretention conditions are entitied to dividends and accordingly are banaficially awned.

3  Avolue of813.45 (30 June 2018 £12.68) pershare was used to value tha beneficiolly owned sharas based on the average morket share price In the final quarter
of tha financial year.

@) Non-execulive appoiniments at other companies
Neither of the Executive Directors served as NEDs elsewhere during the yvaar.

1} CFO leaving arrangements

As announced on 22 July 2019, Gavin Wood has given Abcam notice of his Intentlon to step down from the Board. To ensure
anordery transition, it has been agreed that Gavin will work his 12 month notice period with the proviso that if he securesa
commaensuiate position before It ends, the Committee would consider releasing him early and his notice. annual bonus plan
participation and pro-rata share awards would be reducedin mitigation accordingly.

The tfreatment of hisincentive awards will be subject to time pro-rating and performance, as set out below:

- Inraspactofthe 2018/19 annual bonus, the cash element (70%) will be paid: however a deferred share award will not be granted,
reducing the overall annual bonus for the year.

- Gavinwill ramain eligible to recelve o cash award under the Annual Bonus Plan Inrespect of his performonce in 2019/20,
at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, He will hot be sliglible for the portion deferred Into shares.

- Qutstanding deferred share awards in respect of the 2016/17 and 2017/18 Annual Bonus Plan wlll be permitted to vest
In accordance with normat timelines (e.g. in September 2019 and 2020 respectively).

- No LNIP award will be granted In 2019,

- 2016, 2017 and 2018 LTIP awards will subsist and be subject to performance, pro-rated for time served during the
performance period.
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Annucl Report on Remunercation continued

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

o) Performance graph

The Company’s Tokal Shareholder Return (TSR) since 2008 compared to a broad equity market is shownin the graph below and
reprasents the value by 30 Juna 2019 of £100Invested in the Company’s shares on 1 July 2008 compared with the FTSE 250 Index
and the FTSE AiM 100 Incex. The FTSE 250 Index has been chosen as the comparator because Abcam would sit within this if it were
listed on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange. The Committee considers the relatively complexinternational nature of
this index to be comparable to the Company’s business operations where a large proportion of revenues are generated outside
the UK.

TSR periormance graph (data at 30 June each year)
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b) CEOQ remuneration
The table below shows the historical total remuneration for the person undertaking the role of CEQ:

Lang-term
Annual benus incentive
. CEQuingle awarded vesting rates
figure for fotal against against
remuneration maximum maximum
Finanolal year £000 opportunity opporiunity
2018/19 Alan Hirzel 1.914 55.8% 74.4%
2017718 Alan Hirzel 1,788 62.5% 90.44%
20617 Alan Hirzel 1.369 78.0% 71.6%
2015116 Alan Hirzel 614 52.0% n/a*
201415 Alan Hirzel 685 73.3% n/a'
2013114 Jonathan Milner 642 56.8% —
201213 Jonathan Milner 821 71.2% 16.9%
20112 Jonathan Milner 739 60.0% 96.3%
2010/ Jonathan Milner 805 62.7% 100.0%
200910 Jonathan Milner 716 100.0% n/a

1 Vasting of tangsterm Incentives ls measured over a thies-year performance period. For the 2014/15 and 2015/16 years, Alan Hirzel hod not been smployed by Abcam
for enote than tivee yeors, and therefore no long-term incentives had vested.
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UNAUDITED INFORMATION continued

c) Percentage change in CEO remuneration

Abcam has an international workforce of 1,155 employees in 11 countrles, Due to the differing local pay levels across each
of our oversaas offices, the Committea considers the most meaningful comparator group to be the average remuneration
of UK employees.

The following table shows the percentage change in remuneration between the years ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2019
for the CEO and this comparator group.

Annual

Satlary bonus’

CEO percantage change ‘ 2.5% 8.9%
Comparator group percentage change? 2.7% -18.9%

1 Anngolbonus award for the finoncial year paid in October following e and of the yeor, The CEQ's bonus award was higher than the pricr year dus to his salary
Increose effective 1 July 2018,
2 Comparator group I8 Inclusive of promotions In the annual salary review cycie.

d) Relatlve importance of spend on poy
The table below shows Abcam’s dividend payout increased by 1.1% versus the total Group statf costs increase of 17.2% between
the financial years ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2019,

Year snded Year snded

30 June 2009 0 June 2018
&m Sm %increase?
Dividends in respect of the financial year 249 246 1.1%
Total Group statf costs? 72.8 62.1 17.2%

1 DMidencis are tha interim and final dividends paid in respect of the financial year ended 30 Juna 2018, and the interdm dividend paid and the final dividend
racommaended in respact of the financlal year ended 30 Juna 2019.

2 TotalGroup staff costs ncludes benuses. employer socialsecurily, pansion contributions, redundancies and share-based charges.

3 Increcseintotal Group stal costs due to on overall Increase in headcount in ' to satary i for existing empioyses during tha year.

o) Remuneration Commities

The Cornmittee advises the Board on overall Remuneration Policy on behalf of the Board, and with the benefit of advice from
extarnal consultants and the SVP, Hurnan Resources, it also determines the remuneration of the Executive Directors and proposes
a tee for the Chalrman of the Board of Directors {(with the Chalrman not being present for any discussions on his fee). The
ramuneration of the NEDs is determined by the Chairmaon and the Executive Directors.

The Committes formulates and applies the policy with consideration to the prevailing economic climate in the major economies
In which the Group operates. It also obsarves the spirit of the Group's core values, including responsible leadership Inthe external
andinternal social environment. Consequently. the Committee closely considers the Company’s performance in bullding both
long-tarm value and a secure future for all stakeholders. :

The Committee currently comprises five NEDs, each of whom the Company deems to be Independent: Peter Allen, Louise Patten,
Sue Harris, Mara Aspinali, and Glles Kert. Loulse Patten is chalrman of the Committee.

The Chief Executive Otficer, Company Secretary. and $VP, Humaon Resources attend the Committee meetings by invitation and
assist the Committee in the execution of Its objectives. except whenissues relating to thelr own compensation are discussed.

No Directoris invoived in deciding his or her own remuneration.

Whila it is the Committee’s responsibliity to exerclse Independent Judgement. the Committee doesrequest advice from
management and professional advisors, 50 as to be informed on the internal and external environment.

No mamber of the Committee has any personal financial Interest, other than as o shareholder, In the matters to be decided by
the Committee. The five Independent members of the Committee have na confiicts of interast arising from cross-directorships.
Membaers of the Committee have no day-te-day involverment In the running of the Company, The Committee met four times
during the year, Detalls of attendance can be found in the Corporate Governance Report {see page 60).
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

UNAUDITED INFORMATION continued

@) Remuneration Committee continued

External advisors to the Committee

The following table sets out the details of external advisors who provided material assistance to the Committee during the year
in lts consideration of mattars related to Directors’ remunaeration:

Fees for

Committes
Advisors Appointment and selaciion Ofhet services provided to the Company gssfstance
Deloitte LLP (Deloitte) Appointed to provide ongoing advice to Acivice on employee reward. £18.050

the Committes on various matters including
Diractors’ remuneration reperting
ragulations, shareholder communication
and other governance matters.

Deloltte is a member of the Remuneration Consuttants Group and, as such, voluntarlly operates under the Code of Conduct
In relation to executive remunaration consulting In the UK. The Cornmittee is satisfied that advice received from Deloitte during
the year was objective and independent.

Statement of voting at general meeting
The tabla below shows the advisory vote on the 2018 Annual Report on Remuneration and on the Directors” Remuneration Policy
at the 2018 AGM.

Voies for Votes agoinst
Numbar * Number % Voles total  Votes withheld
Remuneration Report 110,136,140 67.13 53,926,252 32.87 164062392 42,29
2018 Remuneration Policy 141,003.710 86.65 21.715.387 1335 162,719,097 1,385,586

Changes to our Remuneration Policy ware madae following a strategic review and engagement with our stakeholders. The lower
voting outcome for the Remuneration Report reflacts thot some shareholders were not supportive of the packoage of changes we
made. During the review. the Committee sought to hear sharehalders’ views via both direct communication and ongaeing broader
investor interaction, and the decisions made took Inte consideration the balonce of the feedback received. The Committee firmly
balieves that the changes made were appropriate In light of Abcam's exceptional growth and value creation since Alan Hirzel
was appolnted CEQ. and that the new Policy will continue to support Abcam's future growth and philosophy of share ownership.

Approval
Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Louise Poten
Remuneration Committee Chairman
6 September 2019
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Directors' Report

The Directors present thelr Report together with the audited Details of employee share schemes are set outin note 2410
consolidated financial statements for the year ended the financlal statements, Shares held by the Abcam Employee
30 June 2019, Share Benefit Trust abstain from voting.

Pages 1 to B9 Inclusive (together with sections of the Annual Disabled employees

Raportincorporated by reference) consist of the Strategic Abcam s an equal opportunities employsr and ensures

Report and the Directors” Report that have besndrawnup and  that applications for employment from people with disabilities
presented in accordance with and inrellance upon applicable and other under-represented groups are given full and fair
English company law. The liabilities of Directorsin connection consideration. Such individuals are given the same training.

with those reports shall be subject 1o the limitations ond development and job opporfunities as other employees.
restrictions provided by such law. Eveary effort is also made to retain and support employeeas who

have a disability during their employment, including flexible
Additional Informatlon incorporated by reference into this working to assist their re-antry into the workplace and making
Directors’ Report. Including disclosures required under the alternative suitable provisions,

Companies Act 2006, the Large and Madium-sized Companias
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the  Agreements affected by change of control

UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 (2016 Code). canbe The Company is not party to any signlficant agreements that

located Qs follows: take effect. alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company following a takeover.

Disclosure location

Likely future Throughout the Strateglc Report There are no agreements between the Company and

developments onpages 1 to53 its Directors providing for compensation for loss of office or

Researchand Ourbusiness model on page 20 and employment {whether through restignation, redundancy or

development activities Finonciol review onpage 50 otherwise) that occurs because of a takeover bid, However,

Financlol instraments Note 23 to the consolidated financkal mermbers of the Exe;uﬁve L_eadership Team. excluding the
Executive Directors, are entitied to an agreed sum equal to six

ond dsk monagement  statements .
months’ basic salary in the event of a dismissal for any reason
Employees involvement  Corporate responsibllity on pages24  gther than misconduct (including constructive dismissat by

and 25 reason of o fundamental breach of contract by Abcam ora

successor employen within 12 months following d changes

Dividends of control, provided that the individua! enters Into asettlement

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 8.58 pence agreement and agrees to cartain obligations regarding

(2017/18: 8.58 pence) per ordinary share t¢ be pald on confidentlality, intellectual property and restrictive covenants.

30 November 2019 to shareholders on the register on The agreed sumis payable In addition to any pay.inlisu

8 Novernber 2019. The associated ex-dividend date will _-of notice, but includes any entitlement to statutory

be 7 November 2019. Together with the intersim dividend redundancy pay.

of 3.55 pence per share paid on 12 April 2019, this brings the

total dividend for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 to Major interests In shares

12.13 pence per share (2017/18: 12.00 pence). Details of the Interests In voting rights in the Compeony’s shares
notifled to the Company In accordance with Chapter 5 of

Control and share structure the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and Transparaency Ruies

Detalls of the authorised and Issued share capital, together (excluding Directors’ interasts, which are set out on page 83)

with detalls of the movements In the Company’s Issued share are set cut below:

capital during the year, ara shown in note 21 to the

consolidated financial statements. The Company has one A1 31 July 2019

Numberof Percentage of

class of ordinary share which carries no right to fixed incomae. erdinary shares Issued share
Each share corries the right to one vote at general meetings held caplial
ofthe Campany. 1. Rowe Price Group 26,094,312 12.69%

Standard Life Aberdeen 11,408,697 5.55%
There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding noron Baillie Gifford & Co Ltd 10,471,257 5.09%
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general  Wwasatch Advisors Ine 8.732.131 4,24%
provisions of the Articles of Assoclation and prevailing Harding Loevnsr LLC 7.751,834 3.77%

legisiation. The Directors are nct aware of any agreements

Invesco Ltd 6,361,620 3.10%
between the holders of the Company’s shares that may result

in @ restriction on the transfer of securlties or on voting rights. As ot 6 Septemizer 2019 no changas In these shareholdings
No person has any speclal rights of control over the Company’s  have been notified.

share capital and all Issued shares ara fully pald.
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Directors' Report continued

Purchase of own shares

At tha end of the year, the Directors had authority, under a
resolution passed at the Company’'s AGM on & November 2018,
1o purchase through the market 20,510,234 of the Company’s
ordinary shares, subject to the conditions set out Inthat
resolution. No shores were purchased under this autherity
during the yearunder review.

Directors

Brief biographical descriptions of the current Directors of the
Company. all of whorn were in office throughout the year and
up to the date of signing the financial statements {other than
Glles Kerr, who was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
on 12 Decearmbar 2018) are set out on pages 58 and 59. The
beneficlal and non-beneficial interests of the Directorsin the
Company s ordinary shares of 0.2 pence are disclosedin the
Annual Report on Remuneration,

The powers of the Directors ate determined by UK legisiation
and tha Company’s Articlas of Association, together with any
specific authoritias that may be given to the Directors by
shareholders from time to time (for example the authority

to allot or purchase shares in the Company),

Re-slection of Directors

The Chairman has deterrmined that each individual
demonstrates commitment to his or her role and displays
effective parformancae; he Is thersfore recommending the
ra-alaction of all Directors seeking to remain on the Board.
Abcam has slectad to comply with 2016 Code Provision B.7.1
and therefore all Directors shall retire ond all Directors, save
for Sue Harrls. shall stand for re-election at the AGM o be
held on 13 Novermber 2019,

Articles of Association

The rules governing the appointment and replacement of
Directors are contalned in the Company’s Articles of Association.
The Arficles of Asscciation may be amended only by special
rasolution at a genearal meeting of shareholders.

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity
provisions for the benefit of its Directors during the reporting
pericd and these remainin force ot the date of thisreport.

Aboam pic Annual Repart and Accounts 2019
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Directors’ and officers’ insurance

The Company has purchased and maintained throughout
the financial yaar directors’ and officers’ Hability insurance
to cover any clalm for wrongful acts In connection with their
positions. The insurance provided does not extend to claims
arising from fraud or dishonesty.

Going concern

The Group meetsits day-to-day working capital requirements
from the cash surpluses generated as aresult of normal trading,
in considering going concern, the Diractors have considered
the Group's principal risks and uncertainties set out on

poges 39 1o 44 and have reviewed the Group's forecasts and
projections, taking account of reqsonably possible changes
In trading performance, These show that the Group should

be ablae to opearate within the limits of its avallable resources,

Annual General Meeting

The AGM will be held at Discovery Drive, Cambridge Biomedical
Campus. Cambridge, CB2 0AX. UK on 13 November 2019 at
2.30 pm. A presentation will be made ot this meeting outlining
the recent developmants in the business. Alivoting atthe
meeting will be conducted by show of hands where every
shareholder present In person or by proxy will have one vote,
unless a pollis requested by a shareholder for which each
shareholder prasent or by proxy will have one vote foreach
share of which they are the owner.

The Group will publish the results of the votes on its webslite after
the AGM. Shareholders are Invited to subbmit written questions
in advance of the meeting. Questions should be sent to the
Company Secretary. Abcam pic. Discovery Drive, Cambridge
Blomedical Campus, Cambridge. CB2 0AX, UK.

Details of the resolutionsto be propbsad at the meeting are set
out In the Circular ond Notice of AGM 2019, which will be made
avallabie to all shareholders. together with a proxy card.

Statament of Directors’ responsibilities

The Diractors are rasponsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the finonclal statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

United Kingdom company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial staternents for each financlal year. Under that law the
Dlrecters have prepared the consolidated financial statements
In accordance with international Financial Reporting
Standards (JFRS) as adopted by the European Unlon (EU) and
have etected to prepare the Company financial statements In
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(Accounting Standards and applicable law, including FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framawork”).



Under company low the Birectors must not approve the financlal
stataments uniess they are satisfled that they give a true and lalr
viaw of the state ot affairs of the Group and Company and of
the profit orloss of the Group and Company for that period,

in

@ Angr o its, the Diractors are required o
select sultable accounting policles ond then apply

themconsistontly

$1 on corp: o L]

The UK Corporate Governance Code (Code) sels out the
principles of good praclice nrelation to corporate govemance
o be followed by main market-listad companies, Although

as an AlM-isted company we ara not required 1o comply with
the Code, the Boord beliaves that it ls appropriate for Abcam
o comply with the Code. Forthe year ended 30 June 2019,

we have complied with aflof the principles and provisions

- moksjudgements and accounting estimates that
are reasonabte and prudent

= state whethar applicable IFRSs os adopted by the EU and
applicable UK Accounting Standards and applicable low
have beanfollowed, subject to ony materiol departures.
disclosed and exploined in tha Group and Company
financlal statements, respectively

= prepara the financial statements on the golng concern
basis unlessit Is Inappropriate to presume that the Group
and tha Company will continue In business

Tha Directors are responsible for keeping adequats
accounting racords that are suificlent to show and explain
tha Company’s tronsactions and disclose with regsonable
occuiacy at any Hime the finonclal position of the Company
and the Group and enabla them ta ensure thai the financial
statemants comply with the Companles Act 2006, They are
alsa responsible for sataguarding the assets of the Company
and the Group ond hence for taking reasonable steps for

the pravention and detection of froud and other Imagularities.

The Dirgctorns are responslble fot the malntenance and Integrity

of the corporate and Rnancialinformation included on the
Company's wabsite, Legisiation in 11 UK governing the
preparation and dissernination of financial skatements
may diffar fromlagisiation In other juilsdictions

Each of the Birectors, whose names and functions ara listed
inthe biographies on pages 58 and 59, confirms thal, to the
bast of thelr knowledge.

- e Group ang Company financiol stat vis, which have
beaen prepaed Inaccordance with the relevant financial
reporting framework. give a true and falr view of the assets,
flabiiifies. Ananclal positton and profit of the Group and
Company

= the Directors’ Report and the Shataglc Report include a falr

review of the develcpmaent and parformance of the business

and the position of the Groun, together with a description
of the piinc|pal rsks anduncertainties that It faces

- the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is (qir,

balanced and understandable, and provides the Information

nacessary for sharehaldors to assass the Group ond the
Compony’s parformance, business model and shrategy

of the 2014 edition of the Code, except os follows:

Clawback on annual bonus cash component. 2016 Code
Provision D.1.1 hos not been implemented n full os thera Is
noclawback oh the cash component of the annual bonuws.
Thare i, however, clawback on the deferred share
component of the annual bonus.

Shareholder approval of tong-termincentive schemoas,
2016 Coda Provision D.2.4 refating 1o the approval of
long-tarm Incentive schemes by sharehoiders hos not baen
Implementad. Howavet the pravisions of ourfong-tarm
Incentive plan are nfine with Schedule A of the 2016 Code.

Proviston of information te the auditor
Each Director In office at the date the Directors’ Report
laapproved contirms that*

sofar as the Director Is aware, there Is no relevant qudit
Infoermation of which the Group and the Company ‘s audltor
Isunaware; and

he/she has tokenall the steps that he/she cught fo have
taken as Dhactor Inordet to make himself/hersel! gwore of
any relavant audit information ond to establish that the Group
and the Comparny ‘s audltor is awara of that infermation.

PricewaterhouseCoopats LLP hos expressed ifs willingness
1o continue In office as auditor and arasolution to ra-appoint
them will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Onbehall of tha Board

Potet AWen
Chakman
&5eptember 2019

Morc Perking

6 September 2019
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Financial statements

Our independently audited statutory
accounts provide in-depth and
insightful disclosure on the financial

performance and position of the Group.

Financial statements

92 Independent auditor’s report

90 Consolidated incomae statement

99 Consolidatad statemant of comprehensive income
100 Consclidated balance sheet

101 Consclidated statement of changesin equlity
102 Consclidated cash flow staternent .

103 Notes to the consolidated financlat statements
132 Company balance sheet

133 Company statement of changes in equity

134 Notes to the Company financlal statements
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of Abcam plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion:

- Abcam plc's consolidated financial staternents and
Company financial staternents (the ‘financial statements’)
give a true and fakr view of the state of the Group’s and of
the Company’s affalrs as at 30 Juns 2019 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended:

= the gonsolidated finoncial statemenis have been property
prepared In accordance with International Finoncial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Unlon;

= the Compgny financlal statements have been properly
prepared In accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards. comprising FRS 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework’, and applicable law): and

= the financial statements have bean prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companieas
Act 2006,

Our audit appreach
Overview

We have qudited the financial statements. Included within
the Annual Report and Accounts 201¢ {the "Annual Report’).
which comprise: the consolidated and Company balance
sheets as at 30 June 2019; the consolidated Income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive Income, the
consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated andt
Company statements of changes in equity for the year then
ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a description of the significant accounting policles.

Basis tor opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) ('ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statermeants section of cur report, We believe that the qudit
avidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basls for our opinlon,

Independence

We remainedindependent of the Group in accordance withthe
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financkal
statermentsin the UK, whichincludes the FRC's Ethical Standard.
os gpplicable to listed entitles, and we have tulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

= Qvergll Group materiality: £3.4m (2018: £3.5m). based on 5% of profit before tax, adjusted to exclude
the charges relating to the impalrment of intangibles associated with the new ERP system (£12.8m).

Materiality

= Overall Company materiality: £2.9m (2018: £3.3m), based on 5% of profit before tax, odjusted to

exclude charges relating to the impairment of Intangibles associatad with the new ERP system (£12.8m).

= We conducted audits of the complete financial Information of Abcam ple, Abcam inc and Abcam

Trading (Shanghal) Co.. Umited.

= We performed specified procedures over certain account balances and fransaction classes at other
Group compaonies, including another Chinese operation, two in the US and ancther in Japan.

Auditscope

- With the exception of the audit of Abcam Trading (Shanghal) Co., Limited and certain specified
procedures perforrnad over anothear Chinese operation, which were performed by a component

auditor. the Group engagernent team performed all of the audit procedures.

- Taken together, the Group companies, as well as the consolildation adjustments, over which we
performed our audit procedures accounted for 81% of the absolute profit before tax (i.e. the sum of
the numerical values without regard to whether they were profits or losses for the relevant reporting

units) and 84% of revenue.

= Inventory provisioning {(Group and Company).

Key audit
matters -

- Valudation of Intermnally developed tachnology included within intangible assets (Group and Company).
Clossification of system and process improvement costs (Group and Company).

= Valuatien andimpairment of ERP s'ysfem {Group and Company),

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality

and assessed the risks of material misstaternent in the financial
statements. in particular, we looked at where the Directors
made subjective Judgemaents, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are inherently
uncertain. As In all of our audits we also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls, including
evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors
that represented arisk of material misstatement due to froud.

Abcamn ple Annual Report emd Acccunts 2019
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Koy audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In the quditors’
professional judgement, wera of most significance in the audit
of the financial statemeants of the current pariod andinclude
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) Identified by the auditors,
Including those which had the greatast effact on: the overall
audlt strategy: the allocation of resources in the audit: and
directing the etforts of the engagement team. These matters,
and any comments we make on the results of aur procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our oudit of the
financial statements as a whole, and In forming our opinlon
thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinlon on these
matters, Thisls not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.



Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Inventory provisioning - Group and Company

The Group and the Company had inventory of £36.0m and
£24.3mrespectively as at 3C Junea 2019. Inventory principolly
comprises antibedies and reagents that bear a natural risk
of obsclascence. Furthermore, owing to the low Incremental
cost of in-house production of antibodies, the Group and the
Company often produce surplus Inventories that are at risk
of expiring before a sale can be achieved (see note 4to the
consolidated financial statements ond page 73 of the Audit
and Risk Committea Report).

For new products, the Directors apply a fixed percentage
provision agalnst the inventory ievels held at the yearend,
unless they belleve thot there are specific reosons that

no provision Is required.

For all other products, the Directors calculate aspecific
provision for obsolescence by comparing Inventories on
hand at year end with forecast sales volumes on a product-
by-product basls, providing fully agalnst inventories
regarded as surplus.

There Is therefore estimation In the valuation of the inventory
provision owing 1o the estimation uncertainty that exists
around future sales forecasts.

We understood and assessed the methodology utilised to
estimate the Group’s and the Company’s inventory provisions
and checked that the calculation of the provision was
mathematically accurate.

We found no material exceptions in our testing.

For all material product classes, we assessed the regsonablengss
of the Directors’ future sales forecasts by considering the
accuracy of the prior yeor forecast and sales in the current
year. We found no materal exceptions in our testing.

We considered both the risk of undler and overstotement of the
inventory provisions by:

= parforming sensitivity analysis on the forecast future sales;
and

= ascertaining the change that would be required to
mxrterially affect the determined provision, We assessed
that the likelihood of such a change waos low,

Valuation of internally developed technology Included
within intangible assets - Group and Company

The Group and the Company capltalise costsrelating tothe
development of internaily developed technolegy which are
used to generate antibodles and kits that the Group and the
Company sells. During the year, £8.0m was capitalised by the
Group and £79m was capitalised by the Company as port
of the total additions to internolly developed technology
(soo note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and
page 73 of the Audit and Risk Comsnittea Reaport). The Ccosts
incurred in producing internally developed technology
include aiabour and overhead allocation.

This allocation Is capitalised into Intangible assets on the
basls of the proportion of batches that pass internal quality
tests. No allocation is capltalised for the batches that donot
pass the tests, and the labour and ovarhead elemant Is
Instead written off in the Income stotement.

The nature of the manufacturing process s such that there
are fluctuations in the propartion of batches which pass
quality tests, meaning that the total labour and overhead
absorbed Into Intangible assets varles.

The relevant calculations are also parformed manuaily,
necessitating a substantive approach to testing that
appropriate amounts of labour and overhead cost
have been caphalised,

Wae evaluated whether appropriate costs had been capitalised
as Intangible assets, Including checking. on a sarmple basls,
the labour costs capltalised.

For labour costs. we agreed. on a sample basis, the timesheet
racords used to allocate labour costs to the undeslying records.

For intarnally developed technology, we agreed, on o sample
basis. the quality test results to undeavrlying records.

We also checked the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations (taking Into account the proportion of batches
passing quality tests) and.that only recsonoble categories
of cverheads were absorbed Into aond capltalised as
intangible assets,

We found no material exceptions In our testing.
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Independent auditor's report continued
to the members of Abcam plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements continued

Key audit matier

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Classification of system and process improvement cosls
= Group and Company

During the year the Group and the Company capltalised
costs of £11.6m and £11.6m respectively In relation to the
systemn and process improvement project. Further amounts
In relation to systems and process iImprovements have been
expensed to tha consolidated income statement and. to the
extent this is Incremental, included in the reconciliation of
the Group’s adjusted performance measures (see note 7

to the consolidated financlal statements and page 73

of the Audit and Risk Committae Report).

The Directors have assessed whether the costsincurred
inrelation to the Group’s and the Company’s system

and process improvement project meet the criterla for
copitalisation and, If not, whether the costs were Incrermental
to the onQoing costs of the Group.

The Group's adjusted profit before tax, which is one of the
Group’s KPIs and is discussed in the "Chief Financial Officer’s
Report and Financial Review' sections, is directly impacted
by the amount of costs capftalised and the amounts included
In the reconcliation of the Group’s adjusted performance
maasuraes. We focused on whether the costs capitalised met
the criteria for capitalisation and whether. for those costs
classified as system and process improvernent costs within
the reconclliation of the Group’'s adjusted performance
measuras, they were indeed incremental.

We vouched a sample of the costs capitalised in relation to
the system and improvements project to invoiceas from suppliers.

Wae agreed a sample of the internal staff and contractor
costs capitalised to supporting calculations and time records,

In both cases. we considered whether the nature of the costs
mat the criteria for the costs to be capitallsed.

For costs expensed to the consolidated income statement
and iIncluded within the Group’s reconciliation of adjusted
performance medasures we considered whether the Directors’
policy for the treatment of such costs was raasonable and,

on a sample basls, assessed whether the costs Included

In the reconciliation were In line with the Directors’ policy.

We found no matesial exceptions in ouresting.

Valuation and impairment of ERP system

= Group and Company

The Group and the Company have capitalised costs relating
to the ERP system. Foliowing the dacision to take a phased
rell out approach. it was necessary 10 allocote the costs
capitalisad at 30 June 2018 between different modules.

The Diractors calculated the split of the costsbased on
historical time records and where necessary have then
applied this split to any remaining costs on a pro-rata basis.
(586 note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and
page 73 of the Audit and Risk Committee Report).

Having allocated the costs to each module, the Directors
concluded that the level ot which the Impairment test should
be performed should be on this modular basls. The individual
modules were reviewed to Identify those modules where
work performed to date would no longer be utllised or would
require considerable re-work, Such modules were fully
Impaired with a charge totalling £12.8m recorded in the
consolidataed income staterment.

We agreed, on asample basis, the historical fime records used
In the calcutation to timesheets and corroborated with a
sample of iIndividuals the modules that they had worked on.

We assessed management’s basls for allocating the remaining
costs on a pro-fata basis and checked the calculation.

We ra-calculoted the allocation of the costs based on the
derived split. ’

We challenged monagement on the most appropriate basls
fo determine the unlt of account. We agree with management
that the modular level was the most appropriate basis for
pearforming the assessment.

We also considered evidence to support the future usabllity
of modules.

We re-performed the calculation of the impairment.

Wwe found no materlal exceptions in our tasting.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tallored the scope of our audit to ensurs thet we perfermed enough work fo be able to give an oplinion on the financlol
statements as a whole, taking iInto account the structure of the Group and the Company. the accounting processes and controls,
and the industry in which they operate,

The consolidated financial statements are a consolidation of 19 raporting unlts, comprising the Group’s cperating businesses
and holding companies.

We pearformed audits of the complete financlal Information of Abcam ple, Abcamine, and Abcam Trading {Shanghal) Co.,
Limited reporting unlis, which were individually financially significant and. tegether with consolldation adjustments accounted
for 84% of the Group's revenue and 81% of the Group’s absolute profit before tax adjusted to exclude the charge relating to the
Impairment of Intangibles related to the new ERP system (L.e. the sum of the numerlcal values without regard to whether they were
profits orlosses for the relevant reporting units). We also performed specified audit procedures over goodwlll and other intangible
assets. as well as cerntain account balances and transaction classes that we regarded as materat to the Group at four further
reporting units, two based in the US, one In China and another In Japan.

The Group engagement team pedormed all audit procedures, with the exception of the audit of Abcam Trading (Shanghal) Co..
Limited and certain specified procedures perfarmed over another Chinese operstion which were perforrned by o component
auditor In Ching, Qur involvernent In the work of the component auditorin China Included regular communication. both before
and during the performance of the procedures. In addition, the senior statutory auditor held discussions with locol management
and the component auditor in China and the Group engagement team conducted a review of the working papers. Token
together, the Group companles as well as the consolldotion adjustments, over which we performed our audit procedures,
accounted for 81% of the absolute profit before tax and 86% of revenue.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was Influenced by cur application of materiality. We set certaln quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These. together with qualitative considerations. helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, Himing and extent
of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and In evaluating the effect of
misstatements. both Individually and In aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional jJudgement, we determined materality for the financlal statements as a whole as follows:

Consolildated inancial statements Company financlal statements

Overall Group materiality £3.4m (2018: £3.5m). £29m (2018: £3.3m).

How we delermined It §% of profit before tax, adjusted to exciude 5% of profit before tax, adjusted to exclude
the charga relating to the Impairment of the charge relating to the Impairment of
Intangibles assoclated with the new ERP intangibles assoclated with the new ERP
system (£12.8m). systam (£12.8rm).

Rationcle for banchmoark opplied  We believe that profit before tax s the We believe that profit before taxis the

primary maasure used by the shareholders  prirnary measure used by the shareholders
In assessing the performance of the Group.  in assessing the performance of tha

and Is a generally accepted auditing Company, and s a generaily accepted
benchmark. In the current year, there wasa  auditing benchmark. In the current year,
significant non-cash charge relating tothe  there was a significant non-cash chorge
Impalrment of intangibles assoclated with relating to the impairment of intangibles

the new ERP system which was not reflective  associated with the new ERP systermn which
of the ongolng operations of the business wos not reflective of the ongoing cperations
and therefore was excluded from our of the business and therefore was excluded
materiality calculation. frorn our rnateriality caolculation,

For each componeant in the scope of our Group oudit. we ailocated a materlality that Is less than our overall Group materiality.
The range of materiality allocated across components was between £1.7m ond £3.2m.

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Committes that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
£0.2m (Group audit) (2018: £0.2m) and £0.2m {Company audit) (2018: £0.2m) as well as misstatements below those amounts that.
In our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.
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Independent auditor’s report continued
to the members of Abcam plc

Report on the audit of the finoncial statements continued
Going concern
In accordance with ISAs (UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation Outcome

Wa are required to report if wa have anything materiolfoadd  We have nothing material o add or 1o draw attention to.

or draw attention to inrespect of the Diractors” statement in

the financial stotements about whether the Directors However, because not all future events or conditions canbe
considered it appropriate to adopt the going concernbasis  predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Group's
of accounting In preparing thea financlol stotements andthe and Compeny's abillity to continue as @ golng concemn. For
Directors’ identification of any material uncertainties to the example. the terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw

Group’s ond the Companys abllity to continue as a going from the Eurcpean Union are not clear. and it is difficult to
concern over a period of atleast 12 months from the date evaluate all of the potential Implications on the Group’s trade,
of approval of the financial statements. customers, suppliers and the wider economy.

Reporting on other information

The other Information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financlal statements and our auditor's
report theraon, The Directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinlon on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly. we do not express on audit opinion or. except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated

in this report. any form of assurance thereon,

in conneaction with our audit of the financial statements, curresponsibllity Is to read the other Information and, in doing so. conslder
whether the other informotion is materially inconsistent with tha financial statemaents or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwlse appears to be materiaily misstated. If we Identily an opparent materlal Inconsistency or material misstaterment. we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstaterment of the othear information. If, based on the work we have perforrned, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent
of this other Inforrmnation, we are required to report that fact. Wae have nothing to report based on these responsibliities.

With respect to the Strateglc Report and Directors’ Report. we also considered whether the disclosures reGuired by the UK
Companies Act 2006 hove been included.

Based on the responsibllities described gbove and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companleas Act 2006
(CADS) and ISAs (UK) require us also to report certaln oplnions and matters as described below (required by 15As (UK) unless
otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Information given in the Strategic Report
and Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
In accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CA0S)

Inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment cbtained in the course
of the audit, we did not identity any material misstatementsin the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report. (CAQ0G}

The Direclors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity
of the Group

As aresult of the Directors” voluntary reporting on how they have applied ths UK Corporate Govarnance Code (the ‘Code”),
we are required to report to you if we have anything material to add or draw attention to regarding:

= The Directors’ confirmation on page 37 of the Annual Report that they have carred out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance. sclvency or liquidity.

= Thedisclosuresin the AnnualRepaort that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated.

= The Directors’ explanation on page 45 of the Annual Report as to how they have assassed the prospects of the Group, over
what period they have done $o and why they consider that period to be appropriate. and their statement as to whether
they have areasonable expectation that the Group will be able 1o continue In operation and meet ltslicbllities as they fall
due over the perlod of thelr assessment. Including any related disclosures drawlng ottention to any necessary quallfications
or assumnptions.

We have nothing o report In respect of this responsibllity.
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Other Code provisions

As a rasult of the Directors” voluntary reporting on how they have applied the Code. we dre required to report to youif.
In our oplinion:

- The statement given by the Directors. on page 89. that they consider the Annual Report taken as o whele to be fair.
hatancad and understandable. and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the Groupsand
Company’s position and performancea, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our knowledge
of the Group and Company obtained In the course of performing our audit.

- The section of the Annual Report on pages 70 to 74 describing the work of the Audit and Risk Committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us 10 the Audit dnd Risk Committee.

We have nothing to report in respeact of this responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statemanis

As explalined more fully In the Statement of Directors” responsibilitias set out on pages 88 and 89 the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial staterents in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satistied that they give
a true and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine Is necessory to enable the
praparation of financial statameants that are free from matearial misstatament, whether due to fraoud or error,

In preparing the financlal statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company’s abllity to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable. matte:s related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidote the Group or the Company or to cease oparations, or have no reqalistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s rasponsibifities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterments as o whole are free frorm material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that inciudes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance
Is @ high level of assurance, but is not q guarantes that an audit conducted in aecordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatermnent when i exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or efror and are considerad material if, Individually or
Inthe aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financlal staternents.

A turther descripton of ouwr responsibillties for the audit of the financial statermanisislocated on the FRC's website at:
www.irC.org.uk/auditorsrasponsibilities. This description tormns part of our auditor’s report.

Use of this report

This raport, Including the opinions. has been prepared for and only for the Company’'s members as ¢ body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, In giving these oplnions, accept or assume
responsibiiity for any other purpose or to any other parson fo whom this report Is shown or Into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wrlting.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If. in our opinlon:

- we have not received all the Information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company. or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

-~ certaln disclosures of Directors” remuneration specifled by law are not made: or
- the Company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Wa have no exceptions to report arlsing from this responsibility.
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Independent auditor's report continued
to the members of Abcam plc

Other voluntary reporting

Going concern ,

The Directors have requestad that we review the statement on page 88 In relation to going concern asif the Company were
apramium listed company. We have nothing to report having performed our review.

The Directors’ assessment of the prospec!s of the Group and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity
of the Group

The Directors have requested that we perform a review of the Directors’ staternents on pages 38 and 45 that they have carried
out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group and in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group, asif the
company were a premium listed company. Our review was substantially less In scopa than an audit and only consisted of making
Inquliries and considering the Directors’ process supporting thelr statements; chaecking that the statements are In alignment with
the refevant pravisions of the Code; and considering whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and understanding
of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit. We have nothing 1o report having
performed this roview.

Other Code provisions -

The Directors have prepcred a corporate governonce statement and requested that we review it as though the Company were
a premium listed company. We have nothing to report in raspect of the requirement for the auditors of premium listed companies
to report whean the Directors’ statement relating to the Company‘s compllance with the Code does not properly disclose o
departure from a relevant provision of the Code spaclfied. under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Directors’ remuneration

The Company voluntarily prepares a Directors’ Remuneration Report In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006. The Directors requested that we audit the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report specified by the Companiles Act 2006
to be audited as if the Company were O quoted company.

In our opinion. the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared In accordance with the
Companles Act 2006.

Sam Talyor (Senlor $tatutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Charlerad Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Cambridge

6 September 2019
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Year ended 30 June 2019 Yeor snded 30 June 2018
Adjusting Adjusting
Adfusfed* fems* Total Adjusted” tfarms” Total
Note £m tm £m £m £m sm g,
Revenue [ 259.9 ——n 259.9 2332 —_ 233.2
Cost of sales {76.7) - (76.7) (70.2) - {70.2) %
Groas profit 183.2 - 183.2 163.0 - 163.0 |z
Selling. general and administrative expenses (88.9) (23.2) (112.7) (69.8) 3.4 8.2 []
Research and development expeansas 10.7) (4.3) (15.0) [ARR) (4.1) (150
Operating profit 6 83.6 {22.5) 56.1 81.3 2.5 68.8
Finance income 9 0.6 -— 0.8 0.3 - 0.3
Finance costs 9 (0.3) -_— €0.3) - _ _
Protit before tax 83.9 (21.5) 56.4 81.¢ (12.5) 691
Tax 10 (18.5) 5.1 (11.4) (4.9 8.0 4.9
Protit for the year attributable to the equity ’ E
shareholders of the parent 67.4 (22.4) 45.0 6.7 (4.58) 62,2 E
£arnings pershare B
: 11

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

n

a2.9%p
32.6p

22.0p
21.8p

32.7p
32.4p

30.5p

v Adusted figures exciude cotfs associated with the new Group hea

are described a3 ‘adusting items’. Further Information on these items lsshown innote 7.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 June 2019

CJ
30.2p
Y ¢ cosfs iIncliuding impairment, amortisation of
gcquisition Intangibles, acquisition costs. the tax sflect of adjusting ilerms and significant 'qx adiuatrnonh in respect of new US tax leglsiatton, Such excluded items

Yaarended Yeor ended

30 .June 2019 30.Juns 2018

Note £m £m

Profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent 45.0 62.2

Items that may be reclassified o the income statement In subsequent years

Movement on cash flow hedges ) 23 .9 0.2
Exchange differences on tronslation of foreign operctions 7.0 (1.8)
Movement in fair value of investment €0.1) 0.1)

Tax relating to componeants of other comprehensive income 0.3 -—
Ofher comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 55 (.7

Total comprehensive income for the year 50.5 60.5
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 30 June 2019
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Note £m Sm
Nen-current assets
Goodwill 12 120.9 114.2
Intangible assets 13 106.7 106.3
Property, plant and equipmeant 14 aa 25.1
Investments 0.8 0.9
Deaferred tax asset 15 9.4 8.4
274.9 254.9
Current assets
Inventories 16 36.0 9.6
Trade and other receivabies 17 43.1 39.3
Current tax receivable 5.4 _—
Derivative financialinstruments 18 0.2 08
Cash and cash equivgients 871 90.2
171.8 189.9
Total assets 446.7 414.8
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 (41.8) {45.8)
Derivative financial instruments 18 (2.0) {0.5)
Current tax llabllitias (.5) @n
. (45.3) (49.0)
Net current assets 126.5 110.9
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability 15 {146.5) (14.0)
Darivative financiql instruments 18 (0.1) 0.1}
(16.8) 4.1)
Total liabilities (61.9) (©3.1)
Net assets 384.8 351.7
Equity
Share capital 21 g4 0.4
Share premium account 27.0 256
Mergerresarve 21 48.1 68.1
Own shares 21 {2.8) 3.2
Translation reserve 2 333 26.3
Headging raserve 21 (1.3) 0.1
Retoined earnings 260.1 234.4
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent 384.8 5.7

The consclidated financial statements w pproved by thé Board of Directors on 6 September 2019 and signed onits behaif by:
—_

Gavin Wood
Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity 1
For the year ended 30 June 2019
Share
Share promium Merger Transtation Hedging Retained
capiial account ressrve Ownshares raserve reserve samings Total equity
Note tm £m m $m " m m g
Balance as at 1 July 2017 0.4 2.9 68.1 3.6) 28.1 0.7 190.3 3071 g
Profit for the year - -— - —_— _ —_ 62.2 62,2 -g
Other comprehensive Income — — - — (1.8) 0.2 ©.n an Us
Total comprehensive income — — - - (1.8) 0.2 621 60.5 1
lssue of ordinary shares — 1.7 -— 0.4 — — (0.5) 1.6
Share-based paymentsinclusive
of deferred tax - — - - - — 4.7 4.7
Purchase of own shares - _ - — - — .1 o.n
Equity dividends 22 - — -— — - — (22.1) (22.1)
Balonce s ot 30 June 2018 o4 25.6 68.1 3.2) 26.3 0.1 234.4 351.7 g
Profit for the year — — — - _ —_ 45.0 43.0
Other comprehensive income - -_ -— -— 7.0 1.4) (0.1) 5.5
Total compreshensive income - -— — -_ 7.0 .4) 44.9 80.5 _l
Issue of ordinary shores - 1.4 -— 04 — - (0.4) 1.4
Share-based payments inclusive
of deferred tax - -— -— -_— - — 6.3 6.3
Purchase of own shares — — - - -— - (0.2) (0.2)
Equity dividends 22 - -— - -_ - - (24.9) (24.9)
Balance as at 30 June 2019 0.4 27.0 68,1 (2.8) 333 €1.3) 260 384.8

Finoncial
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Yearended Yearended
30June 2019 30 June 2018
Note £m sm
Operating profit 54.1 &8.8
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 4.8 4.5
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 10.6 8.4
Impairment of intanglble assets 12 12.8 -
Derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or koss 6 0.4 (C.7)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.2
Research and development expenditure credit [ 1.9 3.1
Share-based payrments charge 24 6.5 3.4
Unrealised currency transiation gains {1.1) (0.5
Operating cash flows before movemaents in working capital 88.2 81.0
Increase InInventories ’ (6.1) (5.8)
Increose In recelvables 6.1) (5.7)
Incraase In payables 7.7 3.4
Cash generated from operations 83.7 729
Netincome taxes pald (13.5) 9.6)
Net cash inflow from operating activities v 70.2 63.3
Investing activities
Interestincome 0.6 03
Purchose of property. plant and equipment . Qr.n (6.4
Purchase of intangible assets * (22.7) (21.0)
Transfer of cash from escrow In respect of future capital expenditure - 4.5 09
Net cash outflow arlsing from acqulsitions 26 (14.6) 1.5
Net cash outflow from investing activities 49.9) 37.7)
Financing activities
Dividends pald 22 (24.9) (22.1)
Proceeds on Issue of shares 1.4 1.6
Facility arrangement fees {0.9) -
Interest paid (0.1) -_—
Purchose of own shares (0.2) (0.1)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (24.7) (20.6)
{Decrease)/increass in cash and cash equivalents (4.4) 5.0
Cash and cash agulvaients at beginning of year 90.2 84.8
Effect of foreign exchange rates 1.3 0.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year O] 87.1 90.2
Free Cash Flow . an 34.3 268

() Within cash and cosh equivalents 3 £0.4m of cash relating to employee contributions to the new Group share option scheme "AbShare’, which is reserved for the

purpose of purchosing shares upon vesting. .

() Free Cosh Fiow comprises those terms marked * and comprises net cash generated from eperatling activitias less net capital expenditure ond transfer of cash trom/

(1) escrow in respect of future capital sxpenditure,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

1. Prasentation of he financial statements

a) General information

Abcam ple (fhe Company) Is a public limited compony whose
shares are listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM)

of the London Stock Exchange. Is incorporated and domiciled
In the UK and is registered In England under the Companias
Act 2006.

b) Basls of preparation and consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with International Filnancial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, interpretations issued
by the IFRS interpretations Committae (IFRIC). IFRS Issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and those parts of
the Companies Act 2006 applicable ta companies reporting
under IFRS,

The consoiidatad financial staternents have been presented
in Sterling, the functional currency of the Company, and on
the historical cost basls. except for the revoluation of certain
financlal instruments,

The consolidated financlal statemants Incorporate the
financial staternents of the Company and entities underits
control. Control s achieved when the Company has power to
control the financial and operating policies of an entity either
directly orindirectly and the abillity to use that power to affect
the returns it recelves from its Involvement with the entity.

Consolidation of @ subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Where necessary. adjustments are
rmade to the financial statements of subsidiaries 1o bring the
accounting policies In line with those usad by the Group.

All Intra-group transactions, balances, equity. income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

¢) Adjusted performance measures

Adjusted performance measures are used by the Diractors and
management to monitcr business performance internally ond
exclude certain cash and non-cash items which they believe are
not reflective of the normal course of business of the Group. The
Directors believe that disclosing such non-IFRS measures enablas
areader fo Isolate and evaluate the impact of such temson
results and allows for a fuller understanding of performance
from year to year. Adjusted perfermance measures may not
be directy comparable with other similarly titled measures
used by other companies. A detoiled reconciliotion between
reported ond adjusted measures is presented in note 2.

d) Going concern

The Group meets its day-ta-day working capital requirements
from the cash surpluses generated as a result of normal frrading.
In consldering going concem. the Directors have reviewed the
Group's forecasts and projections. taking account of reasonably
possible changes in trading performance. These show that

the Group should be able to operate within the limits of its
availlable resources.

Accordingly, the Directors have areasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operation
for the foreseeable future and at least one year from the date
of approvel of the financlol statements. For thisreason, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its
consolidated financlal statements,

2. New accounting standards, amendments and interpratations
The Group adopted IFRS ¢ and IFRS 15 on 1 July 2018. Analysis
of the impacts of thesa standards are sef out below.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instrumaents’ which replaces IAS 39 *Financial
Instruments Recognition and Megsurement’

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out In

the standard, the Group has applied the IFRS 9 prospectively
from 1 July 2018. whereby comparotive figures have not

been restated,

IFRS 9 Is applicable to financial assets and financial Hablities.
and covers classiflcation, maasurement and derecagnition.
The maln areas of change that are relevant for the Group ara:

Providing against credit risk on trade recelvables - The Group
has applied the simplifiled model specified for expacted credit
losses, based on the histercal defauit rates experenced across
the Group. This replaces the previous policy. which was based
on estimatedirecoverable amounts determined by specific
clrcumstance or past experience. however, this hasnot
resulted In any significant change in outcome. As a resuft,

at tfransition. no change In provision against trade recalvables
was required.

Equity investments - A transition election has been made to
continua toracognise fair vaiue gains and losses through the
statement of other comprehansive incomae. This Is consistent
with the treatment under JAS 39 ond hos therefore had no
transitionolimpact.

Derivatives - The Group purchases forword contracts to
manage exposura 1o foreign exchange risk arising from sales
In foreign currency. principally US Dollars, Euros, Japoness Yen
and Chinese Renminbl. These arrangements qualily as cash
fiow hedges under 1AS 39 ond IFRS ¢ and the transition 10 IFRS ¢
has therefore not resulted In any changes to their classification
or measurement, noris there to be a change in assessing
hedge effectiveness.

IFRS 18 ‘Revenue from controcts with customers’

The Group has applied this standard from 1 July 2018 using
afully retrospective approach. IFRS 15 supersedes 1AS 18
‘Revenue’ and establishes a principles-based approach to
revenue recognition and measurement. Revenue Isracognised
when performance obligations are satisfied In respect of the
transfer of goods of services at anamount that the entity
expects to recelve In exchonge for those goods or services.

Qver90% of the Group's revenue Is derlved from catalogue
product scles, where it hasbeen determined that the
performance obltigation has been satisfled at the point when
conticl of the products Is transferred to the customaer, This does
not reprasent a changa from the previous traatment under
IAS 18,

The Group's other revenuae straams (being custom products

& licensing revenue) are such that entitlement to Incorne s
aligned to defined perforrmance obiligations and deliverables,
Consequently. this also represents no change from the previous
treotment under IAS 18 for revenue, profit or net assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2019

2. New aceounting standards, amendments and interpretations
continued

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,

the following new standards and interpratations, which have
not bean applied in these financial statements, ware Inissue
but not yet effactive:

IFRS 14 ‘Leases’
(ettective from the Group’'s 2019/20 financial year).

IFRS 14 supersedes |AS 17 "Legses’ and has been endorsed

by the European Union. The most significant changes are in
retation 1o lessee accounting, Under IFRS 16 the lessaa will
recognise aright-of-use asset and a lease llability for all leases
currently accounted for as operating leases, with the exception
of leases for a short perlod (Jess than 12 months) or where the
underlying asset volue islow,

IFRS 18 wilt have a significant impact on the primary financial
statements, including an Impact on the operating profit, profit
befora tax, total assets and total liakllities lines.

The Group Intends to take advantage of the modified
rehrospective transition method whereby the lease liability Is
recognised as the present value of future payments on transition
and the asset Is recognised as the present value of the total
lease payments at the lease inception and then depreciated
on a stroight line basls from this date, Assuch a fransition
adjustment Is generated due 1o the difference betweean the
value of the asset and liability. The curent ransition assessments,
detailed below, are based on g weighted average incremental
borrowing rate of 1,.58%, which in turn takes advantage of the
practical expedient on transition 1o apply a single discount
rate to groups of legses with similar risk profiles. As such assingle
discount rate has been applied 1o legses in each country in
which the Group operates,

The Group has conducied a review ofits lease contracts
andbased onthe leasesinplace at 30 June 2019 expects
adecrease in net assets of £2.1m on transition at 1 July 2019.

Thisis the combination of a £5.9m decrease driven by the
recognition of liabilitles over asset values offset by the release
of deferred rent accruals and prepayments of £3.8m. In the
years post-fransition, thare would also be an Impact onthe
Group’sincome statement as the fixed rentat expense Is
replaced by a depreciation charge and an Interest expense.
This will lead to an Increase of approximately £lm in operating
profit as aresult of removing the operating lease expense net
of the new leased asset depreciation charge. The overall
impact fo the Group's reported profit after tax Is expected to
be immatsarial with a smallnet decrease In the Initial years aftar
transition which will reverse in later years as the legses In
exlstence at transition come closer to ending.

Other new standards and interpretations which are in [ssue but
not yet effective are expected to have sither no impactorno
material Impact on the gconsolidated financial statements.
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3. Principal accounting policles

Revenue and Income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or recelvable and represents amounts recelvable
for goods and services, net of discounts, VAT and other
soles-related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods Is recognised upon delivery to
the customer or the point at which the customer takes control
of the goods if this is sooner.

Custom service revenue is reccgnised when a milestone. as
defined In the contract, has been completad. Each milestone
Is typlcolly aligned to a customer deliverable and accordingly
is considered to be a performance obligation. Every milestone
has a defined transaction price. If It is Identified that the costs
wlll be In excess of the contract revenue, the expected 10ss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Licence fee income is recognised on delivery of the licensed
technology where the Group's continued performance or
future research and development services are not required.
Royalty revenue Is recognised on an accruals basis based on
the contractual terms and the substance of the agreements
with the counterparty, provided that the amount can be reliakty
measured and it Is probable that the economic benefit will flow
to the Group.

Leasing

To the extent that the terms of a lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, leases are
classified as finonce leases. All other lecses are classifled as
opaerating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on a stralght-line basis ever the fixed tarm
of the relevant legse. Banefits recelved and recelvable as an
incentive to enter Into an operating lease are also sprecad on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

. The Group will transition ta IFRS 16 from: 1 July 2019. details

of which are set outin note 2.

Foreign currancles

Foreign currency transactions are booked at the exchange
rate rufing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabiiities denorminated in foreign currency are retransiated

at the rates of exchange ruling ot the balance sheet date,
Exchange differences arising on settlement or retransiation

of monetary assets ond liabilitios are included in the

Income statement. .

The rasults of overseas subsidiaries are transiated into Sterling
using the average exchange rates during the year. Assets and
fiabllities are franslated at the rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Goodwill arlsing on the acquisition of a forelgn operation
Is treated as an asset of that foreign operation and as suchis
translated at the relevant foreign exchange rate at the balance
sheet date. Exchange differences arising on this transiation
are recognised in the transiation reserve,



3. Principol accounting policies continued

Cther exchange differences are recognised in the income
statement in the period In which they arise except for where
tems are designated as hedging instrurmnents or where there
Is @ netinvestment hedge.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to deflned contribution retirement benefit schemes
are charged as an expense as they fall due. The Group hasno
further obligations once the contributions have been paoid.

Taxation

Current tax payable is based on taxabie profit for the year
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantivety enacted
by the balonce shaet date. Taxable profit differs from net profit
asreportedin the income staternent because It excludes
certqin iterns of income or expense that are taxabie or
deductible in other years and further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. Where the current tax deduction
in respact of shore option exercises exceeds the share option
accounting charge for the period. the excessisrecorded in
equity rather than the Incomae statement.

The benefit of UK research and development isrecognised
under the UK's Research and Development Expenditure Credit
(RDEC) scheme. The benefit Is recorded as income included

in profit before tax, netted against research and development
expenses, as the RDEC is of the nature of a government grant.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between tha carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance shaet liabllity method.
Defarred tax liabliities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that It Is probable that taxable profits will be
avallable aguainst which deductible temporary ditferences
¢can be utilised. Such ossets and liabilities are not racognised
ifthe temporary difference arises frorm the inltal recognition
of goodwlll or from the initlal recognition of other assets and
liabllities In atransaction that affects naither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments In subsidiarles except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
ditference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse In the foreseeatle future, The Group's llabllity
for deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enactad by the balance sheet date
that are expected to apply in the period when the llabllity is
settied or the asset isrealised. Deferred tax s charged or
credited in the Income statement. except where it relates o
tems charged or credited diractly to other comprehensive
Income or reserves, In which case the deferred tax Is also deakt
with in other comprehensive income or reserves respectively,

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are offset when thare s a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax llabilities, they relate 10 Income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority ond the Group intends to settie on
anetbasis,

Business combinations

Business combingtions are accounied for using theé acquisition
method. Onthe acquisition of a business. fair values are
attributed to the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
llabilitles unless the falr value cannot be rellably measured

In which case the value is subsumed into goodwill.

If the initial accounting for a business combinationis
Incompiete by the end of the reporting peried in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the itams for which the accounting Isincomplete. Those
provigsional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period or additional assets or liabillties are recognised to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstonces that
existed as at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amountsrecognised as of that date. The
measurgment period Is the perlod from the date of acqulsition
to the date the Group cbtalns complete infermation about
facts and clrcumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date - and Is subject to a maximum of one year.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed to the income
statement in the perod thay are incurred.

Goodwilll

Goodwlll represents the excess of the fair value of the
conslderation over the fair value of the net assets acquired.
Where the fqir value of the consideration is less than the falr
value of the acquired net assets, the deficitis recognised
Immediately In the iIncome statement as a bargain purchase,

Goodwilllis not amortised, but is subject to an iImpairment
review at least annually and Is carried at cost less accumulated
Impalrment losses. Any Impairment is recegnised immediately
in the Income statement and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impaiiment testing. goodwillls allocated
to cash generating units (CGUs). The CGUs to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annuaily, or more
frequently when there Is an Indication that the carrying value
may net be recoverable.

Intangible assets

Acquisition Intangibles:

Acquisition Intangibles comprise licence faes, customer
relationships and distribution rights, patents, technology and
know-how and trade names. Thess are capltalised at cost and
amortised on a stralght-line basls over thelr estimated useful
lives. The principal expected useful lives are as follows:

Strategic report

Licence fees Terrn of licence

Customer relationships and distribution rights 2to 10 years
Patents, technology and know-how S5to15years
Trade names 8yeaqrs

Patants, technology and know-how assats are only amortisect
once the development Is complete and being utilised for thelr
Intended purpose; until this point the assets are deemed to be
In progress.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2019

3. Principal accounting policies continued

Otherintangibles:

These comprise software ond expendIture on capitalised
Internally developed technology. Internally developed
technology costs are racognised as an asset if and only if they
maet the recognition criteria set out In |1AS 38 Intangible Assets.
Intangible assets under construction are not amortised.

The principal expected useful lives are as follows:

Software
Internally developed technology

2toSyears
3to léyeors

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and. whare appropriate, provision
tor impalrment In value, Cost Includes the originai purchase
price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the
gsset to Its working condition for its intended use. Depreciationis
charged so as to write off the cost of assets over thelr estimated
useful lives, using the stralght-line method. as follows:

Loboratory equipment and testing assets
Offlce fixtures, fittings and other equipment
Leasehold Improvements

2to 10years
2to5years
Yerm of legse

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset
Is determined as the difference between the soles proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised In

the Income statement. Resldual values of assets and their
useful lives are assessed on an ongolng basls and adjusted,

If appropriate, at each balance sheet date. Assets under

the course of construction are not depreciated.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets excluding goodwill

A review is undertaken upon the occurrence of events or
circurnstances which indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

The recoverabila amount Is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value In use. In assessing volue in use, the estimated
future cash flows are disccunted o thelr present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessments
of the time value of monhey and the risks specific to the asset for
which the astimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Abcam pic Annual Report and Aseounts 20619
194

Inventories

Inventories and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost
and net reqiisable value. Cost compiises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and an attributable
portion of production overheqds that have been incurred in
bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition,
Net realisable value represants the estimated selling price less
all estimated costs of completion and costs to be Incurred in
marketing. selling and distribution. Provision Is made for
obsolete, stow-moving or defective Items where appropriate.

Financial assets

Financial assets and fingncial liabllities are recognised on

the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party
1o the contractual provisions of tha instrument, The Group’s
financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents,
receivables which invalve a contractual right to receive cash
from external parties, and investments classified as avallable
forsale.

Investment

Investmentsin shares are held at falr market value, with any
revailuation gain or loss recorded through other comprehensive
income, with the exception of any impairment losses which are
recorded in the Income statement,

Trade and other recelvables

Trade recelvables {excluding derivative financial assets) are
racognised at cost less allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts o align thelr cost to fair value. The provision Is based
on the Group’s expected credit joss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and ¢ash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits and other short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a knawn amount of cash and
are subject to an Insignificant risk of changesin value,

Financial liabilities
Financilal liabilities are those which involve a contractual
obligation to deliver cosh to external parties at a future date.

Trade and other payables

Trode payables (excluding derivative financlal llobilitias) are
non-Interest bearing and are stated at cost which equates
1o their fair value.

Equity instruments
Equity Instruments lssued by the Group are recorded as the
proceeads recelved, net of direct issue costs.



3. Princlpal accounting policies continued

Derivative financial instrumenis

The Group uses forward contracts to manage the exposure
to fluctuating foreign exchange rates In ralaton to forecast
future fransactions.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair valuse at the dote a
contfroct is entered into and are subsequenty remeaqsurad to
thelr folr value at each balance sheet date, The rasulting gain
or loss Is recognised in the Income statement immediately
unless the derivative Is designated and effactive as ahedging
Instrumant, In which event tha tiring of the recognition in the
income statement depends on the nature of the hedge
ralationship.

Hedge accounting

At the inception of a hedge relationship. the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hadged item, ifs effectiveness olong with its risk management
obfectives, and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
tronsactions. The sffactivenass is repeated on an ongoling
basls during the life of the Instrument to ensure that the
Instrument remains effective.

Cash flow hedges
The Group designatas certaln derivatives as cash fiow hedges
ot highly probabie forecast oreign currency transactions.

The effactive portion of changes In the fair value of derivatives
which are designated and qualify as cash flow hadges|s
deferred in other comprehensive Income, Gains orlossas relating
to the Ineffective portion are recognised immediately in the .
income statement,

Amaounts deferred In other comprahensive income are
recycled to the Income statement In the perlods when the
hedged Hemis recognised In the income statement.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes
the hedging relationship, the hedging Instrument explres or is
sold, terminated or exerclsed, or it no longer qualifies for hadge
accounting. Any cumulative galn or loss In other comprehensive
Income at that time remains In other comprehensive income
and is recognised when the forecast fransaction Is ultimately
recognised In the incomae statement. When a forecast
fransactionis no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain orloss in other comprehensive income Is recognised
Immediately In the income statement.

Share-based paymaents

Equity settled share-based payments are measurad ot fair
value (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting
conditions) at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-
Iine basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of the numbaer of shares that will eventually vest.

Strategic report

Share-based payments where vesting Is by reference to extermal f
perforrnance criterla (such gs growth in an external Index) are
measured using the Monte Carle simulation. Those which are
subjact only to internal perforrmance criteria or service
condifions are measurad using the Black-Scholas modael.

For all schemas, the number of options expected to vest
isrecalculated at each balance sheet date based on
expaciations of leavers prior to vesting. The number of options
expected to vest for schames with Internal performance
criteria Is alsc adjusted basad on expectations of performance
agalnst targets. No adjustments are made for expected
performance against external or ‘'market-baosed’ targets. IJ
Charges made to tha Incomae statement in respect of equity
settled share-based payments are credited to equilty.

Corporate

For cash settled share-based payments. the Group recognises
aliabllity for the services acquired. measured initially at the fair
value of the lability, This liakility ls remeasured ot each
balance sheet date and &t the date of settlement. with any
changes In foir value recognised in the iIncome statement,

Own shares

No gain orless is recognised in the incomae statement on the
purchase. sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own shares.
Any difference between the carrylng amount and the
considerationis recognised in equity.

Finaincial siatements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2019

4, Critical accounting judgements and sources

of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management
to make Judgemaents, estimates and assumptions about the
application of its accounting policies which offect the
reported amounts of assets, llabilities. revenue and axpenses.
Actual amounts and results may differ from those estimates.

Judgerments and estimates are evaluated reguiarly and are
based on historical experlence and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonabla
undler the circumstances. Any revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period In which the estimate is revised.

Only one critical judgement has been identified but other
Judgements exist which are consldered to be key.

a) Critical accounting judgements

Impairment of the Group’s ERP system

The Group has been capitalising costs assoclated with the
new ERP system since 2016 as outlined In the key accounting
judgements below. After an extensive roviaw of business
raquirements and the curent functionality of Oracle Cloud
software as well as other best in class software providers, a
decislon was taken o maks some changaes to the approach
and sottware used 1o address these areas, The opportunity was
also taken to extend the scope of the progromme to integrate
Improvements in these functional areas with front-end system
enhancements to Improve custorers’ end-to-end experience
through logistics and ultimatsly into manufacturing.

Taking this into account, a review was undertaken of historical
expenditure incurred to date and as part of the impairment
review of assets undar construction, two Impairment indicators
were dentified: the first being modules that are nojonger
being utilised or which would require consideroble re-work;
and the second Is the extended timeframe for certain modules
resulting In potentially cbsolete programming by the fime the
module goes live.

Identifying which modules may be impacted Is judgemental
and technically complex compounded by ldentifying and

In particular, allocating the costs specifically related to each
Individual module in question. In this respect. the split of labour
costs has been based on historleal time records and, where
neceassary, this apportionment by module has been applled
to any remalning costs.
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b) Key accounting judgements

Capitalisation of infangible assets

The Group capitalises internal software development ¢costs,

In particular internal staff costs, relating to the enhancement
of the Group’s core [T systems architecture and davelopments.
Judgement is required in applying the caplitalisation criteria

of IAS 38, differentiating between enhancements and
maintenance. Those costs which are not treated as capital
but are directly attributable to the Group’s system and process
improvement profect are treated as adjusting items.

In establishing the principles on which costs are capitalised,
consideration Is given to the noture of work being performed.
whether the costs and the activities are incremental and
whether the associated delliverables meet the characteristics of
an asset. Processes are In place to evaluate this and the same
processes are used to confirm whether the expensed costs are
refated 1o the system and process improvement project so that
classification as an adjusting item Is appropriate,

The Group capitalises internal costs associated with Internally
developed technology as intangible assets as described
tfurther in notes 3 and 13, This requiras judgement to determine
that the characterstics of such assets meet the relevant criteria
of |AS 38 for classification as an intanglible asset.

internally developed technology capltalised

Internal costs are capitalised asinternally developed
technology within Intangible assets which are used toc generote
antibodies and kits. The point at which such internal ¢osts are
capitalisad as well as thelr magnitude (whereby the amount
capitalised comprises an element of overhead allocation)

is Q key arao of judgement. A key areain respect of the stage
of development of Internally develecped technology Is subject
1o Judgement as to when a product’s future economic value
justifies capitalisotion. Management reviews regulary these
factors in ordar to determine that the costs meet the criteria
for capitallsation as intangible assets.

¢) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Pravisian for siow-moving or defective inventory

The provision for slow-moving inventory is based on the
Diractors” estimation of the future sales of each of the Group's
products aover the perlod from the balance sheet date to the
expiry date of the product, Estimated future sales are based
on historical actual sales and a growth rate assumption which
Is derived from the average annual growth over the product
life to date.

It actual unit sales growth rates differ frorm those estimated
by management, both the level of provision against existing
Inventory and the ratas of provision applied to inventory in
future periods would need to be revised.



5. Operating segments

Products and services from which reportabie segments derive thelr rgvenues

The Directots consider that there Is only one core business activity and there are no separatsly identiflable business segments
which are engaged in providing individual products or servicas or a group of related products cnd services which are subject to
separate risks and returns. The Information reported to the Group's Chief Executive Officer. who Is considered the chlef operating
deaclision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance is based wholly on the overall activities
of the Group. The Group has therefore determined that it has only one reportable segment, which Is ‘sales of antibodies and
reloted products’. The Group’s revenue and assets for this one reportiable segment con be determined by reference to the
Group’s Income statement and balance sheet.

The Group has no Individual product or customer which contributes more than 10% of its revenues.
Geographical information

Revenues are attributed to countries based on customers’ location. The Group's révenue from external customers and information
about its nan-current segment assets (excluding deferred tax) is set out below:

Revenus Non-current asaets
Yeor ended Yearanded As at Asat
30.June 2019 30June 218 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
£m & £m §m
us 115.6 97.4 1699 165.2
China 399 aaa 3.8 3.2
Japan 169 16.4 0.1 0.1
Germany 15.2 1.4 —_— —
UK 13,6 13.6 9.3 77.9
Other countries 58.7 50.3 0.4 0.1
259.9 233.2 265.5 2456.5

No country included within *Cther countries’ contributes mare than 5% of the Group’s total revanue.

Revenue by type is shown below:

Year ended Yeor ended

30 June 2019 30 une 2018

sm $m

Catalogue revenue 2428 2168
Custom products & licensing revenue* 170 16.4
Total reporied revenue 259.9 233.2

| -
Strategic report

*  Includes custom services, VO/HC, royotties and Icence Income.

Because ali service projects within a contract had an original expected duration of one yegar or lgss, the Group has taken
advantage of the exemption not to disclose cutstanding amounts in respect of uncompleted contracts.
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Notes to the consoclidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

6. Profit for the year
Profit for the year Is stated after charging/(crediting):

Year snded Yaorended
30 June 2019 30June 2018
im £&m
Cost of inventories racognised as an expense 59.3 58.8
Write down of inventorias racognised as an expense 1.4 0.8
R&D expenditure (excluding UK tax cradits) 16.9 19.1
UK R&D tax cradits 1.9 a1
Operating lease rentals 8.5 5.4
Movaemaents arlsing on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 0.4 0.7
Other net forelgn exchange differences (including cash flow hedge moverments reclassified from
other comprehensive income) {0.1) (0.9)
Audifer's remuneration comprised the following:
Year snded Year ended
30 Juns 2019 30.June 2018
£000 £000
Audit services - Group and parent company 178 176
- subsidiary companiles pursuant fo legislation 8 8
Total auditfees 186 184
Audit-related assurance services {interim review) 22 21
Other services 1 4
Total auditor remuneration 209 209

The Group's policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit services is set out in the Audit and Risk Committee Report on page 74.
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7. Adjusted performance measures
A reconciliotion of the Group's adjusted performanca maasures to the raported IFRS measures is presented betow:

Yeov ended 30 June 2019 Yedr anded 30 June 2018
Adjusting Adjusting
Adjusted items Total Adjutted Hems Totol
Note £m £m tm £m £m m
EBITDA" 92.4 (¢ B )] 84.3 88.3 6.8) 81.7
Depreciation and amortisation (8.8) (94 (28.2) (7.0} 5.9 (12.9)
Operating profit 83.6 (27.5) 56.1 81.3 (12.5) 48.8
Finance Income 9 0.6 - 0.6 0.3 - 0.3
finance costs 9 (0.3) - (0.3) - - —_
Profit before tax 83.9 (27.5) 56.4 816 {12.5) 69.1
Tax 0 16.5) 5.1 (1.4 (49 8.0 X))
Profit tor the peticd 67.4 (22.49) 45.0 66.7 (4.5) 62.2
*  EBTDW = Earmings before Interest, tax, depreclation and amortisation.
Year ended Yaor endad
30June 2019 30 une 2018
Analysis of adjusting items £m $m
AHacting EBITDA
Systemn and process improvement costs (] (4.5) (CRD)
Casts associated with new Group headquarters (i) {3.6) 0.3
Acquisition costs -— 0.2
(8.1) 8
AHecting depreciation and amortisation
impalrment of software assets (i 12.8) -_—
New Group headquarters depreciation aw (0.1) -
Amortisotion of acqulsition intangibles () (6.5) (5.9
(19.4) 5.9
Affecting operating profit and profit bejore tax (27.5) (2.5
Affecting tax
Tax effect of adjusting tems 5.3 28
Neat tax effact of new US tax legisiation (0.2) 5.2
Tota] adjusting items . (22.4) (4.5)

M Comprises cosh of the ERP implamentation which da not quality for capitalisation. :

() Relotesto costs iated with the new Group h quarters. Dep 1 relgtes 1o assets pror to occupation of the huilding and being brought into use.

(W) The strateglic ERP project Is & complex, multl year giobal business fransformation with numaerous phosss sxtending ocross multiple Group funclions. Following
achievement of the most recent implemaniation milestonse. o review was undertoken of historicol sxpenditure Incurmed to date on outstanding modvles 1o assess
whather ecch slement reamoins oppropriots to the business’s needs. tn addition, whether the wark underiaken to date on eoch module remains usable going
farwards was subject to further sgrutiny, jJudgamaent and challangs. Further information Is set out Innote 4. Fallowing the teview, It has been conchuded that os aresult
ofchanges in the scope ond nature of the progromme and the corresponding uscbility of histarical work performed. software assets of 312.8an have been Impaited.

(V) $4.35m (2018: £4.3m) of amortisation of acquisition intangibles is included within resaarch and devatopmaent sxpenses. with the remaining £2.2m (2018 £1.8m) included
within selling, genercl and administrative sxpenses.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

8. Employees
The averags monthiy number of employees (including Executive Directors) was:
Ysar ended Yeoorended
30 June 2019 3¢ June 2013
number number
Management, administrative, marketing and distribution 784 M
Laboratory an 313
1.155 1.054
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Yearended Yearended
30 Juna 2019 30 June 2018
£m $m
Wages andsalaries 56.0 49,7
Soclal security costs . 6.8 6.1
Othet pension costs . 3s 29
Share-based payments charge 6.5 3.4
Total stali costs 72.8 62.1
Staff costs capitalised® 1.5) (0.9
Net siatf costs 7.3 60.2

* Reiatesiostalf costs directty attributoble to tha Group s sy and processimprovernent project.

The remuneration of the Directors, inclyging rewards under share schemes. are set out in note 27 and the Annual Report on

Remuneration on pages 80 and 81.

9. Finance income and costs

Yaarsnded Yoar ended

30 Junae 2019 30 June 2018

£m sen

Interest recelvable 0.6 0.2
Finance income 0.6 0.3
Borrowing costs® €0.3) -_—
Finance costs (0.3) -—
Netflinance income - 0.3 0.3

*  Borowing costs comprise mainly tf;a amortisation of up-frient foos auoélated with the sat up of the Group's R.evolvlng Cregit Facllity (RCF)y of szodm which was entered

into during the yaar. Thess fags are being amortised over tiee years, being the inltial tarm of the RCF.
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10. Taxation
Year ended Yoor ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 §_
Note - £m £m @
Current tax
Current Income taxcharge 9.7 15.8 _]
Adjustrment In respect of prior years 0.2 .4 O
9.9 14.4
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of ternporary differences 0.6 13.8)
Adjustment In respect of prior yeors 1.1 0.3
Effect of tax rate change (0.2) 6.0
15 1.8 (7.58)
Totalincome tax charge 11.4 4.9
Adjusted income tax charge* 165 14.9

¢ Adjusied incoms tax charge sxclude: the tax etfects of adjusting temas and the impact on tax arising from new US tax egislation, both of which o1e set outin note 7. =
The effective tax rate on reparted profits Is 20.2% (2018: 10.0%) and has increased mainly due to the non-recccurrence of one-off
Impacts of the US tax reforms (In particular the revatuation of deferred tax balances associated with the Group's acquired
Intangible asse!s whichimpacted the 2018 rate). The effective rate on adjusted profits is 19.7% (2018 18.3%).

The UK corporation tax rate for the year was 19.0% (2018: 19.0%). Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevalling
In the respective jurisdictions.

From Apri 2020, the UK corporate tax rate willreduce to 17.0% in line with Finance Act 2016. This 17.0% rate continues to be applied
inthe deferred tax valuations based on the expected timing of when such assets and liabilities will be recovered.

The charge for the yaar can be reconclled to the profit per the income statement as follows:

Fincncdal

Year ended Year snded

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

m £m

Profit before tax ‘56.4 &0

Taxat the UK corporation tax rate of 19.0% (2018: 19.0%) 10.7 13.1

Adjustment in respect of overseas tax rates 1.4 0.9
Adjustrnants in respect of prior years 1.3 .n
Tax effect of non-taxable Income ) ' 0 0.3)

Rellgt in relation to overseas entities * (0.3) -
Overseas R&D tax credit upiift : €0.6) {0.5)

QOverseas taxes arlsing from changes In tax legislation - 0.8
Effect of tax rate change on deferred tax balances €0.2) 6.0y

Tax expense for the year 11.4 6.9
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

11. Ecunings per share

The coiculations of earnings per ordinary share (EPS) ond adjusted earnings per ordinary share (adjusted EPS) are based on profit
after tax and adjusted profit atter tax respectively. atiributable to owners of the parent and the welghted number of shares in
issue during the yedar.

Ad|usted EPS figures have been calculated based on earnings before adjusting items which are considered significant in nature
of vaiue and which ore described in note 7.

Yaar ended Year ended
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
sm gm
Earnings
Profit attributable to equity sharehelders of the parent - adjusted 67.4 56.7
Adjusting items (see note 7) (22.4) (4.5)
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the parent - reported 450 62.2
milllon million
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary sharesin issue 205.4 204.8
Lass ordinary shares held by Equinit] Share Plan Trustees LUmited (0.5) (0.6)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic EPS 204.9 204.2
Effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares - share options and awards 1.8 1.6
Weighted average number of ordinory shares for the purposes of diluled EPS 206.7 205.8

Basic EPS und adjusted EPS are calculated by dividing the eamings attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent by

the welghted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS and adjusted EPS are calculated on the same
basis as basic EPS but with a further adjustment to the weighted average number of shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all potantially dilutive ordinoty shares, Such potentially dilutive ordinary shares comprise share options and awards granted
to employees where the exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company s ordinary shares during the year
and any unvested shares which have met, or are expected to meet. the performance conditions at the end of the year.

Year ended Yearencied

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Basic EPS 22.0p 30.5p
Diluted EPS 21.8p 30.2p
Adjusted basic EPS 32.9p 32.7p
Adjusted diluted EPS 32.6p 32.4p
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12. Goodwill

Year anded Year ended
30 June 2019 30.June 2018
Note £&m e&m
Cost and carrylng amount
At beginning of year 114.2 115.5
Addgitions 26 28 01 U
Exchange ditferences 3.9 (1.4
Atend otyear 120.9 114.2

Goodwlll Is converted at the exchange rate on the date of acquisition and retransiated at the balance sheet date.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination s allocated at acquisition ta the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) which s expected
to banefit from that business combination. The Diractors consider there to be one CGU as acquisitions are integratedinto the
Group’s opearctions and product portfolio (as described In note 5).

Asrequlred by 1AS 36. goodwill Is subject to an annual Impalrment review or more frequently if there are any indications that
goodwill might be iImpalred. The reviews are carrled out using the following criteria:

Strategic report
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The recoverable amount of the CGU Is determined from value In use (VIU) calculations;

The VIU Is calculated by applying discounted cash flow modaelling to management s own projections covering
afive yeqr perod;

Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using along-term growth rate equivalent to the expected
inflatlonary increases of the economies in which the Group predominantly frades.

The key assumptions considered mast sensitive for the VIU colculations are:

The Directors’ five year projections:
The growth rate after five years; and
The pre-tax ad|usted discount rate.

The Directors have projected cash flows based on strategic financial forecasts over a period of five years and take account of
relative performance of competitors, knowladge of the current market. together with the Directors’ views on the future achievable
growth in market share and the impact of growth Initiatives.

A growth rate of 2.3% has been usad in the extrapolation of cash flows beyond the five years.

A pre-tax discount rate of 6.8% has been estimated using pre-tax rates that reflact current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific tothe CGU.

Based on the results of this analysis. management is satisfied that the recoverable amount of goodwill exceeds its carrying amount.,

Managemant has performed a sensitivity analysis on @ach of the key base cose assumptions mentioned above. Due fo the
significant headroom which exlsts betweean the recoverable amount and the carrylng value. the Directors have concluded that
there are no reasonabile possible changes in any of these key assumptions which would cause the goodwill to exceed its VIU,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

13. Intangible assets

Acquisition intangibles

Sutomer
J:; lne;melow Intemally
distribution and Ucence Trade developad
fights  knowhow fons naMmes Sub-total Softwore technology Total
£m £m £m £m £m $m M Sm
Cost
At 1 July 2017 7.2 64.4 54 2.5 815 275 —_ 109.0
Additlons 0.5 — 10.4 - 10.¢ 18.0 23 n2z
Disposals 0.2 —_ .2 — 0.4 {0.2) ©.1 0.7n
Reclasslification*® —_ _— —_ _— — - 17.3 17.
Exchange ditferences 0.2) {0.8) (C.1) -— . — 0.2 0.9)
At 30 June 2018 7.3 65.6 15,5 2.5 0.9 a5.3 19.7 155.9
Additions - 0.6 —_ -— 0.6 13.4 8.0 22.0
Disposals in year €0.6) —_ -— —_ (0.6) {6.9) - {7.5)
Exchange differences 0.2 23 0.2 0.1 28 - 0.2 jo0
At 30 June 2019 6.9 48.5 15.7 2.6 93.7 51.8 27.9 173.4
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2017 4.3 13.9 4.1 1.6 239 1.5 - 354
Charge for the year 0.7 4.1 08 03 59 .7 08 8.4
Disposals 0.2) —_— {0.2) —_ 0.4) 0.2 0.1 0.7)
Reclassification* -_ —_ -— — — — 6.5 6.5
Exchange differences - [ N)) - - 0.) -— 0.1 -_
At 30 June 2018 4.8 17.9 47 1.9 29.3 13.0 7.3 49.6
Charge for the year 0.8 4.2 1.2 0.3 6.5 1.9 22 10.6
impalrment —_ - - —_ - 12.8 -_— 12.8
Disposalsin year (0.6) - —_ _ €0.5) 5.9 — 7.5
Exchonge differences 0.1 0.8 0.1 0.1 1.1 — 0.1 1.2
At 30 June 2019 8.1 229 6.0 2.3 36.3 20.8 9.6 66.7
Carrying amount
At 30June 2018 2.5 47,7 108 0.6 416 323 12.4 106.3
At 30 June 2019 1.8 45.6 9.7 0.3 57.4 31.0 18.3 106.7
Included In carrying amount - Assets
under construction
At30June 2018 —_ — - —_ - 2.8 1.9 3.7
At 30 June 2019 -— - - _ -— 33.3 3.9 16.2

*  Thereciassification in 2017/18 rapsesentsd o change from property. plant and equipment to intangble assets,

Amortisation of £6.2m (2018: £4.9m) Is Included within Research and development expenses and £4.4m (2018: £3.5m) s Included
within Selling, general and administrative expenses.

Foliowing achievement of the most recent implementation milestone of the ERP impfementation pro]écf. areview was undertaken
of historical expenditura incurred to date on outstanding modules included within software. It has been concluded thatasa
rasult of changesin the scope and nature of the programme, assets of £12.8m have been impaired as described furtherinnote 7.
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13. Intangible assets continued
individuaily matertal intangibie assels

The Group's new ERP system is considered o be an indlividually materlal Intangible asset. of which £156.6m is included within
software which Is belng amortised over a five year period with a remaining amortisation perdod of between two and five years.

The remainder s the balance shown as assets under construction.

Patents, technology ond know-how and Licence feesincludes amounts which are considered individually material to the financial

statements and are set out asfoliows:

Strategic report

Remaining
Carrying amonriisation
omount period
£m Years
Epitomics RabMADL®* technology 13.9 8
Firefly Bioworks Multiplex and assay technology 18.7 10
AxioMx In Vitro monocional antibody production technology 153 14
Roche licence agreement 2.0 9
14, Property. plant and equipment
Office fixtures.
taborotory fitngs and internolly =
equipment and other d h
9 t aquip t hnology* s Total
£m £m tm
Cost
AL July 2017 14.2 15.5 155 1.7 4469
Additions 2.4 0.4 2.0 1A% 18.3
Disposals in year (0.6) (2.3) -_ —_ (9
Reclassificafion® —_ - 7.3 — 7.3)
Exchonge.diffarences - {0.1) 0.2) —_ 0.3)
As30June 20018 16.0 13.5 -_— 15,2 44.7
Additions 7.2 4.7 — 49 16.8
Disposals €0.4) (2.3 - - 3.7)
Exchange differences 0.2 0.2 - - 0.4
At 30 June 2019 23.0 15.1 - 20.1 58.2
Accumuiated depreciation
At 1 July 2017 9.2 9.7 5.7 —_— 24.6
Chargae for the year 1.8 1.8 0.9 -_ 45
Disposals in yaar . (0.5) 2.2) _ — 2.7)
Reclassification*® - _— (6.5} - {4.5)
Exchange diffarences .1) ©.1) €0.1) —_ ©.3)
At30June 2018 10.4 9.2 - — 19.6
Charge for the year 2.4 2.0 -— 0. 4.8
Disposals (0.4) (3.3) - - 3.7)
Exchange differences 0.2 0.2 - - 0.4
At 30 June 2019 12.6 8.1 -— 0.4 21
Net book valug
Ar30June 2018 5.6 4.3 — 15.2 25.1
At 30 June 2019 10.4 7.0 - 19.7 371
Included in net book value - Assets under construction
At 30June 2018 - - _— 15.2 15.2
At 30 June 2019 - - - - -— -

*  Thereciassification in 2017/18 represented o change from property. plant and squipment 1o Intongible assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Accelerated Acquired Other

capital Cash flow Share-bossd Intangible temporary
dg pay Ut assefs Losses differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m sm tm
At 30 June 2017 0.7 0.1 1.7 219 . 1.9 3.6 (15.3)
Credit/(charge) to income o.1n 0.7) 0.2 8.1 0.5 o.n 7.5
Credit to equity _ — 1.7 — - —_ 1.7
Exchange differances — - - 0.6 - 0.1 0.5
At 30June 2018 (0.8) — 3.6 (13.2) 1.4 3.4 (5.6)
(Charge)/credit to Income 3.3) - 0.3 1.4 (0.3) 0.4 (1.5)
Credit to equlty -_ 0.3 0.1 -_— - -— 0.4
Exchange differences -— —_— - (0.6) 0.2 -_— (0.4)
At 30 June 2019 (4.1) 0.3 4.0 {12.4) 1.3 3s (7.1)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has alegally enforceable right to do so.
Dafarred tax balances are comprised as follows:
30 June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m
Deferred tax assets to be recovered
Within 12 months 6.9 4.2
Aftar more than 12 months 25 42
9.4 8.4
Deferred tax liabilities to be recoversd
Within 12 months 1.4) 3.1
After mora than 12 months (15.1) 0.9
(16.5) 4.0
Deferred tax liabllities (net) {7.1) {5.6)

Detferred taxIs calculated using tax rates that are expectaed to apply In the perlod when the liability or asset is expected to be realised

based on rates enacted or substantively enacted by theé reporting date.

16. inventeries

30June 2019 30June 2018

£m - £m

Raw materials 5.7 4.4

Work in progress 3a 29

Finished goods and goods for resale 27.2 223

36.0 29.6

17. Trade and other racelvables

30 june 2019 304une 2018

£m £m

Amounts recelvable for the sale of goods and services 29.4 25.0
Less provision for bad and doubtful debts (0.1) 0.1

29.3 249

Othar receivables® 9.4 1.6

Prepayments 4.4 28

43.1 9.3

*  Otherraceivablesinciudes £0.7m (2018: £5.2rm) held in escrow to fund further required paymaents to be made 1o contraclon In respect of the construction of the Group’s

now completed new globalheadguacrters on the Cambridge Biomedical Campus.
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17. Trade and other receivables continued
Ageing of trade receivables:

30 June 2019 30June 2018
Gross Provision Net Gross Provision Net
- $m £m Em £m gm sm
Not past due 23.0 - 23.0 19.6 - 196
Past due
Dto 30 days 3.8 - 3.8 a4 -_— 3.4
30to 60days 1.3 -— 1.3 11 - 1.1
More than 60 days 1.3 €0.1) 1.2 0.9 ¢0.1) 0.8
64 (0.1} 6.3 5.4 ©.1) 5.3
29.4 0.1 29.3 25.0 o.n 24,9
Movemaent in pravision for bad and doubtful debts
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
£m £m
Bakance at beginning of year €0.1) _—
Impairment losses recognised in the Incomae statement —_ .1
Balance at end of year (0.1) (0.1}

The average cradit period taken for sales is 35 days (2018: 33 day9). Trade and other recelvablas are non-interast bearing
and generally on terms between 30 1o 90 days. Trade raceivables are provided for based on estimated irecoverable amounts
determined eithar by specific clrcumstances or by reference to historical default experlence as described In note 2.

The Group does not hold any coliateral or other credit enhancements over its trade recelvables, nor do they have alegal right

to offset against any amounts cwead to the counterparty.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount ot trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

18. Derivative financial instruments

30June 2019
Current - Non-ourrent
Asset Liability Liabiily Tota)
£m £m £m £m
Derlvatives carried at fair vatue through profit and loss ’
Forward exchange contracts that are not designated in hedge accounting .
relationships -— (0.4) - {0.4)
Derivatives that are designoted and sflective as hedging instruments
carried at fair volue
Forward exchange contracts 0.2 1.6) €0.1) {1.5)
0.2 (2.0) ¢0.1) 1.9
30June 2018
Current Non-curent
Asset Uabllity Labliity Tolal
£m gm frn £m
Derivatives carried at fair value through profit and loss
Forward exchange contracts that are not designated In hedge accounting
relationships 0.2 0.1 - 0.3
Derivatives thot are designated and eflective as hedging instruments
carried at falr value
Forward exchange contracts Q.8 (0.4) 0.1) 0.1
0.8 0.5) on 0.2

Further details of derlvative financlal Instruments are provided in note 23.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

19. Tracde and other payables

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
£m £

Amounts falling due within one year

Tracls payables 7.0 7.0
Accruals and future contract llabilitles 3.7 23.4
Other taxes and social sacurity 1.0 B
Other payables 2. 143

4.8 45.8

At 30 June 2019, the Group had an average of 28 days of purchases (30 June 2018: 30 days) outstanding in frade payables
(excluding accruais and deferrad Income), The Group has financial risk management policies In place to ensure that all
payablas are paid within the credit timetable. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables
approximates to their fair value.

Other payables includes £ni1 (2018: £11.8m) relating to the outstanding consideration payable in respaect of the Spring business
combination set out in note 26.

20. Commiiments

Contractual commitments

The Group has outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments on land and buildings under non-cancelloble
operating lease. as well as other commitments, which fall due as follows:

30 June 2019 30June 018
£m &m

Total undiscounted future committed payments falling due:

Within one year 8.9 9.1
Betwaen one 1o five years 25.3 251
After more than flve years 49.4 52.2

83.6 86.4

The above committed payments represent rentals payable by the Company for its properties with renewal terms ranging
betweaen 1 and 19 years. The future minimum sub-lease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sut>-leases
Is £0.7m (2018: £0.4m).

Future capital expenditure

30 June 2019 30 Juns 2008
Em £m

Contracted for but not provided ) ) - 5.8

Capital commitments at 30 June 2018 related predominantly to funds held in escrow inrespect of the construction of the Group’s
now completed new global headqguarters on the Cambridge Biornedical Campus.
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21. Share copital and reserves
Share capital

30 June 2019 Wune 2018
£m $m

Authorised, Issued and fully paid:
205,471,564 (2018; 205.044,686) ordinary shares of 0.2 pence sach 0.4 0.4

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to tixed income. Share capital issued during the year arose
from the exerclse of share options and the issue of shares to the Equiniti Share Plan Trustees Limited. Share capitalissued in the
prior yeas alse included the sattiement of an elerment of contingent consideration,

Other reserves
Mergor reserve
Comprises the premium on shares issued as consideration for acquisitions where conditions for mergar rellef have been satisfled.

Own shares
Representssharesn the Company held by the Equiniti Share Plan Trustees Limited, These shares are held in order to satisty the
Free Shares and Matching Shares elements of the SIP. further detalis of which are set out in note 24.

30 June 2019 30 une 2018
Neominal value Nominalvalue
4'000 Number £'000 Number
Own shares 1 484,811 1 589,968
Transiation reserve
Represents axchange diffarences on translation of overseas operations.
Hedging reserve
Comprises gains and |osses recognised on cash flow hedges and the assocloted deferred tax assets.
23. Dividends
Year snded Yaar enced
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Em sm
Armounts recognisaed as distributions to the equity shareholders inthe year:
Final dividend for the yaar ended 30 June 2017 of 7.355 pence per share — 15.1
Interim dividend for the yedr ended 30 June 2018 of 3.42 pence per share - 7.0
Finai dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 of 8.58 pence per share 17.6 -
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 of 3.55 pence pershare 7.3 -
Total distributions to owners of the parsent In the period 249 221

Strategic report

The proposed final dividend Is subject to approval of the shareholkders at the forthcoming AGM and has not been Included
as aliability in these financiat statements,

Year ended
30June 2019
£m

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 of 8.58 pence per share 172.6
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

23. Financiol instruments

Copilal risk management

Tha capital structure of the Group comprises of cash and cash equlivalents, a Revolving Credit Facility of £200m (with 0 £100m
additional accordion option and an niticl term of three years) ond total equity attributable to the owners of the parent. The Group
maintains a capital structure with the following objectives:

- toprotact the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern and maintaln sufficiont avallable resources as protection
for unforaseen events:

= {0 provide flexibliity of resource for strategic growth and Invastment where opportunities arise; and
= taprovide reasonable returns to shareholders whilst malntaining alimited level of risk,

As part of achieving these objectives the Group identifies the princlpal financial risk exposures that are crecated by the Group’s
financlal Instruments and monitors them on a regular basis. These are considered to be foraign currency risk (a component of
market risk), credit risk and Hquidity risk.

Where appropriate the Group uses financlal derlvatives to help mitigate the key risks, the use of which Is governed by the Group's
policies approved by the Board of Directors, The Group does not enter into or frade financial instruments. including derivative
financtal Instruments, for speculative purposes.

Foreign currency risk
This is the risk that a change In currency rates causes an adverse Impact on the Group’s performancs or financial position.

Tha Group has tfransactions denominated in varlous currencles with the principal currency exposure belng fluctuations In US
Dollars (USD), Euros. Japanese Yen and Chinese Renminbi (RMB). Collectively these currencles make up approximately $0% of the
Group'srevenue and cash inflows. Whiist a large portion of the manufacturing and research ond deveiopment costs are USD and
RMB. giving a natural offset against the currency inflows, the majority of adminlstiation costs remoin as Sterling leaving an overall
net currancy Inflow In the Group’s cash flows.

This remaining currency exposure Is centrally managed with the objective being to secure a level of certainty of Sterling value
for up to 90% of the future net exposure based on forecast cash flows expected to occur up to 18 months ahead, The Group uses
torward currency contracts to achieve this objective and applies hedge accounting where applicable. Forelgn currency
forward contracts are valued using quoted forward exchange rates and yleld curves matching maturities of the contracts.

The Group's open forward currency contracts and thelr maturity profile as at the yeor end is as follows:

30June 2019 . 30.Juna 2018
30 Juns 2019 Foreign 30June 2018 Foreign
Average currency AVHGOO CUMency
Qutstanding contracts rate milllon rate miilion
SellUS Dollars ]
Less than 3 months 1.34 $8.9 1.30 $9.9
3toSmonths 1.32 sn.s 1.33 $7.4
7t012months 1.33 §3.3 1.35 $S11.5
13to 18 rnonths _— —_ 1.37 $5.3
1.33 $28.7 1.34 §34.1
Sell Euros
Less than 3 months L1 €f11.8 1.12 €109
3 toémonths 1.1t €13.2 1.12 €12.4
7 to 12 months L1t €74 1.12 €20.2
1310 18 months 1.14 €1.4 1.12 £€6.0
L £43.8 112 €495
Sell Yen
Less than 3months 145.26 ¥430.7 143.22 ¥370.3
3 to dmonths 143.23 ¥484.8 144.72 ¥423.1
71012 months 141.58 ¥954.5 147.28 ¥975.0
13 to 18 months 141,99 ¥241.0 145.87 ¥299.3
142.74 ¥2,111.0 145.27 ¥2,067.7
Sell Chinese Renminbi
Less than 3 months 8.91 ¥34.1 8,92 ¥20.2
3todmonths 8.96 ¥27.0 8.84 ¥11.5
7 to 12months ' £.02 ¥54.6 - —
8.97 ¥115.7 8.88 ¥31.7
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23. Financiol instruments continued
At 30 June 2019, the falr volue of contracts held os cosh flow hadges is o net liabllity of £1,5m (2018 net osset of £0.1m).

The movernent recognised In other comprehensive Income In the perod:

30June 2019 30.June 2018

L
Strategic report

(Loss)/goin in the year (2.1) 0.9
Recycled to profit and loss 0.4 0.7)
({Loss)/gain recegnisad in other comprehensive iIncome O.n 0.2

Currency risk sensitivity onalysis
The following table shows tha sensitivity of the Group’s financial instruments o changes In exchange rates by detailing the Impact
on profit and othaer comprehensive income of a 10% change In the Sterling exchange rate against the relevant forelgn currencles.

10% represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change In foreign exchonge rtes over a 12 month period.
The senaitivity anailysis below only includes financial instruments denorminated In nen-functional cufrency and forward

currency contracts outstanding at the reporting date and represents the impact of an immediate change in Stering agaolnst
other currencies.

uUs Dallar furo Yon RMS
cusrenay impoct eurrangy impast currency lmpact currency Impact
0% -10% S10% 0% +10% 0% +10% -10%

£m m £m sm £&m £m £m £im
30 June 2019
Income statement - (0-2) 0.7 {0.8) 0.1 €0.5) 0.5 {0.7)
Cther comprehensive income 1.2 (3.1) 28 (3.7) 0.6 1.9) 0 €0.1)
30 June 2018
Income statement [vX.] 0.6) 0.6 0.2 0.3 0.2) 0.3 (0.5)
Other comprehensive Income 1.4 2.9 3.6 (1.3 1.0 .3 0.1 {0.1)

The sensitivity analysisis limited to the yaar end exposure and therefore doeas not reflect the exposure and inherent risk during
the year.

Liquidity risk
This is the risk that the Group will have insufficient funds available In the right currency o settie Its obligations as they foll due.

The Group genetates funds from operational activities in excess of its oparational requiraments and has substantial cosh
balances avoilable for s current Investment activities,

The Board reviews the funding requirement of the Group as part of the budgeting and long-term planning processes and
conslders as necessary alternative possible sources of funding whave the requirement ls nof satisfied by the Group’s forecast
operational cash generation.

The Group monages liquidity risk by maintaining an adequate level of easlly accessible cosh reserves, In a currency proflle
représentative of the Group’s cost base and matching custemer and supplier terms where possible. The Group also has access
to daily currency trading foclities which provides the abllity to convert currency within the agreed settlernent limits as required.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

23. Financlal instruments continued
The maturlty profile of financialllabilities shown below represents the Group's gross expected contractual cash flows.

Betwaen

Less than six menths Quar
six months and ons year one year Total
£m £m £m £m
30 June 2019
Trads and other payables 30.8 04 -_ 31.0
Derivative financial instruments 521 354 3.0 90.5
Batween
Less thon stx months Ovaear
six months ondona yaar one yedar Total
£m £m em $m
30June 2018
Trade and other payables 41.3 2.2 - 43.5
Derlvative financial Instruments 42.7 333 11.4 87.4

The Group holds sufficlent funds to meet these commitments as they fall due.

Credit risk
This refers to the risk that a counterparty will dafault on its contractual obligations resulting in financlal Joss to the Group.

The Group Is exposed to credit risk on its financial assefs: however, there is not deemed to be a significant exposure due to the nature
of Its customer base and the types of transaction that are undertaken.

Trade recelivables consist of a large number of custorers spread globally with the majority being in econemically strong
geographies. The Group's customer base is pradominantly government-funded institutions, pharmaceutical companies
conducting research, and local distiibutors. The perceived risk of default is deemed to be low.

Further information on the Group's trade receivable ageing andimpalrmeant can be found in note 17,

The Group generates significant levels of operational cash, Cash In excess of local operational requirements is remitted and
managed centrally. Exposure to counterparty defautt risk is managed by limiting the concentration of funds and contracts held
with Indivicual financial Institutions and ensuring funds ara only placed with Institutions or in products rated BBB- or above by
Stondard & Poor’s,

Categories of inancial instruments

Carnrying and falr value
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
£m S

Financlal instruments held at omortised cost

Trade receivables 29.3 24.9
Otherreceivables 25 2.0
Cashand cash equivalents 87.1 90.2
Trade ond other payables” (31.0) {43.5)

Financial instruments held at fair value
Derivative financiclinstruments Qa.9) 0.2
Investment 0.8 0.9

*  Finoncial instrumnents within trode and othar payables consis? of irade payabies, certain acceruols and cther payablet.

The Directors conslider there to be no material difference between the carnying value and the fair value of the financial
instrurnents classifled as held at amortised cost due to the short maturty of these items. For the items classified as held at tair
value, the falr value is recognised on the balonce sheet as the carrying amount.

Abcam plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
124



23. Financial instruments continued

Financial Instruments held at talr value

Financial instruments thaot are measured at fair valua are clossified using a falr value hierarchy that reflects the source of Inputs
used in deriving the falr value, The three classification levels are:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets orliabilities;

= Lavel 2: inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are obsarvable for the asset or liabllity, atther diractly L
{l.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

- Level d: Inputs for the asset or llabllity that are not based on observable market dota (unobservable market Inputs),

Strateglc rport

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities carrled at foir value by valuation method.

30 June 2019 s e e e E
Assels

Derivative financial Instruments -— 0.2 — 0.2
Investment 0.8 -— -_— 0.3

Total assets 0.8 0.2 — 1.0 E
Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments -_— (2.1) - (2.1)
Totat liabilities - £2.1) - {2.1)
30June 2018 L o i eon
Assots

Derivative financialinstruments —_ 0.8 - 0.8
Investment 0.9 _— —_ 09

Total assets 0.9 0.8 - 1.7 Ig
Liabilities

Derlvative financlal instruments -_ (0.6) _— {0.6)
Total liabilities —_ ©.6) —_ 0.6

Level 2 darivative financial Instruments comprise forward foreign exchange contracts, The fair valuse is rermeasured on g monthly
basis with reference to available forward market rates and comparative Instrument pricing.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2019

24, Shore-based payments

Expense arising from share-based payment transactions:
Included In Selling. genercl and administrative expenses
Included In Research and Development expenses

Equity settled share-basad payment expense
Cosh settled share-based payment expense*

Yodrended Year snded
10 June 2019 30June 2018
£m £m

55 29

1.0 0.5

&5 3.4

&2 3.0

0.3 0.4

4.5 3.4

*  Thaiotollability as at 30 June 2019 way £0.4m (30 June 2018: £0.5m) of which £0.2m (2018. 8nif) relatas to options which have vested.

Equity settled share oplion schemes

The Group operates o number of share schemes for certain employees of the Group as follows:

= 2005 and 2015 Share Option Scheme (ISQ/Unapproved) (SOS)

- Company Share Option Plan 2009 (CSOP).
= Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP);

= Annual bonus plan - deferred share award (DSA),

= Share Incentive Plan (SIP);
= Non-Executive Directors (MED) share award; and
- 2018 Employee Share Scheme (AbShare)

Optlons or conditional share grants under each scheme have been aggregated.

The vesting pericd ranges from one to tour years. Options which remain unexercised after a period of 10 yearsfrom the date
of grant expire. Cptlons are forfelted if the employee leaves the Group before they vest, save where the employee is deemed
1o be o ‘goodleaver” In which case options owarded are pro-rated to the leaving date.

Discretionary awards
Share option pians: SO5 and CSOP

Yeat ended 30 June 2019

Yeor ended 30 June 2018

Weighted Weighted
average avercge
oxsiciae sxorche

price price

Number pence Number pOnce

Outstanding at beginning of vear 1.386.655 - 644.3 1,456,393 491.7
Gronted -— -— 445,900 1.020.0
Forfeited (164,220) 8566.6 (160.017) 7760
Exercised (274.487) 525.6 (354.621) 430.2
Outstanding at end of year 247,948 640.1 1.386.655 644.3
Number of options exercisable at end of year 281,438 5358.7 457,389 446.2

Year ended 30 June 2019

Yaar ended 30 June 2013

Weighlad Weighted

average average

Number remalning Numbaer remaining

Analysed by range of exercise price: Gran! year ouistanding contractucllite outstanding  contrachual life
180.8p=-464.0p priorto 2016 256,955 4.3 years 437,430 S.4years
598.0p 2016 155.327 6.3 years 233,229 7.3vears
851.0p 2017 214,708 7.4 years 322,246 8.4vyears
1.020.0p 2018 320,868 8.4 years 393,750 9.dyears
947,948 6.7 years 1.386.655 7.5years

Yoar ended Yearended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Waelghted average fair value of options granted - 190.7p
Weighted average share price at date of exercise 1.310.5p 1.083.7p
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24. Share-based payments continuaed
Options Issued under the $OS carry market-based performance conditions, whereby they will vest where the percentage growth
in Abcam plc shares over tha vesting period Is equal or greater than the percentage growth of the FTSE AIM All-Share Index.

There ware not any grants issued under tha SOS in the year ended 30.June 2019.The Inputs into the Monte Carlo modei for options
issued during the prior year wera as follows:

Ysarended Yeor ended

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Share price at grant {pence) — 1.042.0
Fair value at valuation date (pence) - 175.8-217.9
Exercise price (pence) ~— 1,020.0
Expected volatility -—_ 23%-24%
Contractual life -— 57 years
Expacted dividend yield — 0.98%
Risk-free Interest rate - 0.43%-0.61%

The voiatility of the aptionsis based on the average of standard deviations of historical daily continuous returns on Abcarn ple
shares, looking back over the same period as the expeacted life of the option. The dividend yvield is based on Abcam plc’s actual
dividend yield In the past, The risk-free rate Is the yleld on UK government gilts of each date of grant.

Share award plans: LTIP and DSA

Yaar ended Yoor anded

30 June 2019 30June 2018

Outstanding at beginning of year 1.022,757 965,312

Granted 483,339 247.330
Forfeited 141,797) (48,210»
Exerclsed (376,172) (161,675)

Quistanding ot end of year 988,127 1.022.767

Number of options exercisable ot end of year 63.996 126.742

0TneI0e e

Waelghted average tair value of awards granted 1,245.1p 989.90

Walighted average share price at date of exerclse 1,304.4p 1.067.8p

Welghted average remaining contractuol life 4.3 yeqrs 7.4 years

1E

Fairvalues of the awards with a performance condition based on non-market condition, for example EFS, are caiculated using
the Black-Scholes modal. The inputs into the models for awards granted in the currant and prior year were as follows:

Yeor snded 30 June 2019 Year encied 30 Junae 2018
ne DSA P DSA
Share piice at grant (pence) 1,.251.0 1.337.0 1.042.0 970.0
Expected volatility 28% 24% 23% 3%
Contractual life {years) I years I years Jyears 3 years
Expectaed dividend yleld 0.81% 0.81% 0.98% 1.05%
Risk-free interest rate 0.91% 0.75% 0.50% 0.55%

The inputs to the Biock-5choles model, such as expected volofiity, are based on the same colculotion as those for the Monte
Carlo simulation.

LTIP: Full detaqils of the performance conditlons for the LTIP are shown In note (o) to the Annual Report on Remuneralion on poge 81,
All awairds are subject to achievement of the performance condltlons over athree year perlod and can be exercised over the
foliowing seven years. Save as permitted in the LTIP rules. awards lopse on an employes leaving the Company.

DSA: For those employees entitied to particlpate In the annual bonus plan, a portion of the bonus is awarded in the form of shares
for which there Is @ compulsory holding period of two years and a raquirement for continued employment before these fully vest
10 the employees (deferred shares). The number of deferred shores granted s dependent on certain performance critero.
comprising a one-year profit target and achlevement of strategic and personal objectives.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

24. Share-bosed paymenis continued

All employee share schemaes: AbShare, SIPs

AbShare

In Autumnn 2018, the Company iaunched a new share scheme (AbShare) where all employees globally. excluding Executive
Directors, are eligible to participate, Each employee who particlpates Is required 1o contribute 5% of thelr salary spraad across
three years (therefore equating to 1.47% per annum). Upon vesting in October 2021, and subjact to certaln perfarmance conditions
being met. the funds contributed will be used as consideration for the Issue of the predetermined number of shares to the
employee with the Company issuing a further 10 shares for each share issued.

Year anded

30 June 2019

Qutstanding at baeginning of yaar —

Granted 1,694,429
Fortfelted €130,262)

Exercised —

Qutstanding at end of year 1,564,167

Number of options exerclsable at end of year —

Year ended

30 June 2019

Weighted average foir volue of awards granted 1.131.4p

Weighted average remalning contractual life 2.4 years

Failr values of the awards cire colculated using the Black-Scholes model, The inputsinto the models for awards granted In the current
year weare as follows:

Year ended

30June 2019

Share price at grant (pence) 1.251.0
Expected volatility 26%
Contractual life {years) 3 years
Expected dividend yleld 0.81%
Risk-free intarest rate 0.91%

The Inputs 10 the Black-Scholes model, such as expected volatility, are based onthe same calculation as those for other schermes,
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24, Share-based payments continued

SiP

Up until October 2018, all UK-based employees were eligible to participate in the SIP wheraby employees could purchase shares
inthe Company. These shares ara referred to as Partnership Shares and are heidin trust on behalf of the employee. For every
Partnership Share bought by the employee up to a limit of £1.800 par tax year the Company will give the employse one share
(Matching Shares). provided the employee remains empioyed by the Company for a period of at least three vears.

Employees must withdraw their shares from the plan upon leaving the Company and will not be entitied to the Matching Shares
if they leave within three years of purchasing the Partnership Shares.

In addition to this, also up unti October 2018, the Company also awarded shares to employees (Fiee Shares) with a value of up to
£3.600 per tax year. There are no vasting conditions attached fo the Free Shares, other than belng continuously employed by the
Company for three years from the date of grant.

The foir value of Matching Shares and Free Shares Is determined as the market value of the shares at the date of grant. No
valuation model Is required to calculate the fair value of owards under the SIP. The fair value of an equity-based payment under
the SIP is the face value of the award on the date of grant because the participants are entitled to recelve the tull value of the
shaores and there ore no market-bosed performance congitions attached to the gwardls.

112

Nymbset of Free Shores Numbyer of Matehing Shares

Yeorended Year ended Year snded . Yeqrended

30 June 2019 30June 2013 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Outstanding at beginning of year 447.841 515,393 115,928 134,200

Granted during year —_ 93,078 7.323 31,840
Forfelted duwing year 19,982) (42,269) (7.227) €12.072)
Exercised during year 77.672) (118,361) {27.485) (33.061)

Outstanding at end of year 351,187 447,841 88,539 115,928

Exerclsable at end of year 187,428 215,268 48,333 72,009

Yearended Yeor encled

30 June 2019 0 une 2018

Woeighted average falr value of aptions granted -— 1.042.0p

Other awards: NED share award
A component of the Non-Executive Directers’ remuneration is delivered as a fixed number of fully paid ordinary sharesin the first
open perlod following the announcemaeant of annual results of the financial year to which the award relates.

Further details are Included in note (b) to the Annual Report on Remuneration on page 81.
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Notes to the ¢onsolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

25. Refirement benefit schames

Yearended Ysarendecd
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
£m M

Total charge to Income statement in respect of defined contrdbution schemes 3.5 29

Defined contribution schemes
The UK-based employees of the Group have the option to join a defined contribution pension scheme monaged by a third party
pension provider. For each member the Company contributes a fixed percentage of salary to the scheme.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries (n the US, Japan, China and Hong Kong are members of state-managed retirernent benefit
schemes. Depending on location, the subsidiaries are required to contribute a specifled percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement beneflt schemes to fund the benefits.

As at 30 June 2019 contributions of £0.3m (2018: £0.3m) due in respect of the current reporting period had not been paid over
to the schemes,

26. Business combinations

Yearended 30 June 2019

On 24 January 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Calico Biolabs inc (Colicd), a developer
of recombinant rabblt monoclonal antibodies for diagnostic and blopharmaceutical companies. for total cash consideration
of $4.6m (£3.6m), of which $0.9m (£0.7m} Is defarred for 12 months from the acquisition date.

The acqulsition strategically expands Abcam’s leading position in rabblt monoclonal antibodies, bringing a small catalogue
of raady-made antibodies for Immunohistochemistry (IHC) applications In addition to custom development services.

The provisional falr value of identifiable assets acquired was as follows:

£m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 0.6
Net current assets 0.2
Total identifiable assets acquired 0.8
Goodwill 2.8
Total consideration 3.6

Net current assets comprised cash of £0.1m, traode receivables of £0.2m cnd trade payables of £0.1m.

Since the date of acquisition to 30 June 2019, the acquisition contributed £0.3m to the Group's revenue and a loss before tax
of £0.)m over the same perlod.

Had Calico been consolidated from 1 July 2018, Group revenuas and profit before tax for the year ended 30 June 2019 would
have incraased by £0.6m and decreased by £0.4m, respectively.
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26. Business combinations continued

Year ended 30 June 2018

©On 22 January 2018 tha Group enterad Into a definitive licence agreement with Roche for consideration of $17.6m (£13.0m).
Under the terms of the agreement, the Group obtalned the exclusive rights to the product portfolio of Spring Biosclence Corporation
(' Spring’). In the research use only (RUO) field as well as the exclusive RUO rghis for all future products developad for an Inttial
pericd of 10 years. As part of the agreement, existing amounts of inventory aise transferred to the Group.

Consideration of $2,1m (£1.5m) was exchanged in May 2018. Deferred consideration of $15.5m (£11.8m) was paid in Septembear
2018 and wasreflected as a iability of £11.8m af 30 June 2018.

The falr value identifiable assets recognised at the date of acquisition was as follows. with no subsequent change having been
made since 30Jung 2018:

£m
Non-current assets

Intanglble assets 0] 109
Current assets

Inventory 20
Total Identifiable assets acquired 12.9
Goodwlll 0.1
Total consideration [0)] 13.0

(0 Cemprises $10.4m atiribulable to the llcence ogreement and £0.5m fo customer and distributor relationships.
N Acquisition relsted expenies totalling £0.2rm are included within Selling. general ond administrative sxpenses and are an adjusting item (ncte 7).

27. Related porty fransactions

Remunaeration of Directors and key maonagement personnel

Key management personnel is comprisad of the Non-Executive Direclors, the Executive Directors and the Executive
Leadership Teom.

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees represent amounts recelved in cash and an element recelvable In sharas. Further information
about the remuneration of individual Directors is provided in the audited section of the Annual Report on Remuneratonon
pages 80and 81,

Key managemant personnal

Directors’ remunatation (including Dirsctors)
Yearesnded Yeor ended Yearended Yoor ended
30 June 2019 30June 2018 20 Juns 2019 30 June 2013
£y em £m &m
Short-term empldyese benefits and fees 1.6 1.6 43 4.1
Post-employment benefits 041 0.1 0.2 0.2
Share-based payments - 1.6 0.8 2.1 1.4
33 25 6.6 5.7

Directors’ transactions

During the year, the Group made purchases from companlies relataed to Directors of less than £0.1m (2018: £0.4m) of which the
balance outstanding at 30 June 2019 was less than £0.1m (2018: £0.1m). Total sales to companies related to the Directors were less
than £0.1m (2018: lass than £0.1m). of which less than £0.1m (2018: less than £0.1m) was outstanding as at 30 June 2019
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Company balance sheet

As at 30 June 2019
30 June 2019 30June 2018
Note £m gm
Non-current assets
Goodwilt C4 7.8 7.8
Intangible assets CS 56.8 535
Property, plant and equipment (o7.] 26.8 10.6
Invastments c? 140.7 135.0
Deferred tax asset ca 28 2.4
Loan recelvable co 27.4 51.3
262.3 26746
Current assets
Invantories c10 243 21.5
Trace and other receivables cn 44.2 38.5
Loon receivable ce 26.9 —_

'| Current tax recelvable 5.4 -—
Derivative financial instruments 0.2 0.8
Cash and cash equivalents 57.9 67.2

158.9 128.0
Total assets an.2 3935.6
Current liabilities
Trads and other payabies Cl12 {40.7) {44.7)
Current tax labilities - (1.4) .
Derivative financial Instruments (2.0) (0.5)
Bormowlings with Group companies (14.5) 7.0)

57.2) (53.68)
Net curront assets 101.7 74.4
Total assets less current liabilitias 364.0 3420
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabllities c8 3.9 0.4
Dearivative financial Instruments (G.1) .1y

“.0 (0.5)

Total liabilities {61.2) (54.1)
Net aossets 340.0 3415
Equity
Share capital C13 0.4 0.4
S$hare premium account 27.0 25.6
Merger reserve c1a &8.1 68.1
Own shores c13 2.8) 3.2)
Hedging reserve (o3 &) (1.3) 0.1
Retained earnings 260.6 250.5
Total shareholders” funds 3560.0 s

The Company reported a profit for the year ended 30 June 2019 of £37.5m (2018: £57.8m).

The financial statements of the Company (registered number 03509322) were approved by the Board on 6 September 2019 and

signead on its behalf by:

Gavin Wood
Director
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Company statement of changes in equity I
For the year ended 30 June 2019
Share Tatal
Share premium Mergsr Hedging Retained sharehalders’
capltal aceount ressve Own shares reserve sdtnings unds
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m £m E.
At T Juiy 2037 0.4 23.9 8.1 (3.8) a.1) 211.7 300.4
Profit for the veor.- —_ _— - —_ - 57.8 57.8 E
Other comprehensive Income — - - - 0.2 - 0.2 rL' &
Total comprehensiva income —_ - — - 0.2 57.8 58.0
Issue of ordinary shares - 1.7 —_ 0.4 —_ (0.5) 1.6
Share-based payments Inclusive
of deferred tax _ —_ - - _ a7 3.7
Purchase of own shares —_ -_— - - _— [V 2 )] ©.1)
Equity dividends 15 - —_ — - - (22.1) (22.1)
Balance as at 30 June 2018 0.4 25.6 48.1 3.2 Q1 250.% 1.5
Profit for the year - -— - -_— — 37.5 7.5
Other comprehensive income — -_— -_— -— (1.4) -— 1.4)
Yolal comprehensive income -_— -_— -_— - {1.4) s sy ]
tssue of ordinary shares — 1.4 - 0.4 -— (0.4) 1.4
Share-based payments inclusive
of deferred tax - - - -— — 8.1 8.1
Purchase of own shares _ -— — - - €0.2) {0.2)
EqQuity dividends Ci15 - - - - - (24.9) (24.9)
Balance as at 30 June 2019 04 27.0 68.1 (2.8)

1.3) 268.6 350.0 g
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

C1. Basis of preparation
The Company Is Incorporated in the United Kingdom and the separate financial statements of the Compony have been
presented as required by the Companles Act 2006.

The financlal statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventlon (as modifled to include revaluation of

certain finenclol instruments to fair value) and on the going concern basis (see note | to the consolidated financial staterments),
The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial
Reporting Council. Accordingly. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 *Reduced Disclosure
framework’ except for the departura explained in note C4 and In accordance with the Companies Act 20046 as applicabie

to companias using FRS 101.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptlons available under that standard
Inrelation to:

- Business combinations.

= Share-based payments.

= Financial instruments.

= Faqir value measurement.

- Statement of Cash Flows.

= Certaln related party transactons including those with subsidiaries,
- Certaln plant. property and equipment disclosure.

= The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs,

The basls for the above exemplions is becouse equivalent disclosures ara included in the Group financial statements in which
the entity is consolidated.

The adopted principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, are the same as those set outin note 3
to the consolidated financial statements except as noted below In respect of those which are Company specific,

Investments
Investments In subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where approprlate, provisions for impairment.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of Company financial statements In conformity with FRS 101 requires managemenf to make estimates and
assumptions that offect the reported amounts of assets and liabitities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities ot
the date of the Companhy financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expensas durlng the reporting period.
Actual rasults could differ from those astimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions o accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate s revised. The critical oceounting jJudgements
and estimates have been set out In note 4 of the consolidated financial statements. These judgements have been applied
consistently within the Company financial statements.

C2. Income statement
In accordance with the exemption permitted by section 408 of the Companles Act 2006. the Company has elected not to present
its own income statement or statement of comprehensive Income for the year.

Abcam pic Annuat Report and Accounts 2019
14



C3. Employees and remuneration

Detalls of Diractors’ remuneration, share-based payments and pension entitlements In note 27 to the consolidated financlal
statements and the Annual Report on Remuneration on pages 80 and 81 form part of these Company financlal statements.
Information on the main employee share-based payments is given in note 24 of the censolidated tinancial statements,
Details of the key rnanagement parsonnel are glven in note 27 of the consolldated financial statements.

The average monthly number of ermployees (Including Executive Directors) wos:

Year ended Year snded
30 June 2019 30 Juna 2008
Number Numbes
Management, administrative, marketing and distribution 434 423
Laboratory 78 54
514 477
Thelr aggregate remunaration comprised:
. Yaor ended Year endad
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
£m m
wages and sakarias 26.6 22.5
Soclal sacurity Costs 3.7 3.4
Other pension costs 2.1 1.8
Charge In respect of shara options and awards granted 4.4 . 25
Total staff costs 36.8 30.2
Capitalised staff costs (1.5) (AR
Net staft costs 3s.3 28,3
C4. Goodwlll
80 June 2019 30.Juna 2018
£m Sm
Cost
At beginning of year 7.8 7.7
Additions _— 0.1
Atend of year 7.8 7.8

Accumulated impairment losses
At beginning ond end of year
Carrying amount 7.8 7.8

R | S

Strotegic report

FRS 101 raquires goodwill to be amortised. however, the Company has chosen not 1o do so butinstaad an annual impalmenit
test Is performed with any impairment I[dentified being recognised as a charge to the Income starement, This is a daparture
from the Companies Act 2006, for the overriding purpose of providing a frue and fair view.

A finite life for the goodwill has not been identified; however, the effect of amortising over ¢ useful fife of 20 years would be
an income statement charge of £0.4m (2018: £0.4m) ond a reduction of £1,6m (2018: £1.2m) in the canrying value of goodwill
inthe balance sheet.

Impdirment raview

Goodwlilis tested for impcairment on an annual basis in accordance with 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’ or more frequently if there
are any Indications that the goodwill might be Impaired. These reviews are carred out using the some critaria as set out In note 12
to the consolidated financial statermnents.

A sensitivity analysis has been performad on each base case assumption usad for assessing the goodwil with other variables
held constant. Consideration of the sensitivities to key assurmptions can evolve from one financlal year to the next, The Directors
have concluded that there are no reasonably possible changes in key assumptions which would cause the carrying amount
of goodawlll to exceed Its value Inuse.
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued

For the year ended 30 June 2019

CS. Intangible assets

Acquisition intanglbles

Customaer N
and hc;molog; Inteinally
distributien and Licence developed
rights know-how fons Sub-total technology Sofiwore Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 July 2018 20 0.4 10.7 131 153 44,2 72.6
Additlons — . -— - 7.9 13.3 21.2
Disposals in year {0.6) - -— (0.8) -_ (6.9) (7.5)
At30 June 2019 1.4 0.4 10.7 12.5 23.2 50.6 86.3
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2018 1.5 0.4 0.7 2.6 4.3 12.2 19.1
Charge forthe year 0.2 —_ 1.0 1.2 2.1 1.8 5.
Impolment _— _ — -_— _— 12.8 12.8
Disposalsin year (0.6) - — 0.6) {6.9) 7.%)
At30June 2019 1.1 0.4 1.7 3.2 6.4 19.%9 295
Carrying amount
At30June 2018 0.5 — 10.0 10.5 11.0 320 53.5
At30 June 2019 0.3 -— 9.0 9.3 168 30.7 56.8
Inctuded in carrying amount - Assets under construction
30 June 2018 — — — — 1.9 298 3.7
30 June 2019 - _ - —_ 3.9 13.3 17.2

Individually material intangible assels
The Group’s new ERP system is considered to be an individually material intanglble asset, of which £15.6m s included within

software which Is belng amortised cver a five year perlod with a remaining amortisation period of between two and flve years,

The remainder Is the balance shown as assets under construction. Licence fees assets relate to the Company’s acquisition
of an exclusive licence agreement with Roche as described in note 2610 the consolidated financial statements.

FollowIng achievernent of the most recent implementation milestone of the ERP implemeniation project, a review was

undertaken of historical expenditure incurred to date on outstanding modules Included within software. it has been concluded
that as a result of changes in the scope and nature of the programme, assets of £12.8m have been impaired as further described
In note 7 to the consclidated financial statements. :
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M
C6. Property. plant and equipment
Office txtures,
fittingy and §
Laboratory other Leasehold o
quip t quip t -] it Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost L §
At 1 July 2018 7.2 4.9 152 273 =
Additions 38 3.2 4.9 .9
Disposals 0.9 (3.3) - 3.7
At 30 Juhe 2019 10.6 48 20.1 355
Accumuiated depreciation
At 1 July 2018 4.0 4.7 - 10.7
Charge for the year 0.9 0.4 0.4 1.7
Disposals (0.4) (3.3) -_ 3.7)
At 30 June 2019 4.5 1.8 0.4 8.7
Net book value L E
30 June 2018 1.2 0.2 15.2 16.6
30 June 2019 4.1 a.o 19.7 26.8
included in nel baok value - Assets under construction
3cJune 2018 — - 15.2 15.2
30 June 2019 -— - - -— n
C7. Investments g
Yearended Yeorended30
30 June 2019 Juns 2018
Investments in subsidiary undeniokings £m £m
At beginning of year 136.0 137.2 E
Capital contribution m 1.9 0.5
Purchase of shares in subsidiory undartakings ()] 2.8 —
Impalrment — Qa.7n
Atend of ysar 140.7 1346.0
() Represants amounts for share bosed awerds issued by the Company o amployess of ity sub;ldlm;u.
() In January 2019. the Company acquited 2.8m new sharesin Abcam US Group Holdingsinc. o di pany, for cor tion of $3.7m.
Subsidiory underiakings
Directly heid
Country of
Incotporation
Regl &d office ot regishation Principal acivity
Abcam Australia Pty Limited Level 16, 414 La Trobe Street, Melbourne. VIC 3000 Australic Safes and
distribution
Abcam KK Sumitorno Fudousan, Ningyocho Bidg 2F, 2-2-1 Nihenbashi Japan Salesand
Horidormecho Chuo-ku Tokyo 103-0012 distribution
Abcam (Hong Kong) Limited 3072, 3/F, Lokeside 1, Phasa Two, Hong Kong Science Park. Hong Kong Sales and
Pak Shek Kok, New Territores distribution
Abcam Taiwan Company Limited  15F, No.2-1, $ec. 3, Minquan E. Road,, Zhongshan District, Taiwan Salesand
Toipeai City. Taiwan distibution
Abcam (Nethernands) BV Kingsfordweg 151, 1043GR Amsterdam Netherlands Sales and
distibution
Abcam US Group Holdings Inc Corporation Service Company, 251 Litte Falls Drive, USA Holding
wilmington, New Castie, DE 19808 compony
Abcam Singopore Pte. Limited 77 Robinson Road, #13-00 Robinson 77, Singapore, 068896 Singapaore Salesand
. distribution
AbShare Shara Plkan Limited Discovery Drive. Cambridge 8iomedical Campus, England Employee
Cambridge. CB2 DAX services
Ascent Scientific Umited Discovery Drive, Cambridge Blomedical Campus. England Dormant

Combridge, CB2 0AX
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

C7. Investments continued

Subsidlary undertakings continued

indiractly heid
Country of
Incorporaticn

Registered olfice orreglstratien Principal agtivity
Abcam (Hangzhoul) 1418 Moganshan Road, Hangzhou Zhejiang, 310011 China R&D and
Biotechnology Co., Limited manufacturing
Abcam Trading {Shanghai) Co..  Roormn 5401, Floor 4, Building 5. No. 338 Gallleo Rood. Pudong China Scies and
Limiteg New Areq, Shanghal distribution
Abcaminc. 1 Kendall Square, Suite B2304, Cambridge. MA, 02139-1517 usAa Sclesond
distribution
Abcam LLC Corporation Service Company. 251 Little Falls Drive. UsSA Holding
Wilmington, New Castle, DE 19808 compony
AxioMx Inc. Corporation Sarvice Company. 251 Uttle Falls Drive. USA R&D and
wilmington, New Castle, DE 192808 manufacturing
Epitomics Inc. Corparation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive, USA R&D and
Wilimington, New Castle, DE 19808 monufacturing
Firefly BioWorks Inc. Corporation Service Company. 251 Little Falls Drive, USA R&D and
Wihmington, New Castle. DE 19808 manufacturing
MitoSclences Inc. Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive, USA R&D and
Wilmington, New Castle, DE 19808 rmanufacturing
Epitomics Haldings, Inc. Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falis Drive, USA Halding
wilmington, New Castle, DE 19808 company
Calico BiclabsInc. 1181 Quarry Ln, Pleaston, CA 94566 USA R&D and
manufacturing
Abcarn (US) Limited Discovery Drive. Combridge Blomedical Campus. England Holding
Cambridge CB2 0AX company

The Group's hotdings In subsidiaries are all through ordinary shares and are all 100% owned.

Subsidiary undertakings exempt from audit
The following subsidiaries, which are Incarporated In England and Wales, are exempt from the requirements of the Companles
Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section 479A of that Acth:

Company
ragistration
Name number
AbShare Share Plan Limited 06706259
Abcam (US) Limitect 08151375
C0. Defarred tax
Yeor andod 30 June 2019 Year ended 30 June 2018
Accelerated Othar Accelerated Other
copital $hare-based femporary capital Share-based temporary
dllowances pdayment  differences Total allowances paymant difersnces Total
Sm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At beginning of year €0.4) 2.4 — 20 (0.2) 1.7 0.1 1.6
(Charge)/credit to income
statement (3.5) -— 0.5 (3.0) (0.2) - .1 0.3
(Charge)/cradit to aquity —-_ {0.1) - (0.1) —_ 0.7 - 0.7
Atend of year 3.9 2.3 05 .0 (0.4) 24 — 20
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CO. Deferred tax continued
Deferred tax balances ore comprised as follows:

30June 2019 30June 2018
£m &m
Deferred tax assels to be recovered
Within 12 months 2.0 0.7
After more than 12 months 0.8 1.7
2.8 24
Deterrad tax liabilities to be recovered
Within 12 months - —_
After more than 12 months {3.9) ©.4)
(3.9) 0.4y
Deaferrad tax assets (net) Q.1) 20

Deferred tax Is calculated using tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the kabllity or asset Is expected to be realised

based on rates enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

C9. Loans receivable

30 June 2019 30 June 20'8
sm sm
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Within 12 months 26.9 —_
After more than 12 months 27.4 51.3
54.3 51.3
Comprising:
30 June 2019 30June 2018
Botrawer  Princlpal $m pay t date rate m £m
Termloan 1 Abcam US Group Holdings Inc. 3.0 20 Dec 20019 7.34% 26.0 251
Tarmloan 2 Abcam US Group Holdings Inc. 340 200Dec 2022 8.69% 26.8 25.8
Sther loans Varlous Varlous Varous Varlous 1.5 04
. 54.3 51.3
Changes in the values of each lean Include foreign exchange movements and settlements,
C10. Inventories
30 June 2019 30June 2018
sm £m
Raw matsrials 1.0 0.3
Work in progress 0.3 0.2
Finishad goods 23.0 21.0
24.3 3ns
CI1. Trade and other receivables
30June 2019 30 June 2018
£m £m
Amounts receivable for the sale of goods and services 7.1 6.7
Amounts owed by subsidiory undertakings 20.1 21.5
Other recelvables® 4.6 8.4
Prepayments 2.4 1.9
442 385

*  Qther receivablesinciudes £0.7m {2018: £3.2m) heldin escrow to fund any further potantial poyments te contractornin respect of the Group's now completed new

global headquartess at tha Cambiridge Biomeadical Campus.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximdtas thelr fair volue,
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued
For the year ended 30 June 2019

€12, Trade and other payables

3 June 2019 30 June 2018
£m

£&m

Trade poyables 6.0 59
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 8.9 6.9
Accruals and future contract liabilities 245 1A
Other taxes and soclal securlty 1.0 1.0
Other payables* 0.3 11.8

40.7 44.7
® 2018 Comprisad $11.8m of def d Consi ion payabls to Roche In respect of the acquisition of Spring described in nate 26 of the Group finonclal statements.

Amounts owed to subsidlary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

C13. Share capital and reserves
Detalls of share copital and reserves are set out in note 21 to the Group financial statements.

Cl4, Commitments
The Company has outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due os follows:

30 June 2019 W une 2018
£m £m

Totol undiscounted future committed payrments falling due:

Within one year 4.7 53
Between one and five years 163 17.6
After five years 48.2 520

69.2 749

The above committed payments represent rantals payable by the Company for its properties with renewal terms of 19 years,

Future capital expenditure

30June 2019 30June 2018
m £m

Contracted for but not provided - 58

C15. Dividends
Details of amounts racognisad as distributions to shareholders In the yvear and those proposed are set out in note 22to the
consolidated financial statements. ’ : :

C14. Related party transactions

Directors’ transactions

The remuneration of tha Directors Is set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration on pages 80 and 81, Related party transactions
relating to Directors of the Company are shown in note 27 1o the consolidated financial statements.
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Investor information
Five year record - uncudited
2008/1% 200718 2016117 2015/16 201415
$m &m Sm £m tm
Income statement - Adjusted performance measures E-
Ravenue 259.9 233.2 217.1 171.7 144.0
Percentage change 11.4% 7.4% 26.4% 19.2% 12.5% _JE
Adjusted EBITDA 924 88.3 733 60.0 54.1 T
Depraclation and amortisation (Q.8) 7.0 8.9 (6.4) (4.9
Adjusted operating profit 836 81.3 64.4 53.6 49.2
Adjusted profit before tax 83.9 81.6 64.6 5318 49.6
Taxation 16.5) 4.9 2.8 (8.6) %.8)
Adjusted profit atter tax 67.4 66.7 52.0 45,2 39.8
Adjusied sarnings per share :
Basic 32.9p 32.7p 25.7p 22.5p 19.9p
Diluted 32.6p 2.4p 25.5p 22.4p 19.8p
Free Cash Flow 343 268 41.3 31.7 32.7
Return on capital employed' (ROCE) 20.8% 22.2% 19.6% 18.1% 21.5%
*  The Group colculates ROCE on o pre-tax DAsis using adivsted operating profit, Capital smployed s based on total assetsiess current liabilities. E
Alternative performance measures g
L i

The Group's parformance Is assesied using a number of financlal measures which are not defined under IFRS and are therefore
non-GAAP (or alternative) performance measures. These are set out as follows:

-~ CERIs a measure which aliows management to identify the relative year-on-year performance of the business by removing
the impact of currency movements which are outside of management’s control,

~ EBITDA is a metric usaed to provide an approximation of cosh generation from operating activities and is reconciled to i1s IFRS \
equivalent profit metric In note 7 fo the consolidated financial statements,

- Maergin percentages (which are calculated by dividing the relevant profit figure by revenue) for each of the relevant profit
matrics provide management with an insightinto relative year-on-year parformance.

= Adjusted profit measures, as described in note 1{c) fo the consclidated financlal statements, are belleved by the Directors to
snable areader to obtain a fuller understonding of underlying performnance since they exclude items which are not reflective
of the normal course of business. Furthermore, such measures are reflective of how performance ks measured intemally Including
targets agalnst which compensction Is determined. Adlusted profit measures are derlved and reconciled to thelr reported IFRS
equivalent on the face of the consolidated income statement as well as in note 7 to the consolidated financlal starements.

Key adjusted incomae statement medasures are: adjusted EBITDA. adjusted operating profit and adjusted profit before tax. .

Adjusting items (which are excluded to arrive at adjusted performance measures) are also described on the face ot the
Income statement and In note 7 to the consolidated financigl stataments.

- Adjusted sarnings per share measures are derived from adjusted profit before tax with the rationale for their use being the
same as for adjusted profit metrics and ore reconciled to thelr IFRS equivalent in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

- Free Cash Flow Is defined on the face of the consolidated cash flow statement and provides monagement with'an Indlcation
of the amount of cash avaliable for discretionary investing or financing after removing caplital related items.
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Further information
Technical glessary

Agonists, Antagonists, Activators and Inhibitors (AAAI)
Biochemicals which activate orinhibit blological pathways.

Atfinity Binder
Areagent that binds specifically to an antigen - antibodles are
a subset of affinity binders.

Amino acids
The basic buitding blocks of proteins and peptides.

Antibody

A protain made by the iImmune systerm that binds specifically
to an antigan, When an antibody detects this antigen in the
body. It will contribute to an immuna response to rid the body
of the antigen.

Antigen
A molecule that is recognised by the immune system and
which can be specifically bound by an antibody.

Assay
A labaoratory test for Qssessing the prasence, amount or
functional activity of a chemical or blological molecule.

Biolegical pathway

A series of molecular interactions that leads to a change
In acellin response 1o a stimulus. For example, biological
pathways can trigger the assembly of new molecules,
turn genes on and off, or spur a cell to move,

Blologicol therapeutics

Any phamnaceutical drug product monufactured in, extracted
from, or semi-synthesised from blological sources. Different
from totally synthesised pharmaceuticals, they include
vaccines, blood, biood components, allergenics, somatic
cells. gene theraples. tissuas, recombinant therapeutic

proteln, and living celis used in cell therapy.

Biomarker

A medasurable Indicator of a biologlcal state or condition. For
example, increased amounts of a particular protein in a blood
sample may Indicate the presencea of a particular disease.

Conjugated antibody

Antibodies that are chemicolly bound to molecules that
enable detection of the ontibody. For example. an antibody
rmight be bound to afluorescent dye.

CRISPR CAS?
An axperimental technique allowing effective and specific
editing of genetic sequences.

DNA

Deoxyribonuclelc acid - a polymaeric molecule that comprises
both the coding and nen-coding elements of the genome of
an organism. Coding elerments gre transcribedinto RNA, while
non-coding elements exert ceflular control functions.

ELISA

Assay that uses antibodies to detect and quantity proteins and
peptides in a blological sample. Acronym for enzyme-linked
immunosorbent assay.

Epigenetics

The studly of changes in organisms caused by modiflcation
of gene expression rather than alteration of the genetic
code itself.
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ERP

Acronym for Enterprise Resource Planning. It refers to business
process management software that allows an organisation
1o use a system of integrated applications to manage the
busineéss and automaote many back-office functions related
to technology. services and human resources.

Gene

Asection of DNA that acts as the blueprint for making o
particular protain. Every human being (except identical twins)
has a unique set of genes, half of which came from their
mother and the other half from their father.

Immunoeassay
A test that uses the binding of antibodies to antigens 1o detect
and quantify a bicloglcal molecute in o somple.

Immunohistochemistry {(IHC)

The process of selectively imaging antigens (proteins) in cells of
atissue section by exploiting the principle of antibodies
binding specifically to antigens in biological issues

In vitro

Dascribes studles that are performed with microorganisms,
celis or biclogical moleculas outside their normnal biological
context, For example. an in vitro experiment might Involve
extracting a blood sample from a patient and performing
an assay on that sample In a test tube.

In vivo
Descrbes a biological process that takes place in a living cell
or erganism, including animais and plants.

In vitro diognostics (IVD)

Tests done on samples such as blood or tissue that have been
taken from the human body. In vitro clagnostics can detect
diseases or other conditions, and can be used to maonltora
person’s overall heaith 10 help cure, treat, or prevent diseases.

Kits and assays

Multi-component products comprising antibodies and other
reagents that can be used to detect a wide range of biological
molecules.

Knockou? cell lines

A cellline that has had a particulor gene removed

(or ‘knocked out*). The protein that the knocked-out gene
encodes for Is therefore not produced.

Lysate

The fluid produced by lysis of cells and tissues. Lysates are used
as controls in biolegical experiments to confirm the absence
or presence of proteins of Interest.

Lysis
The disruption of cells by mechanical, chemical or
enzymatic means.

M-phase phospho-proteins
A family of proteins with diverse roles in cellular signalling and
gene expression,

Matched antibody pairs

A pair of ontibodies that binds to an Individual proteln at
different sites. meaning that both antibodles of the palr can
bind the proteln at the same fime. Matched antibody pairs are
used in assays such as ELISA.




microRNA or miRNA
SmallRNAs that are involved In regulating gene expression.

RUO
Research Use Only

Monooclonal antibodies

Identical antibodies derived frorm a group of ldenticol cloned
cells or from an expression vector. Monoclonal antibodias
recognise only one kind of antigen, 1.e. they bind to the same
site on a proteln,

Multiplex immunoassays

Immunoassays that can detect multiple proteins ot once within
a single sample, They allow scientists to increase the efficiency
and scope of their expedments.

Next generation sequencing

An expetimental technique allowing high throughput analysis

of geneatic sequencas. Used by Abcam to analyse the Immune
response fo select the best monoclonal antibedies for a given

target or application.

PD-L1

Acronym for programmed death-ligand 1. it Is a protein that
plays a magjor role In suppressing the Immune system andis
animportant target In difficult to treat cancers.

Peptides
Short chains of amino aclds.

Phage Display
A technique for affinity binder discovery using viruses and
bacteriain vitro. rather than the Immune system of alive animal,

Polyclonal antibodies

Antibodies that target the some antigen but are derived from
different cell ineages. Polyclonal antibodies bind to different
sitas on the antigen.”

Polycomb proteins

A famlly of proteins tirst discovered In frult flles that regulate
epigenetic processes to drive cellular differentiation, critical
In developmaeant,

Proleins

Large, complex molecutes made up of amino acids. Proteins
are required for the structure, function and regulation of the
body’s tissues and organs.

RabMAb® . .
Abcam’s patented technologQy for the generation of high
quality rabblt monoclonal antibodles.

Rabbit/recombinant monoclonal antibodies

Antibodies made by cloning DNA sequencas from celllines that
produce rabblt monocional antibodies. Cloned recomblinant
antibodies are identical and are theretfora not susceptible to
lot-to-<lot variation.

Reagent
A product used in an expeariment to detect or measure
biclogical processes.

Recombinant

An antibody or proteln that is syntheslsed from modified DNA
in an artificlal system that permits rapld production of iarge
quantities of the protein.

RNA
Ribonuclslc acid - a polymeric molecule that Is transcribed
from DNA. Varous forms of RNA are Involved in protein synthesls.

Specificity
This refers to the ability of an antibody to bind only the
desired antigen.

SimpleStep ELISA® kits
Kits that detiver fast results In just 90 minutes by reducing
antibody and sample additions to a single step.

Transactional (or Touchpoint) Net Promoter Score or INPS

A manoagement tocl that can be used to gauge the loyalty of
a company’s customer relationships. it serves as an alternative
1o traditienal customer satisfaction research and cen be
corralated with revenue growth.
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Further information continued
Corporate directory

Registered office

Discovery Drive

Caombridge Biomedical Campus
Cambridge CB2 0AX

UK

Websites
www.abcam.com
www.abcamplc.com

Registered number
3509322

Interim Company Secretary
Marc Parking

Nominated advisor and joint broker
J.P. Morgan Cozenove

25Bank Street

London E14 5JP

UK

Joint broker

Numis Securities Limited
10 Paternoster Square
London EC4AM 7LT

UK

Independent auditor
PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP
The Maurice Wilkes Building
§tJohn'sInnovation Park
Cowley Rd

Caombridge CB40DS

UK

Public relations advisor
FTI

200 Aldersgate

London EC1A 4HD

UK

Registrar

Equiniti Limited
Aspect House
SpencerRoad
Lancing

West Sussex BN9S 6DA
UK
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Shareholder information

Shoreholder anquiries

Any shareholder with enquires should. In the first instance,
contact our ragistrar, Equiniti Limited, using the address
provided In the Corporate Directory.

Share price information
London Stock Exchange Altarnative Investment Market (AIM)
symbol: ABC.

Information on the Company’s share price is avallable on the
Abcam Invastor relations website at www.abcample.com.

Investor relotions

Discovery Drive

Cambridge Biomedicol Campus
Cambridge CB2 DAX

UK

Email: corporate@abcam.com
Phone: +44 (0)1223 696000
Wabsite: www.cbcamplc.com

Financial calendar

Financial year snd 30 June 2019
Full year results announced 9 September 2019
Ex-dividend date for tinal dividend 7 November 2019
Record date for final dividend 8 Novernber 2019
Annual General Meeting 13 November 2019
Final dividend payment 29 November 2019
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The Abcam Group's commitment to environmental issues
Isreflected in the production of this Annual Report.

The paper used in this report is elemental chiorine free and
Is FSC* accredited. itis printed to 1ISC 14001 environmental
procedures, using vegetable based Inks.

The Forest Stewardship Council® (FSC® is an
International network which promotes responsibie
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